SOME CONTRIBUTIONS TO OPTIMALITY CRITERIA AND DUALITY IN MULTIOBJECTIVE MATHEMATICAL PROGRAMMING

THESIS SUBMITTED TO THE UNIVERSITY OF KASHMIR FOR THE DEGREE OF

Poctor of Philosophy

IN

STATISTICS

BY

RUMANA GULZAR MATTOO



POST GRADUATE DEPARTMENT OF STATISTICS
FACULTY OF PHYSICAL AND MATERIAL SCIENCES
UNIVERSITY OF KASHMIR
SRINAGAR-190006, J&K, India
(NAAC ACCREDITED GRADE 'A' UNIVERSITY)
(2010)

Certificate

This is to certify that the work embodied in this thesis entitled "SOME CONTRIBUTIONS TO OPTIMALITY CRITERIA AND DUALITY IN MULTIOBJECTIVE MATHEMATICAL PROGRAMMING" is the original work carried out by Ms. Rumana Gulzar Mattoo under our supervision and is suitable for the award of the degree of Doctor of Philosophy in Statistics.

The thesis has reached the standard fulfilling the requirements of regulations relating to the degree. The results contained in the thesis have not been submitted earlier to this or any other university or institute for the award of degree or diploma.

(I. Husain)

Co-Supervisor

Formerly Professor

Department of Mathematics

National Institute of Technology

Srinagar, Kashmir

Presently

Professor

Department of Mathematics

Jay Pee Institute of Engineering and Technology

Guna, M.P.

(Aquil Ahmed)

Supervisor

Professor,

Department of Statistics University of Kashmir

Srinagar,

Pare Sharad

Gore

f. Sherikh Ja

Taval Ahmed

Dedicated To My Parents

Since the fabric of the universe is most perfect and the work of the most Wise Creator, nothing at all takes place in the Universe in which some rule of the maximum or minimum does not appear.

(Leonhard Euler)

ABSTRACT

This thesis entitled, "SOME CONTRIBUTIONS TO OPTIMALITY CRITERIA AND DUALITY IN MULTIOBJECTIVE MATHEMATICAL PROGRAMMING", offers an extensive study on optimality, duality and mixed duality in a variety of multiobjective mathematical programming that includes nondifferentiable nonlinear programming, variational problems containing square roots of a certain quadratic forms and support functions which are prominent nondifferentiable convex functions. This thesis also deals with optimality, duality and mixed duality for differentiable and nondifferentiable variational problems involving higher order derivatives, and presents a close relationship between the results of continuous programming problems through the problems with natural boundary conditions between results of their counter parts in nonlinear programming. Finally it formulates a pair of mixed symmetric and self dual differentiable variational problems and gives the validation of various duality results under appropriate invexity and generalized invexity hypotheses. These results are further extended to a nondifferentiable case that involves support functions.

This thesis comprises seven chapters. The chapters are divided into various subsections to give specific descriptions of the results quoted in the thesis.

Chapter 1: is devoted to surveying the relevant literature which is required in the development of existing results in multiobjective mathematical programming.

Chapter 2: The purpose of the chapter 2nd is to study multiobjective duality in nonlinear programming involving support functions. This chapter contains two sections, 2.1 and 2.2. In section 2.1, Wolfe type duality and Mond-Weir type duality are investigated under invexity and generalized invexity, and special cases are derived. Section 2.2, unifies the nondifferentiable Wolfe type

dual and Mond-Weir type dual problems considered in section 2.1 and also incorporates particular cases.

Chapter 3 studies multiobjective continuous programming in which the components of the objective and constraint functions contain support functions. In this chapter Wolfe and Mond-Weir type duality are studied under invexity / generalized invexity requirements. The results of this chapter are regarded as dynamic versions of the duality results of nondifferentiable nonlinear problems derived in chapter second.

Chapter 4 is focused on the study of optimality criteria and duality in multiobjective variational problems involving higher order derivatives. The models of the variational problems presented in this chapter are obviously more general than those of the preceding chapters. It consists of three sections, 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3. In section 4.1, optimality conditions, both Fritz-John and Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type optimality conditions are derived for the variational problem and the extended notion of invexity / generalized invexity. As an application of Karush-Kuhn-Tucker optimality conditions, Wolfe type dual is formulated and various duality results are established under invexity / generalized invexity defined in this section. In this section, it is also shown that our results can be considered as continuous time extension of nonlinear problem existing in the literature. Section 4.2 formulates Mond-Weir dual for multiobjective variational problem considered in section 4.1 to relax the invexity requirements for various duality results to hold and gives relationship between the results of this section and those of nonlinear programming. Section 4.3 is meant to unify the dual formulations of the variational problems in section 4.1 and 4.2 and prove various duality results under invexity and generalized invexity.

Chapter 5 consists of two sections, 5.1 and 5.2. In section 5.1, optimality conditions are derived and Wolfe type duality and Mond-Weir type duality problems for a class of nondifferentiable variational problems involving higher order derivatives with nondifferentiable terms of square root of certain quadratic

form are treated. The second section 5.2 is meant to present mixed type duality for the class of nondifferentiable multiobjective variational programming considered in section 5.1. The subsection 5.2.2 considers the variational problem with natural boundary conditions instead of fixed point conditions. These formulations are indicated to possess close relationship of the duality results of section 5.2 with those of nondifferentiable nonlinear programming.

Chapter 6 is devoted to the study of mixed type symmetric and self duality for multiobjective variational programming. In essence the formulation of the problem of this chapter combines the Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems already studied in the literature. Further, it is also shown that our results are closely related to those of their static counter parts.

Chapter 7 is the last chapter of the thesis. It has two sections, 7.1 and 7.2. In section 7.1, Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual models for multiobjective variational problems with support functions are treated. For these pairs of problems, weak, strong and converse duality theorems are validated under convexity-concavity and pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity assumptions on certain combination of functionals. Self duality theorems for both the pairs are established. The problems with natural boundary values are formulated. In section 7.2, we present the mixed formulation that unifies two existing pairs, Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems containing support functions and various duality theorems are established under pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity convexity-concavity and of certain combination of functionals appearing in the formulation. A self-duality theorem under additional assumptions on the kernel functions that occur in the problems is validated. A pair of mixed type nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problem with natural boundary values is also formulated to indicate the validity of various duality theorems and to find linkage between the duality results of this section and those of the results of nonlinear programming.

The subject matter of the present research thesis is almost fully published / under publication in the form of the following research papers written by the author:

- 1) Optimality Criteria and Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives, *Journal of Applied Mathematics And Informatics*, Vol. 27(2009), No. 1 2, pp. 123 -137.
- 2) Optimality and Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives, *European Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics*, Vol. 2, No 3 (2009), pp. 372-400.
- 3) Mixed type Multiobjective Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives, *Journal of Applied Mathematics and Informatics*, Vol. 27(2009), No. 1 2, pp. 245 257.
- 4) Multiobjective Continuous Programming Containing Support Functions, *Journal of Applied Mathematics And Informatics*, Vol. 27(2009), No. 3 4, pp. 603 619.
- 5) On Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming with Support Functions, to appear in *Journal of Applied Analysis in* 2010.
- 6) Mixed Type Symmetric and Self-Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems, *European Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics*, Vol. 2, No 4, 2009, pp. 578-603.
- 7) On Mixed Type Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems, *European Journal of Pure and Applied Mathematics*, Vol.3, No 1, 2010, pp. 81-97.
- 8) Multiobjective Duality in Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives, Communications and Network Vol.2, No 1, 2010, pp. 138-144.

- 9) On Mixed Type Duality for Multiobjective Programming Containing Support Functions, to appear in *Journal of Informatics and Mathematics* 2010.
- **10)** Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems Containing Support Functions", *Istanbul University Journal of School of Business Administration* Vol.39, No 1, 2010, pp. 1-20.
- 11) Mixed Type Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems Containing Support Functions", Submitted For Publication.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

رَبَّنَآ ءَانِنَا مِن لَّدُنكَ رَحْمَةً وَهَيِّئَ لَنَا مِنْ أَمْرِنَا رَشَدُا ۖ

"Our Lord! bestow on us Mercy from Thyself, and dispose of our affair for us in the right way!"

First of all I would like to express my sincere thanks to Professor Aquil Ahmed, Department of Statistics, who has been guiding me generously since the beginning of my M.Sc programme in Statistics. He has always provided me with many helpful suggestions and constant encouragements whenever I was dismayed in the struggle of life. I am grateful to him more than I can possibly express for introducing me to Professor I.Husain for teaching and guiding me the fascinating subject of mathematical programming whose applications are widely spread over a variety of contexts of real life problems.

I am really quite fortunate to visit Prof.I.Husain at Jaypee University of Engineering and Technology, Guna, MP, quite often for pursuing my Ph.D. programme under his able guidance and from whom I have learnt so much of what I know. The words of thanks cannot be a substitute of my true appreciation for all he has done to make this thesis possible for me.

I extend my gratefulness to the authorities of University of Kashmir for their cooperation and keen interest in the development of my research. I am grateful to Dr. Anwaar Hasan, Head, Department of Statistics for his goodwill and advice, which

have given me strength to face odds in the course of pursuance of my Ph.D. programme.

I am really thankful to all my teachers, namely, Dr M.A.K, Beig, Dr. Tariq Jan and Dr. Sheikh Parvaiz for their support during this academic exercise.

I express my oweness to my parents more than possibly I can express for their undaunted support and blessings throughout the preparation of this thesis. My angelic sisters, Afshan and Hafsah have always given me strength to work harder for any academic pursuit through their prayers and they will live in my heart forever. I will be failing in my duties if I do not extend my heart felt gratitude to my elders, particularly Mr. Shabir and Mr. Gowhar, for their fatherly love and support at all difficult events of my life. I am sincerely beholden to my relatives for success of my Ph.D. programme.

My special gratitude is due to my aunt, Mrs. Jabeen Husain and her son, Zafar Husain, for providing me homely atmosphere during my stay in their house at JUET campus, Guna.

Finally, I extend my sincere thanks to all my friends whose prayers have driven me out of depression which I have often faced in the struggle in this academic programme.

Rumana Gulzar Mattoo

CONTENTS

Abstract

Chapter No	Particulars	Page No.
1	INTRODUCTION	
	1.1 General Introduction	1
	1.2 Pre-requisites	6
	1.2.1 Notations	6
	1.2.2 Definitions	7
	1.3 Review of the Related Work	11
	1.3.1 Duality in Mathematical Programming	11
	1.3.2 Symmetric Duality in Mathematical Programming	18
	1.3.3 Variational Problems	23
	1.3.4 Symmetric Duality for Variational Problems	32
	1.3.5 Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives	37
	Summary of the Thesis ****	39
2	ON MULTIOBJECTIVE NONLINEAR PROGRAMMING WITH SUPPORT FUNCTIONS	
	2.1 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming	57
	2.1.1 Introductory Remarks	57
	2.1.2 Statement of the Primal Problem	58
	2.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality	59
	2.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality	65
	2.1.5 Related Problems	70
	2.2 Mixed Type Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective	
	Programming	71
	2.2.1 Mixed Type Duality	71
	2.2.2 Special Cases	77
3	MULTIOBJECTIVE CONTINUOUS PROGRAMMING CONTAINING SUPPORT FUNCTIONS	
	3.1 Multiobjective Continuous Programming	79
	3.1.1 Introductory Remarks	79
	3.1.2 Multiobjective Variational Problems and Related	80
	Results	
	3.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality	81
	3.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality	88
	3.1.6 Related Problems****	

4	DUA	TIMALITY CONDITIONS AND MULTIOBJECTIVE ALITY FOR VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS INVOLVING THER ORDER DERIVATIVES	
	4.1	Optimality Criteria and Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives 4.1.1 Introductory Remarks 4.1.2 Invexity and Generalized Invexity 4.1.3 Variational Problem and Optimality Conditions 4.1.4 Wolfe Type Duality 4.1.5 Natural Boundary Values 4.1.6 Nonlinear Programming	97 97 98 99 104 112 113
	4.2	Multiobjective Duality in Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives 4.2.1 Mond-Weir type Duality 4.2.2 Natural Boundary Values 4.2.3 Nonlinear Programming	113 113 119 120
	4.3	Mixed Type Multiobjective Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives 4.3.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality 4.3.2 Related Nonlinear Problems	120 120 128
5	NON VAF	TIMALITY AND DUALITY FOR NDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE RIATIONAL PROBLEMS WITH HIGHER ORDER RIVATIVES	
	5.1	Optimality Conditions and Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives 5.1.1 Introductory Remarks 5.1.2 Problem Formulation 5.1.3 Optimality 5.1.4 Wolfe Type Vector Duality 5.1.5 Mond-Weir Type Vector Duality 5.1.6 Related Problems	130 130 131 132 133 142 149
	5.2	Mixed Type Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems 5.2.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality 5.2.2 Variational Problems with Natural Boundary Values 5.2.3 Nondifferentiable Nonlinear Programming	151 151 162 163
6		KED TYPE SYMMETRIC AND SELF DUALITY FOR LTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems 6.1.1 Introductory Remarks 6.1.2 Notations and Preliminaries	164 164 165

	6.1.3 Statement of the Problems	169
	6.1.4 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality	170
	6.1.5 Self Duality	181
	6.1.6 Natural Boundary Values	183
	6.1.7 Nonlinear Programming	185
VA	MMETRIC DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE RIATIONAL PROBLEMS CONTAINING SUPPORT NCTIONS	
7.1	Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems 7.1.1 Introductory Remarks	186
	7.1.2 Wolfe Type Symmetric Duality	187
	7.1.3 Mond-Weir Type Symmetric Duality	196
	7.1.4 Self Duality	198
	7.1.5 Natural Boundary Values	201
	·	203
	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming	203
7.2	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support	203
7.2	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions	205
7.2	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems	205 205
7.2	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems 7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality	205
7.2	 7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems 7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality 7.2.3 Self Duality 	205 205 207 222
7.2	7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems 7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality 7.2.3 Self Duality 7.2.4 Special Cases	205 205 207 222 225
7.2	 7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems 7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality 7.2.3 Self Duality 	205 205 207 222

Chapter-1

INTRODUCTION

- 1.1 General Introduction
- 1.2 Pre-requisites
 - 1.2.1 Notations
 - 1.2.2 Definitions
- 1.3 Review of Related Work
 - 1.3.1 Duality in Mathematical Programming
 - 1.3.2 Symmetric Duality in Mathematical Programming
 - 1.3.3 Variational Problems
 - 1.3.4 Symmetric Duality for Variational Problems
 - 1.3.5 Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives

Summary of the Thesis

1.1 GENERAL INTRODUCTION

In this chapter we present a brief survey of related work done in the fascinating area of multiobjective mathematical programming followed by a precise summary of our own findings in the subsequent chapters of this thesis.

Many problems of practical importance can be transformed into different forms of minimization or maximization problems no matter whether such problems are from the field of engineering, science, business or finance. These problems share the characteristics of requirements of finding the most advantageous solution that offers certain optimal criteria under several limitations. Many of these problems concentrate primarily on optimizing the gain or the quality of performance: for instance the problem of optimal control (discrete or continuous), structural design, mechanical design, electrical network, water resource management, stochastic resource allocation, location facilities, etc., can be cast into optimization problems.

Euler has truly said,

"Since the fabric of the universe is most perfect and the work of the most Wise Creator, nothing at all takes place in the Universe in which some rule of the maximum or minimum does not appear".

Almost all practical optimization problems are concerned with more than a single objective function. Real life problems require the optimization of multiple objectives at the same time. For example in planning of transportation or distribution schedule, the total transit time is usually not the only criterion to consider. A planner may also consider the cost and the reliability of the planner schedule before it is actually executed. When the evaluation process deals with more than one objective, the problems of this nature are described as multiple objective optimization. These objectives are often inter-conflicting. When objectives are conflicting, this implies that an objective cannot be improved without affecting the optimality of the other objectives. A possible solution to multiple criteria optimization should provide balance in objectives. These solutions may be suboptimal with respect to single objective programming problem. In fact, they are called trade-off solutions that are regarded as the best solution. Multiple criteria optimization is most often applied to deterministic problem in which the number of feasible alternatives is large. It is more useful with less controversial in business and government such as in oil refinery, scheduling, production planning, capital budgeting, forest management, determining reservoir release policy, allocation of audit staff in a firm, transportation and many others.

Optimality criteria play a very significant role in determining the solution of the problem as the classical calculus suggests. Fritz-John [81] was the first to derive necessary optimality conditions for constrained single objective optimization problem using Lagrange multiplier rule. Later Kuhn and Tucker [88] established necessary optimality conditions for the existence of optimal solution under certain constraint qualification in 1951. It was revealed after wards that W.Karush [83] had presented way back in 1939 without imposing any constraint qualification; thus the Kuhn-tucker conditions are known as Karush-Kuhn-Tucker optimality conditions. Abadie [1] established a regularity condition that enabled him to derive Karush-

Kuhn-Tucker conditions from Fritz John optimality conditions. Subsequently, Mangasarian and Fromovitz [93] generalized Fritz-John optimality conditions to treat equality and inequality constraints. Sufficiency of these conditions under convexity and generalized convexity were extensively treated by many authors notably, Mangasarian [92] and Martos [95].

The first notion of optimality in the setting of multiobjective programming goes back to Edgeworth in 1881 and Pareto in 1896 as well known historical references and is still the most extensively used. In (Edgeworth-) Pareto-optimality every feasible alternative that is not dominated by any other in terms of the componentwise partial order is considered to be optimal. Hence each solution is considered optimal that is not definitely worse than another. Thus, multiobjective optimization does not yield a single or a set of equally good answers, but rather suggests a range of potentially very different answers.

Optimality criteria are extensively studied as a vital organic part in the theory of single or multiple optimization theory because these criteria lay the foundation of duality which is a natural and significant concept. The term duality used in our daily life means the sort of harmony of two opposite or complementary parts by which they integrate into whole. Inner beauty in natural phenomena is bound up with duality, which has always been a rich source of inspiration in human knowledge through the centuries. The theory of duality is a vast subject, significant in art and natural science. Mathematics lies in it roots. The concept of duality has proved to be valuable notion in analysis of linear and nonlinear programming. According to Dantzig [47] the notion of duality was first introduced by Von-Neumann [120] and was subsequently formulated in the precise form by Gale, Kuhn and Tucker [57]. The concept of duality is to associate with each mathematical programming, called primal, (a Latin word, which means original) another mathematical programming called dual program. This idea

is useful in economics where the dual problem can be stated in terms of price, in mechanics where primal and dual problems are two well-known forms of conservation principles.

Duality in nonlinear programming problems originated with duality results of quadratic programming, initially studied by Dannis [46]. Dual of convex primal program was given by Dorn [53], Mangasarian [92] and Wolfe [156]. Schechter [132] extended the duality results of Wolfe to nondifferentiable case by replacing gradients by subgradients using Slater's constraint qualification.

Mond and Weir [116] modified the Wolfe dual moving a part of objective function of Wolfe dual to the constraints and thus introducing Mond-Weir dual programming problem. The resulting pair of dual programming was nonconvex program and was found that there was no involution between primal and dual that is, the dual of the dual was not primal in general. In the literature of mathematical programming, a primaldual pair of problem is called symmetric if the dual of the dual is primal problem. In the sense, a linear problem and its dual is symmetric. However, the majority of the formulation, in nonlinear programming does not possess this property. The first symmetric dual formulation in nonlinear programming was proposed by Dantzig, Eisenberg and Cottle [48] which subsumed the duality formulation of linear programming and certain duality formations in quadratic programming. Making use of the Fritz John optimality conditions, they proved weak and strong duality theorems for their pair of symmetric dual programming problems under differentiability conditions. These ideas were further extended to single and multiple objective variational problems.

Kuhn and Tucker [88] were the first to incorporate some interesting results concerning multiobjective optimization in 1951 .Since then, research in this area has made remarkable progress both theoretically and practically.

Some of the earliest attempts to obtain conditions for efficiency were carried out by Kuhn and Tucker [88], Arrow et al [2]. Their research has been inherited by Da Cunha and Polak [45], Neustadt [122], Ritter [126-128], Smale [139], Aubin [3], Husain et al. [62-68] and others.

Duality, which plays an important role in traditional mathematical programming, has been extended to multiobjective optimization since the late 1970's. Isermann [75-78] developed multiobjective duality in linear case while results for nonlinear cases have been given by Schonfeld [134], Tanino and Sawaragi [144], Mazzoleni [96], Corley [44], Nakayama [119] and others.

Concept of mixed type multiobjective duality seems to be quite interesting and useful from practical as well as from algorithmic point of view. The computational advantage of mixed type dual formulations involves the flexibility of the choice of constraints to be put in the Lagrange function can be exploited to develop certain efficient solution procedures for solving mathematical programming problems.

The main contribution of this thesis is to derive optimality criteria for differentiable as well as nondifferentiable multiobjective mathematical programming problems which contain both nonlinear programming problems and variational problems and study duality and symmetric duality for these problems. The variational problems are often described as continuous programming problems. In these problems nondifferentiability occurs due to the terms of square root of a certain quadratic forms and support functions. As the mixed type duality in mathematical programming is interesting from theoretical as well as computational point of view, mixed type multiobjective duality for the problems of this research are elaborately discussed and linkage between variational problems and the corresponding nonlinear programming problems is incorporated in most of the cases.

1.2 PRE-REQUISITES

1.2.1 Notations

In this section, we shall incorporate major symbols which are used throughout the research work reported in this thesis.

 R^n = n-dimensional Euclidean space,

 R_{+}^{n} = The non-negative orthant in R^{n} ,

 A^{T} = Transpose of the matrix A,

Let f be a numerical function defined on an open set Γ in \mathbb{R}^n , then $\nabla f(\overline{x})$ denotes the gradient of f at \overline{x} , that is '

$$\nabla f(\overline{x}) = \left[\frac{\partial f(\overline{x})}{\partial x^{1}}, \dots, \frac{\partial f(\overline{x})}{\partial x^{n}}\right]^{T}$$

Let ϕ be a real valued twice continuously differentiable function defined on an open set contained in $R^n \times R^m$. Then $\nabla_x \phi(x, y)$ and $\nabla_y \phi(x, y)$ denote the gradient (column) vector of ϕ with respect to x and y respectively i.e.,

$$\nabla_{x}\phi(\overline{x},\overline{y}) = \left(\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial x^{1}},\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial x^{2}},\dots,\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial x^{n}}\right)_{(\overline{x},\overline{y})}^{T}$$

$$\nabla_{y}\phi(\overline{x},\overline{y}) = \left(\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial y^{1}},\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial y^{2}},\dots,\frac{\partial\phi}{\partial y^{m}}\right)_{(\overline{x},\overline{y})}^{T}$$

Further $\nabla_x^2 \phi(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$ and $\nabla_{xy}^2 \phi(\overline{x}, \overline{y})$ denote respectively the $(n \times n)$ and $(n \times m)$ matrices of second order partial derivative i.e.,

$$\nabla_x^2 \phi(\overline{x}, \overline{y}) = \left(\frac{\partial^2 \phi}{\partial x^i \partial x^j}\right)_{(\overline{x}, \overline{y})}$$

$$\nabla_{xy}^{2} \phi(\overline{x}, \overline{y}) = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi}{\partial x^{i} \partial y^{j}}\right)_{(\overline{x}, \overline{y})}$$

The symbols $\nabla^2_{\nu}\phi(\bar{x},\bar{y})$ and $\nabla^2_{\nu\nu}\phi(\bar{x},\bar{y})$ are similarly defined.

1.2.2 Definitions

Definition 1.1: Let $X \subseteq \mathbb{R}^n$ be an open and convex set and $f: X \to \mathbb{R}$ be differentiable. Then we define f to be

1. Convex, if for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$f(x_1)-f(x_2) \ge (x_1-x_2)\nabla f(x_2)$$

2. Strictly convex, if for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$ and $x_1 \neq x_2$

$$f(x_1) - f(x_2) > (x_1 - x_2) \nabla f(x_2)$$

3. Quasi convex, if for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$f(x_1) \le f(x_2) \Longrightarrow (x_1 - x_2) \nabla f(x_2) \le 0$$

4. Pseudo convex, if for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$(x_1-x_2)\nabla f(x_2) \ge 0 \Rightarrow f(x_1) \ge f(x_2)$$

5. Strictly pseudoconvex, if for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$ and $x_1 \neq x_2$

$$(x_1-x_2)\nabla f(x_2) \ge 0 \Rightarrow f(x_1) > f(x_2)$$

6. Invex, if there exists a vector function $\eta: R^n \times R^n \to R^n$ such that for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$f(x_1)-f(x_2) \ge \eta(x_1,x_2)^T \nabla f(x_2)$$

7. Pseudoinvex, if there exists a vector function $\eta: R^n \times R^n \to R^n$ such that for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$\eta^{T}(x_{1}, x_{2})\nabla f(x_{2}) \ge 0 \Rightarrow f(x_{1}) \ge f(x_{2})$$

8. Quasi-invex, if there exists a vector function $\eta: R^n \times R^n \to R^n$ such that for all $x_1, x_2 \in X$,

$$f(x_1) \le f(x_2) \Rightarrow \eta^T(x_1, x_2) \nabla f(x_2) \le 0$$
.

$$(x_1 - x_2)^T \nabla f(x_2) + (x_1 - x_2)^T \nabla^2 f(x_2) p \ge 0 \Rightarrow f(x_1) \ge f(x_2) - \frac{1}{2} p^T \nabla^2 f(x_2) p$$

Clearly, a differentiable convex, pseudoconvex, quasiconvex function is invex, pseudoinvex or quasi invex respectively with $\eta^T(x_1, x_2) = (x_1 - x_2)$. Further we define f to be concave, strictly concave pseudoconcave, quasiconcave, strictly pseudo convex on X according as -f is convex, strictly convex, quasi convex, pseudoconvex, strictly pseudoconvex.

In the following definitions we shall use D and D^2 for customary symbols $\frac{d}{dt}$ and $\frac{d^2}{dt^2}$.

Definition 1.2:

Invexity, If there exists vector function $\eta(t, x, u) \in \mathbb{R}^n$ with $\eta = 0$ and x(t) = u(t), $t \in I = [a, b]$, a real interval, such that for a scalar function $\phi(t, x, \dot{x})$, the functional $\Phi(x) = \int_{I} \phi(t, x, \dot{x}) dt$ satisfies

$$\Phi(u) - \Phi(x) \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \eta \phi_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}) + (D\eta)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}) \right\} dt,$$

 Φ is said to be invex in x and \dot{x} on I with respect to η .

2. Pseudoinvexity, Φ is said to be pseudoinvex in x and \dot{x} with respect to η if

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \phi_{x} \left(t, x, \dot{x} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x} \right) \right\} dt \geq 0$$

implies $\Phi(x, \dot{u}) \ge \Phi(x, \dot{x})$.

Quasi-invexity, The functional Φ is said to quasi-invex in x and \dot{x} with respect to η if

$$\Phi(x, \dot{u}) \leq \Phi(x, \dot{x})$$
 implies

$$\int_{t} \left\{ \eta^{T} \phi_{x} \left(t, x, \dot{x} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x} \right) \right\} dt \leq 0.$$

Consider the multiobjective variational problem (VP).

(VP): Minimize
$$\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}), ..., f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}) \right) dt$$
Subject to
$$g(t, x, \dot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I$$

Definition 1.3 (Efficient Solution): A feasible solution \overline{x} is efficient for (VP) if there exist no other feasible x for (VP) such that for some $i \in P = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}) dt < \int_{I} f^{i}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) dt$$

and

$$\int_{I} f^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) dt \leq \int_{I} f^{j}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) dt \text{ for all } j \in P, \ j \neq i.$$

Definition 1.4 (Support function): Let K be a compact set in \mathbb{R}^n , then the support function of K is defined by

$$s(x(t)|K) = \max\{x(t)^{T}v(t): v(t) \in K, t \in I\}$$

A support function, being convex everywhere finite, has a subdifferential in the sense of convex analysis i.e., there exist $z(t) \in \mathbb{R}^n$, $t \in I$, such that

$$s(y(t)|C)-s(x(t)|C) \ge (y(t)-x(t))^T z(t)$$

From [114], subdifferential of s(x(t)|K) is given by

$$\partial s(x(t)|K) = \{z(t) \in K, t \in I \text{ such that } |x(t)^T z(t) = s(x(t)|K)\}.$$

For any set $\Gamma \subset \mathbb{R}^n$, the normal cone to Γ at a point $x(t) \in \Gamma$ is defined by

$$N_{\Gamma}(x(t)) = \left\{ y(t) \in R^{n} \middle| y(t)^{T} (z(t) - x(t)) \le 0, \forall z(t) \in \Gamma \right\}$$

It can be verified that for a compact convex set K, $y(t) \in N_K(x(t))$ if and only if $s(y(t)|K) = x(t)^T y(t)$, $t \in I$

Definition 1.5 (Skew Symmetry): The function $f: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$ is said to be skew symmetric if for all x and y in the domain of f if

$$f(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) = -f(t,y(t),\dot{y}(t),x(t),\dot{x}(t)), t \in I$$

where x and y are piecewise smooth on I.

Definition 1.6: Let $f: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}$ be a convex function, then a subgradient of f at a point $x \in \mathbb{R}^n$ is a vector $\xi \in \mathbb{R}^n$ satisfying

$$f(y) \ge f(x) + \xi^{T}(y-x)$$
, for all $y \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$

There are number of constraint qualifications [92], which are required to be satisfied by the constraints in establishing the necessary optimality criteria to ensure that certain Lagrange multipliers are non zero. Here we describe only four of them for completeness.

- i) Slater's Constraint Qualification: Let X^0 be a convex set in \mathbb{R}^n . The m-dimensional convex vector function g on X^0 which defines the convex feasible region $X = \{x : x \in X^o, g(x) \le 0\}$ is said to satisfy Slater's constraint qualification on X^0 if there exists an $\overline{x} \in X^o$ such that $g(\overline{x}) \le 0$.
- ii) The Kuhn-Tucker Constraint Qualification: Let X^0 be an open set in R^n . Let g be m-dimensional vector function on X^0 and let $X = \{x : x \in X^o, g(x) \le 0\}$. Then the constraints are said to satisfy Kuhn-Tucker constraint qualification at $\overline{x} \in X$, if g is differentiable at \overline{x} and if

There exists an n-dimentional vector function e in the interval
$$[0,1]$$
 such that
$$(a) \ e(0) = \overline{x}$$

$$(b) \ e(\tau) \in X \ for \ 0 \le \tau \le 1$$

$$(c) \ e \text{ is differentiable } at \ \tau = 0 \text{ and}$$

$$\frac{d \ e(0)}{d \tau} = \lambda y \text{ for some } \lambda > 0.$$

where
$$I = \{i | g_i(\overline{x}) = 0\}$$
.

- iii) The reverse convex constraint qualification: Let X^0 be an open set in R^n .let g be m-dimensional vector function defined on X^0 and let $X = \{x : x \in X^o, g(x) \le 0\}$, g is said to satisfy the reverse constraint qualification at $\overline{x} \in X$, if g is differentiable at \overline{x} and if for each $i \in I$ either g_i is concave at \overline{x} or g_i is linear on R^n , where $I = \{i | g_i(\overline{x}) = 0\}$.
- iv) Linear independence constraint qualification: The condition that the vectors $\nabla g_1(x_0),....,\nabla g_m(x_0)$ are linearly independent is often referred to as linearly independence constraint qualification.

1.3 REVIEW OF THE RELATED WORK

1.3.1 Duality in Mathematical Programming

Nonlinear Programming

Consider the following nonlinear programming problem (P):

(P): Minimize f(x)

Subject to

$$h_i(x) \le 0, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

where $f: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}$ and $h_j: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}$, j = 1, 2, ..., m are continuously differentiable. The following problem (WD) is the Wolfe type dual to the problem (P):

(WD): Maximize $f(x) + y^T h(x)$

Subject to

$$\nabla (f(x) + y^T h(x)) = 0,$$

$$y \ge 0, y \in R^m$$

Mangasarian [92] explained by means of an example that certain duality theorems may not be valid if the objective or the constraint function is a generalized convex function. This motivated Mond and Weir [116] to introduce a different dual for (P) which is given below:

(**MWD**): Maximize
$$f(x)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla f(x) + \nabla y^T h(x) = 0.$$

$$y^T h(x) \ge 0$$

$$y \in R^m$$

and they proved various duality theorems under pseudoconvexity of f and quasiconvexity of $y^T h(x)$ for all feasible solution of (P) and (MWD).

Later Weir and Mond [153] derived sufficiency of Fritz John optimality criteria under pseudoconvexity of the objective and quasiconvexity or semi-strict convexity of constraint functions. They formulated the following dual using Fritz John optimality conditions instead of Karush-Kuhn-Tucker optimality conditions and proved various duality theorems-thus the requirement of constraint qualification is eliminated.

(FrD): Maxmize
$$f(x)$$

Subject to

$$\lambda_{\circ} \nabla f(x) + \nabla \lambda^{T} h(x) = 0.$$

$$\lambda^{T} h(x) \ge 0$$

$$(\lambda_{\circ}, \lambda) \ge 0, (\lambda_{\circ}, \lambda) \ne 0$$

Duality in Nondifferentiable Mathematical Programming

Mond [100] considered the following class of nondifferentiable mathematical programming problems:

(NP): Minimize
$$f(x) + (x^T B x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

Subject to $h_i(x) \le 0, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$

Here f and h_j , j=1,2,...,m are twice differentiable function from \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n is an \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n is an \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n is an \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n is a sum of \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb{R}^n and \mathbb{R}^n to \mathbb

(ND): Maximize
$$f(u) + y^{T}h(u) - u^{T}\nabla [f(u) + y^{T}h(u)]$$

Subject to
$$\nabla f(u) + \nabla y^{T}h(u) + Bw = 0,$$

$$w^{T}Bw \le 1$$

$$y \ge 0.$$

Further on the lines of Mond and Weir [116], Chandra, Craven and Mond [33] introduced another dual program:

(NWD): Maximize
$$f(u) - u^T \nabla [f(u) + y^T h(u)]$$

Subject to
$$\nabla f(u) + \nabla y^T h(u) + Bw = 0,$$

$$y^T h(u) \ge 0,$$

$$w^T Bw \le 1,$$

$$y \ge 0.$$

and established duality theorems by assuming the function $f(\cdot)+(\cdot)^T Bw$ to be pseudoconvex and $y^T h(\cdot)$ to be quasiconvex for all feasible solutions of (NP) and (NWD).

Later Mond and Schechter [113] replaced the square root term by the norm term and considered the nondifferentiable nonlinear programming problems as:

(NP)₁: Minimize
$$f(x) + ||Sx||_p$$

Subject to $h_i(x) \le 0, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$

Here f and h_j , (j=1,2,...,m) are twice differentiable function from R^n to R. The dual for $(NP)_1$ is the problem:

(ND)₁: Maximize
$$f(u) + y^T h(u) - u^T S^T v$$

Subject to
$$\nabla f(u) + \nabla y^T h(u) + S^T v = 0,.$$

$$\|v\|_q \le 1,$$

$$v \ge 0.$$

where p and q are conjugate exponents.

Later Schechter [132] replaced the norm term or the square root term by a more general function as a support function of a compact set. The problem considered by Schechter [132] is:

(NP)₂: Minimize
$$f(x)+S(x|C)$$

Subject to $h_i(x) \le 0, \quad j=1,2,...,m$,

where f and h_j , (j=1,2,...,m) are twice differentiable function from R^n to R and S(x|C) is a support function of a compact convex set $C \subseteq R^n$. Using the subdifferential of the support function of S(x|C), the dual of $(NP)_2$ is the problem:

(ND)₂: Maximize
$$f(u) + w^T u + y^T h(u)$$

Subject to
$$\nabla f(u) + \nabla y^T h(u) + w = 0,$$
$$y \ge 0, \ w \in C.$$

Duality in Multiobjective Mathematical Programming

Whenever we shall study multiobjective programming problem we shall follow the following conventions for vectors in \mathbb{R}^n

$$x < y$$
, \Leftrightarrow $x_i < y_i$, $i = 1, 2, ..., n$.
 $x \le y$, \Leftrightarrow $x_i \le y_i$, $i = 1, 2, ..., n$.
 $x \le y$, \Leftrightarrow $x_i \le y_i$, $i = 1, 2, ..., n$, but $x \ne y$
 $x \not \le y$, is the negation of $x \le y$.

Consider the multiobjective programming problem:

(VP): V- Min
$$F(x) = (f_1(x), f_2(x), ..., f_p(x))$$

Subject to $h_j(\overline{x}) \le 0$, $(j = 1, 2, ..., m)$

where $X \subseteq R^n$ is an open and convex set and f_i and h_j are differentiable functions where, $f_i: X \to R$, i = 1, 2, ..., p and $h_j: X \to R$, j = 1, 2, ..., m. Here the symbol "V-Min" stands for vector minimization and minimality is taken in terms of either "efficient points" or "properly efficient points" given by Koopman [87] and Geoffrin [58] respectively.

Definition 1.7 [58]: A feasible point \bar{x} for is said to be efficient solution of (VP), if there does not exist any feasible x for (VP) such that

$$f_r(x) < f_r(\overline{x})$$
 for some r ,
$$f_i(x) \le f_i(\overline{x})$$
 for all $i = 1, 2, ..., k$, $i \ne r$.

Definition 1.7 [58]: A feasible point \overline{x} is said to be properly efficient solution of (VP), if it is an efficient solution of (VP) and if there exists a scalar M > 0 such that for each i and $x \in X_0$ satisfying $f_i(x) < f_i(\overline{x})$, we have

$$\frac{f_i(\overline{x}) - f_i(x)}{f_i(x) - f_i(\overline{x})} \leq M,$$

for some j, satisfying $f_j(x) < f_j(\overline{x})$.

Geoffrion [58] considered the following single objective minimization problems for fixed $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^p$:

(**VP**)_{$$\lambda$$}: Minimize $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_i f_i(x)$
Subject to

$$h_{j}(\overline{x}) \leq 0$$
, $(j = 1, 2, ..., m)$

and proved the following lemma connecting (VP) and (VP) $_{\lambda}$.

Lemma 1.1:

- (i) Let $\lambda_i > 0$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p), $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_i = 1$ be fixed. If \overline{x} is optimal for $(VP)_{\lambda}$, then \overline{x} is properly efficient for (VP).
- (ii) Let f_i and h_j be convex functions Then \overline{x} is properly efficient for (VP) iff \overline{x} is optimal for are differentiable functions $(VP)_{\lambda}$ for some $\lambda > 0$, $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_i = 1$.

If f_i and h_j are differentiable convex functions then $(VP)_{\lambda}$ is a convex programming problem. Therefore in relation to $(VP)_{\lambda}$ consider the scalar maximization problem:

(VD)_{$$\lambda$$}: Maximize $\lambda^T f(x) + y^T h(x) e = \lambda^T (f(x) + y^T h(x))$

Subject to

$$\nabla \left(\lambda^T f(x) + y^T h(x) \right) = 0$$
$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+, \ y > 0,$$

where
$$e = (1, 1, ..., 1) \in \mathbb{R}^p$$
 and $\Lambda^+ = \{\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^P : \lambda > 0, \lambda^T e = 1\}$

Now as $(VD)_{\lambda}$ is a dual program of $(VP)_{\lambda}$, Weir [148] considered the following vector optimization problem in relation to (VP) as

(**DV**): Maximize
$$\lambda^T f(x) + y^T h(x) e$$

Subject to
$$\nabla (w^T f(x) + y^T h(x)) = 0$$

$$w \in \Lambda^+, y > 0,$$

They termed (DV) as the dual of (VP) and proved various duality theorems between (VP) and (DV) under the assumption that f and h are convex functions.

Further, for the purpose of weakening the convexity requirements on objective and constraint functions, Weir [148] introduced another dual program (DV1).

(DV1): Maximize
$$f(x)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla (\lambda^T f(x) + y^T h(x)) = 0$$
$$y^T h(x) \ge 0$$
$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+, y > 0,$$

For these problems, various duality theorems are proved by assuming the function f to be pseudo convex and $y^T h$ to be quasiconvex for their feasible solutions.

1.3.2 Symmetric Duality in Mathematical Programming

Symmetric Duality in Differentiable Mathematical Programming

Consider a function f(x, y) which is differentiable in $x \in R^m$ and $y \in R^m$. Dantzig et al [48] introduced the following pair of problems:

(SP): Minimize
$$f(x,y) - y^T \nabla_y f(x,y)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{y} f(x, y) \leq 0$$

$$(x,y) \ge 0.$$

(SD): Maximize
$$f(x,y) - x^T \nabla_x f(x,y)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{x} f(x, y) \ge 0$$

$$(x,y) \ge 0.$$

and proved the existence of a common optimal solution to the primal (SP) and (SD), when (i) an optimal solution of (x_o, y_o) to the primal (SP) exists (ii) f is convex in x for each y, concave in y for each x and (iii) f, twice differentiable, has the property that at (x_o, y_o) its matrix of second partials with respect to y is negative definite.

Mond [99] further gave the following formulation of symmetric dual programming problems:

(MSP): Maximize
$$f(x, y) - y^T \nabla_y f(x, y)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{\mathbf{y}} f(\mathbf{x}, \mathbf{y}) \leq 0$$

$$x \ge 0$$
.

(MSD): Maximize
$$f(x, y) - x^T \nabla_x f(x, y)$$

Subject to $\nabla_x f(x, y) \ge 0$
 $y \ge 0$.

It may be remarked here that in [48], the constraints of both (SP) and (SD) include $x \ge 0$, $y \ge 0$, but only $x \ge 0$ is required in the primal and only $y \ge 0$ in the dual.

Later Mond and Weir [118] gave the following pair of symmetric dual nonlinear programming problems which allows the weakening of the convexity-concavity assumptions to pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity.

(M-WSP): Minimize
$$f(x, y)$$

Subject to
$$\nabla_{y} f(x, y) \leq 0$$

$$y^{T} \nabla_{y} f(x, y) \geq 0,$$

$$x \geq 0.$$

Subject to
$$\nabla_{x} f(x, y) \ge 0$$

$$x^{T} \nabla_{y} f(x, y) \le 0,$$

 $y \ge 0$.

(M-WSD): Maximize f(x, y)

Symmetric Duality in Nondifferentiable Mathematical Programming

Let f(x, y) which is differentiable in $x \in R^m$ and $y \in R^m$. Chandra and Husain [28] introduced pair of symmetric dual nondifferentiable programs and proved duality results assuming convexity-concavity conditions on the kernel function f(x, y):

(NP): Minimize
$$f(x,y) - y^T \nabla_y f(x,y) + (x^T B x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

Subject to $-\nabla_y f(x,y) + C w \ge 0$, $w^T C w \le 1$, $(x,y) \ge 0$.

(ND): Maximize
$$f(x,y) - x^T \nabla_x f(x,y) - (y^T C y)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

Subject to $-\nabla_x f(x,y) - Bz \le 0$
 $z^T C z \le 1$, $(x,y) \ge 0$.

where B and C are $n \times m$ and $m \times m$ positive semidefinite matrices.

Further on the lines of Mond and Weir [116], Chandra, Craven and Mond [33] presented another pair of symmetric dual nondifferentiable programs by weakening the convexity conditions on the kernel function f(x,y) to the pseudoconvexity and pseudoconcavity. The problems considered in [33] are:

(PS): Minimize
$$f(x,y) + (x^T B x)^{\frac{1}{2}} - y^T C z$$

Subject to
$$\nabla_y f(x,y) - C z \le 0,$$

$$y^T \left[\nabla_y f(x,y) - C z \right] \ge 0$$

$$z^T C z \le 1,$$

$$x \ge 0.$$

(**DS**): Maximize
$$f(x, y) + (y^T C y)^{\frac{1}{2}} - x^T B w$$

Subject to $\nabla_x f(x, y) + B w \le 0$,

$$x^{T} \left[\nabla_{x} f(x, y) + Bw \right] \leq 0,$$

 $w^{T} Bw \leq 1,$
 $y \geq 0.$

Subsequently Mond and Schechter [111] introduced the following two pairs of symmetric dual programs with support functions — one of which is Wolfe [156] type and another is Mond and Weir [116] type.

(**P**): Minimize
$$f(x, y) - y^T \nabla_y f(x, y) + S(x|C_1)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{y} f(x, y) - z \le 0,$$

$$z \in C_{2}, x \ge 0.$$

(**D**): Maximize
$$f(u,v)-u^T\nabla_x f(u,v)+S(v|C_2)$$

Subject to $\nabla_x f(u,v)+w\geq 0$, $w\in C_1, v\geq 0$ and

(P1): Minimize
$$f(x,y) - y^T z + S(x|C_1)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{y} f(x, y) - z \le 0,$$

$$y^{T} (\nabla_{y} f(x, y) - z) \ge 0,$$

$$z \in C_{2}, x \ge 0.$$

(D1): Minimize
$$f(u,v)+u^Tw+S(v|C_2)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla_{x} f(u, v) + w \ge 0 ,$$

$$u^{T} (\nabla_{x} f(u, v) + w) \le 0,$$

$$w \in C_{1}, v \ge 0.$$

Symmetric Duality in Multiobjective Programming

Mond and Weir [118] discussed symmetric duality in multiobjective programming by considering the following pair of programs:

(PS): Minimize
$$f(x,y) - (y^T \nabla_y \lambda^T f(x,y)) e$$

Subject to $\nabla_y \lambda^T f(x,y) \leq 0$, $x \geq 0$, $\lambda \in \Lambda^+$

(DS): Maximize
$$f(x,y) - (x^T \nabla_x \lambda^T f(x,y)) e$$

Subject to $\nabla_x \lambda^T f(x,y) \ge 0$, $y \ge 0$, $\lambda \in \Lambda^+$

where $f: \mathbb{R}^n \times \mathbb{R}^m \to \mathbb{R}^p$, and proved the symmetric duality theorem under the convexity – concavity assumptions on f(x, y). Here the minimization is taken in the sense of proper efficiency as given by Geoffrion [58].

Further on the lines of scalar case (Mond and Weir [116]) also considered another pair of symmetric dual programs and proved symmetric duality results under pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity:

(PS1): Minimize
$$f(x, y)$$

Subject to
$$\nabla_2 \lambda^T f(x, y) \leq 0,$$
$$y^T \nabla_2 \lambda^T f(x, y) \geq 0$$
$$x \geq 0, \lambda \in \Lambda^+$$

(**DS1**): Maximize
$$f(x,y) - (x^T \nabla_1 \lambda^T f(x,y)) e$$

Subject to $\nabla_1 \lambda^T f(x,y) \ge 0$, $x^T \nabla_1 \lambda^T f(x,y) \le 0$, $y \ge 0$, $\lambda \in \Lambda^+$.

Later Chandra and Durga Prasad [34] introduced the following pair of multiobjective programs by associating a vector valued infinite game:

(PS*): Minimize
$$f(x,y) - (y^T \nabla_y \mu^T f(x,y)) e$$

Subject to $\nabla_y \mu^T f(x,y) \leq 0$, $x \geq 0$, $\mu \in \Lambda^+$.
(DS*): Maximize $f(x,y) - (x^T \nabla_x \lambda^T f(x,y)) e$
Subject to $\nabla_x \lambda^T f(x,y) \geq 0$, $y \geq 0$, $\lambda \in \Lambda^+$

Here it may be noted that not the same λ is appearing in (PS*) and (DS*) and this creates certain difficulties which are also discussed in [34].

1.3.3 Variational Problems

Differentiable Variational Problems

A variational problem can be considered as a particular case of an optimal control problem in which the control function is the derivative of a state function.

In [43] Courant and Hilbert, quoting an earlier work of Friedrichs [56], gave a dual relationship for a simple type of unconstrained variational problem. Subsequently, Hanson [60] pointed out that some of the duality results of mathematical programming have analogues in variational calculus. Exploring this relationship between mathematical programming and the classical calculus of variations, Mond and Hanson [105] formulated a constrained variational problem as a mathematical programming problem and using Valentine's [145] optimality conditions for the same, presented its

Wolfe type dual variational problem for validating various duality results under convexity.

Mathematically, a variational problem is of the form:

(VP): Minimize
$$\int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}) dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = \alpha, x(b) = \beta$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}) \le 0, \qquad t \in I,$$

$$x \in C(I, \mathbb{R}^n).$$

where I = [a,b] is a real time interval, \dot{x} denotes derivative of x with respect to t, $f: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$ and $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$ are continuously differentiable functions with respect to each of their arguments; $C(I,R^n)$ is the space of continuously differentiable functions $x: I \to R^n$, and is equipped with the norm $||x|| = ||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty}$, where the differentiation operator D is given by $u = Dx \Leftrightarrow x(t) = \alpha + \int_{a}^{t} u(s) ds$ except at discontinuities.

The following necessary conditions for the existence for (VP) are derived by Valentine [145].

Theorem 1.1: For every minimizing arc $x = x^{\circ}(t)$ of the problem (VP), there exists a function of the form

$$H = \lambda_{\circ} f(t, x, \dot{x}) - \lambda(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x})$$

Such that

$$H_{\dot{x}} = \frac{d}{dt} H_{x}$$

$$\lambda(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}) = 0$$

$$(\lambda_{\circ}, \lambda(t)) \ge 0, (\lambda_{\circ}, \lambda(t)) \ne 0, t \in I$$

hold throughout I (except at corners of x° where $H_{\dot{x}} = \frac{d}{dt}H_{x}$, holds for unique right and left limits). Here λ_{\circ} is constant and $\lambda(\cdot)$ is continuous except possibly for values of t corresponding to corners of x° .

Following is the Wolfe type dual variational problem [105] for validating various duality results under convexity:

(WD): Maximize
$$\int_{i}^{\infty} \left(f(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$\left(f_{u}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) - D\left(f_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) = 0$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

Later Bector, Chandra and Husain [15] studied Mond-Weir type duality for the problem of [105] for weakening its convexity requirement.

(MWD): Maximize
$$\int_{i}^{t} f(t,u,\dot{u}) dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$\left(f_{u}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) - D\left(f_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) = 0$$

$$\int_{I}^{t} y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) dt > 0$$

$$y(t) > 0 , t \in I$$

Nondifferentiable Variational Problems

Chandra, Craven and Husain [30] obtained necessary optimality conditions for a constrained continuous programming problem having term with a square root of a quadratic form in the objective function, and using these optimality conditions formulated Wolfe type dual which is given below:

(NVP): Minimize
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f(t, x, \dot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right\} dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = \alpha, x(b) = \beta$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}) \leq 0, \qquad t \in I,$$

(WNVP): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B(t) z(t) + y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u}) \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha, u(b) = \beta$$

$$f_{u}(t,u,\dot{u})dt + B(t)z(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t,u,\dot{u})$$

$$= D(f_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u})), t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}(t)^{T} B(t)\overline{z}(t) \leq 1, t \in I$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

Subsequently, Bector, Chandra and Husain [16] constructed a Mond-Weir dual which allows weakening of convexity hypothesis of [30] and derived various duality results under generalized convexity of functionals.

The Mond-Weir dual model to the problem (NVP) is given as:

(MWNVP): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left(f(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B(t) z(t) \right) dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$f_{u}(t,u,\dot{u}) dt + B(t) z(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t,u,\dot{u})$$

$$= D \left(f_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u}) \right) , t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u}) dt \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}(t)^T B(t)\overline{z}(t) \leq 1, t \in I$$

$$y(t) \ge 0$$
, $t \in I$

Husain and Jabeen [70] replaced the square root of quadratic form by the support function of a compact convex set that is somewhat more general and for which the subdifferential may be simply expressed. Fritz John and Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type necessary optimality conditions for this nondifferentiable continuous programming are derived in which nondifferentiability enters due to appearance of support functions in the integrand of the objective functional as well as in each constraint function.

The model for this nondifferentiable variational problem is:-

(CP): Minimize
$$\int_{I} \left(f(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t)) + s(x(t)|K) \right) dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = \alpha, x(b) = \beta$$

$$g^{j}(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t)) + s(x(t)|C^{j}) \le 0, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

Where f and g are continuously differentiable and each C^j , j=1,2,...,m is a compact convex set in \mathbb{R}^n .

The following is the Wolfe type dual problem to the problem (CP):

(WCD): Maximize
$$\psi(u, \lambda, z, \omega^{1}, ..., \omega^{m}) = \int_{I} \left[f(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \lambda^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} \omega^{j}(t) \right) \right] dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$f_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}) - z(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \lambda^{j}(t) \left(g_{u}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + \omega^{j}(t) \right)$$

$$= D\left(f_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) \right) , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}(t) \in K_{i}, \omega^{j}(t) \in C^{j}, t \in I, j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$\lambda(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

The Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (CP) is given as,

(M-WCD): Maximize
$$\psi(u, \lambda, z, \omega^{1}, ..., \omega^{m}) = \int_{I} (f(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z(t)) dt$$

Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$f_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}) + z(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \lambda^{j}(t) (g_{u}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + \omega^{j}(t))$$

$$= D(f_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u})) , t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} \lambda^{j}(t) (g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} \omega^{j}(t)) dt \geq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\overline{z}(t) \in K_{i}, \omega^{j}(t) \in C^{j}, t \in I, j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$\lambda(t) \geq 0, t \in I.$$

Following the scheme of formulation in Bector *et.al.* [12] and Xu [157], Husain and Jabeen [71] formulated the following mixed type dual (Mix CD) to (CP).

(Mix CD):
$$\underset{u \in X, \lambda, z, \omega^{i}, \dots, \omega^{m}}{\operatorname{Maximize}} \int_{I} \left[f\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u\left(t\right)^{T} z\left(t\right) \right.$$

$$+ \sum_{j \in J_{o}}^{m} \lambda^{j} \left(t\right) \left(g^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u\left(t\right)^{T} \omega^{j} \left(t\right) \right) \right] dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha \ , \ u(b) = \beta$$

$$f_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + z\left(t\right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \lambda^{j} \left(t\right) \left(g_{u}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + \omega^{j} \left(t\right) \right)$$

$$= D \left(f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + \lambda \left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) \right) \ , \ t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=J_{a}}^{m} \int_{I} \lambda^{j} \left(t\right) \left(g^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u\left(t\right)^{T} \omega^{j} \left(t\right) \right) dt \geq 0 \ , \ t \in I, \ \alpha = 1, \dots, r \ ,$$

$$\overline{z} \left(t\right) \in K_{i} \ , \ \omega^{j} \left(t\right) \in C^{j} \quad , t \in I, \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m,$$

$$\lambda(t) \geq 0 \ , \ t \in I \ .$$

where $J_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ with $\bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} J_{\alpha} = M$ and $J_{\alpha} \cap J_{\beta} = \emptyset$, if $\alpha \neq \beta$.

If $J_{\circ} = M$ and $J_{\alpha} = \phi$ for $\alpha \in \{1, 2, ..., r\}$, then the (Mix CD) becomes the problem (WCD). In case $J_{\circ} = \phi$ and $J_{\alpha} = M$ for some $\alpha \in \{1, 2, ..., r\}$, then (Mix CD) becomes (M-WCD).

Multiobjective Variational Problems

Differentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems

Many authors have studied optimality and duality for multiobjective variational problems. Bector and Husain [19] were probably the first to introduce multiobjective programming in calculus of variation. They considered the following multiobjective variational problem (VP):

(**VP**): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} (f^{1}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t)))dt,...,\int_{I} (f^{p}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t)))dt\right)$$

Subject to $x(a) = \alpha, x(b) = \beta$

$$g(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t)) \leq 0, t \in I,$$

$$x \in C(I,R^n)$$

where, $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, $i \in P = 1, 2, ..., p$, $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$, are assumed to be continuously differentiable functions, for each $t \in I$, $i \in P$, $B^i(t)$ is an $n \times n$ positive semidefinite symmetric matrix with $B^i(\cdot)$ continuous on I.

Bector and Husain [19] constructed Wolfe type dual and Mond-Weir type dual and proved various duality theorems under convexity and generalized convexity of functionals.

(WD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{i}^{\infty} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

$$, \dots, \int_{i}^{\infty} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{u} + y(t)^{T} g_{u}\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}\right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \lambda^{T} e = 1$$

where $e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T$ and $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^k$.

The following Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (VP):

(M-WD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta ,$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{u} + y(t)^{T} g_{u} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\int_{1} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}) dt \geq 0 ,$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\lambda > 0 .$$

Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems

In [97], Mishra and Mukerjee discussed duality for multiobjective variational problems involving generalized (F, ρ) -convex functions. In [91], Liu proved only some weak duality theorem for nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problems involving generalized (F, ρ) -convex functions.

Kim *et al.* [85] considered the following nondifferentiable variational problem:

(MP):Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t)) + \left(x(t)^{T}B^{1}(t)x(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right) dt$$

$$,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t)) + \left(x(t)^{T}B^{p}(t)x(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha , x(b) = \beta$$
$$g(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t)) \leq 0, t \in I,$$
$$x \in C(I, \mathbb{R}^n)$$

where, $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, $i \in P = 1, 2, ..., p$, $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$, are assumed to be continuously differentiable functions, for each $t \in I$, $i \in P$, $B^i(t)$ is an $n \times n$ positive semidefinite symmetric matrix with $B^i(\cdot)$ continuous on I.

The following are the Wolfe type and Mond-Weir type dual model for the problem (MP) considered in Kim et al [85]:

(MDP1): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt + \left(y(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) \omega^{1}(t) \right) + \lambda(t)^{T} g(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) \right) dt + \lambda(t)^{T} g(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt + \left(y(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) \omega^{p}(t) \right) + \lambda(t)^{T} g(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt \right)$$

Subject to

$$y(a) = \alpha , y(b) = \beta$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} \left(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t) \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) \omega(t) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{x} \left(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t) \right) \right)$$

$$= D \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \left(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t) \right) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \left(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t) \right) \right\}$$

$$\omega^{i} \left(t \right)^{T} B^{i} \left(t \right) \omega^{i} \left(t \right) \leq 1 , i \in P$$

$$\lambda(t) \geq 0 , \tau^{i} \geq 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} = 1$$

$$y \in C\left(I, R^{n} \right) , \omega \in C\left(I, R^{n} \right) , \lambda \in C\left(I, R^{m} \right) .$$

(MDP2): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{l} \left(f^{1}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt + y(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) \omega^{1}(t) \right) dt \right.$$

$$\left(\int_{l} \left(f^{p}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt + \left(y(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) \omega^{p}(t) \right) \right) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$y(a) = \alpha , y(b) = \beta$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) + B^{i}(t) \omega(t) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) \right)$$

$$= D \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} f_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) + \lambda(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) \right\}$$

$$\int_{l} \lambda(t)^{T} g(t, y(t), \dot{y}(t)) dt \ge 0$$

 $\omega^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \omega^{i}(t) \leq 1, i \in P, t \in I$

 $y \in C(I, \mathbb{R}^n)$, $\omega \in C(I, \mathbb{R}^n)$, $\lambda \in C(I, \mathbb{R}^m)$.

 $\lambda(t) \ge 0$, $\tau_i \ge 0$, $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau_i = 1$

1.3.4 Symmetric Duality for Variational Problems

Mond and Hanson [108] and Bector, Chandra and Husain [15] extended symmetric duality to Variational problems. In [108] they investigated Wolfe type duality symmetric duality for the variational problems (VP). Later [15] Bector, Chandra and Husain studied Mond-Weir type symmetric dual variational problems in order to weaken the convexity-concavity assumptions. Smart and Mond [141] applied invexity for Variational problems introduced by Mond, Chandra and Husain [103] to symmetric dual Variational problems without nonnegetivity constraints of Mond and Hanson [105], but subjecting invexity to an additional condition.

Mond and Hanson [108] studied symmetric duality for the following variational problem under convexity / concavity assumptions:

(**Primal):** Minimize
$$\int_{a}^{b} \left\{ f\left(t, x, x, y, y\right) - y\left(t\right)^{T} f_{y}\left(t, x, x, y, y\right) + y\left(t\right) \frac{d}{dt} f_{y}\left(t, x, x, y, y\right) \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha , x(b) = \beta$$

$$y(a) = \gamma , y(b) = \delta$$

$$\frac{d}{dt} f_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \ge f_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})$$

$$x(t) \ge 0$$

(**Dual**): Maximize $\int_{a}^{b} \left\{ f\left(t, u, u \& v, v \& -u(t)^{T} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, v \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& v, u \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& v, u \& +u(t) \frac{d}{dt} f_{x}\left(t, u, u \& v, u \& v, u \& u, u \& v, u \& v, u \& u, u \& u, u \end{pmatrix}\right)\right)\right\}$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$v(a) = \gamma , v(b) = \delta$$

$$\frac{d}{dt} f_{\dot{x}}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \leq f_{\dot{x}}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v})$$

$$v(t) \geq 0$$

Let I = [a,b] be the real interval, $x: I \to R^n$ and $y: I \to R^m$, x and \dot{x} denote derivatives of x and y respectively with respect to t and f(t,x,x,y,y) is a continuously differentiable scalar function. They needed f to be convex in x and \dot{x} for each y and \dot{y} and concave in y and \dot{y} for each x and \dot{x} .

If the constraints $x(t) \ge 0$ and $y(t) \ge 0$ are removed from the above problem primal and dual problems respectively, we get the pair considered by Smart and Mond [141], wherein weak duality theorem is proved assuming the functional $\int_a^b f \, dt$ to be invex in x and \dot{x} and $-\int_a^b f \, dt$ to be invex in y and \dot{y} .

Subsequently, Bector, Chandra and Husain [15] presented a pair of Mond-Weir type symmetric dual variational problems in order to relax convexity-concavity to pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity.

The following are the primal and dual problems formulated in [15]:

Problem I (Primal) = P

Minimize
$$\int_{a}^{b} f(t, x, x, y, y) dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = \alpha , x(b) = \beta$$

$$y(a) = \gamma , y(b) = \delta$$

$$f_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - Df_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \le 0$$

$$\int_{a}^{b} y(t)^{T} (f_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - Df_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) dt \ge 0$$

$$x(t) \ge 0$$

Problem II (Dual) = D

Maximize
$$\int_{a}^{b} f(t, x, x, y, y) dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = \alpha , x(b) = \beta$$

$$y(a) = \gamma , y(b) = \delta$$

$$f_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - Df_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \ge 0$$

$$\int_{a}^{b} x(t)^{T} (f_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - Df_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) dt \le 0$$

$$y(t) \ge 0.$$

The usual duality results are derived for above pair of Mond-Weir problems under pseudoconvexity and pseudoconcavity. The close relationship between the duality results for the pair in [15] and those of its counterpart is pointed out.

Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems

Gulalti, Husain and Ahmed [59] studied symmetric duality for multiobjective variational problems under appropriate invexity assumptions.

Following is the pair of the Wolfe type multiobjective symmetric dual variational problems constructed in [59]:

(VP): Minimize
$$\int_{a}^{b} \left[f(t, x, x, y, y) - \left\{ y(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, x, x, y, y) \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{x}(t, x, x, y, y) \right\} e \right] dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b) , \quad y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b) , \quad \dot{y}(a) = 0 = \dot{y}(b)$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \leq D \lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

$$\lambda^{T} e = 1$$

The dual to this problem is:

(VD): Maximize
$$\int_{a}^{b} \left[f(t, u, u \& v, v) - \left\{ u(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x}(t, u, u \& v, v) - D \lambda^{T} f_{x}(t, x, x \& y, v) \right) \right\} e \right] dt$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = 0 = u(b) \quad , \quad v(a) = 0 = v(b)$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b) \quad , \quad \dot{v}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b)$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{x}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \leq D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \quad , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

$$\lambda^{T} e = 1$$

where $f: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^m \times R^m \to R^p$ is twice continuously differentiable and $e = (1,1,...,1)^T \in R^p$. If p=1, the problems (VP) and (VD) reduce to single objective symmetric dual variational problems considered by Smart and Mond [141].

In [59], the following pair of Mond-Weir type multiobjective symmetric dual variational problems are considered:

(**VP**): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{a}^{b} f^{1}(t,x(t),\mathscr{X}(t),y(t),\mathscr{Y}(t))dt\right)$$

,K, $\int_{a}^{b} f^{p}(t,x(t),\mathscr{X}(t),y(t),\mathscr{Y}(t))dt$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b) , \quad y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b) , \quad \dot{y}(a) = 0 = \dot{y}(b)$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), y(t), \dot{y}(t)) \leq D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}}(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), y(t), \dot{y}(t)), t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{y})(t, x(t), \mathcal{X}(t), y(t), \mathcal{X}(t)) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{a}^{b} y(t)^{T} D(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{\mathcal{X}}})(t, x(t), \dot{\mathcal{X}}(t), y(t), \dot{\mathcal{X}}(t)) dt$$

$$x(t) \geq 0 , \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 .$$

(VD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{a}^{b} f^{1}(t,u(t),u(t),v(t),v(t),v(t))dt\right)$$

,K, $\int_{a}^{b} f^{p}(t,u(t),u(t),v(t),v(t),v(t))dt$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b) , \quad v(a) = 0 = v(b)$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b) , \quad \dot{v}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b)$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, u(t), \dot{u}(t), v(t), \dot{v}(t)) \leq D\lambda^{T} f_{y}(t, u(t), \dot{u}(t), v(t), \dot{v}(t)) , t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{y})(t, u(t), u(t), v(t), v(t)) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{a}^{b} y(t)^{T} D(\lambda^{T} g_{s})(t, u(t), v(t), v(t), v(t)) dt$$

$$v(t) \geq 0 , \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0.$$

1.3.5 Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivative

Husain and Jabeen [73] presented the following variational problem (P) with higher order derivatives as to study optimality and duality.

(P): Minimize
$$\int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha , \quad x(b) = \beta$$
$$\dot{x}(a) = \gamma , \quad \dot{x}(b) = \delta$$
$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \ge 0 , \quad t \in I$$
$$h(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0 , \quad t \in I$$

where

- 1) $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$ and $h: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^k$ are continuously differentiable function
- 2) X designates the space of piecewise functions $x: I \to R^n$ possessing derivatives \dot{x} and \ddot{x} with the norm $||x|| = ||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty}$, where the differentiation operator D is given by

$$u = D x \Leftrightarrow x(t) = \alpha + \int_{a}^{t} u(s) ds$$

where α is given boundary value; thus $D = \frac{d}{dt}$ except at discontinuities.

Theorem 1.2 [73] (*Fritz John Optimality Conditions*): If \overline{x} is an optimal solution of (P) and $h_x(x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot))$ maps X into the subspace of $C(I, R^k)$, then there exists Lagrange multiplier $\overline{\tau} \in R$, the piecewise smooth $\overline{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\overline{z}: I \to R^k$ satisfying

$$\begin{split} &\left(\overline{\tau} \, f_x \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) + \lambda \left(t\right)^T \, g_x \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) + \mu \left(t\right)^T \, h \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right)_x\right) \\ &= D \left(\overline{\tau} \, f_{\dot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) - \lambda \left(t\right)^T \, g_x \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) - \mu \left(t\right)^T \, h_{\dot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right) \\ &- D^2 \left(\overline{\tau} \, f_{\ddot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) - \lambda \left(t\right)^T \, g_{\ddot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) - \mu \left(t\right)^T \, h_{\ddot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right), \, t \in I, \\ &\lambda \left(t\right)^T \, g \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0 \, , \, t \in I \, , \\ &\left(\overline{\tau}, \lambda \left(t\right)\right) \underset{=}{\geq} 0 \, , \, t \in I \, , \\ &\left(\overline{\tau}, \lambda \left(t\right), \mu \left(t\right)\right) \neq 0 \, , \, t \in I \, . \end{split}$$

Husain et al. [73] formulated Wolfe type dual to variational problem (P).

Dual (WD): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left(f\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) - \lambda\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) - \mu\left(t\right)^{T} h\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} x(a) &= \alpha \quad , \quad x(b) = \beta \\ \dot{x}(a) &= \gamma \quad , \quad \dot{x}(b) = \delta \end{split}$$

$$\left(f_x(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) + \lambda(t)^T g_x(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) + \mu(t)^T h(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}})_x \right) \\ &= D \left(f_{\dot{x}}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) - \lambda(t)^T g_x(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) - \mu(t)^T h_{\dot{x}}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) \right) \\ &- D^2 \left(f_{\ddot{x}}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) - \lambda(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) - \mu(t)^T h_{\ddot{x}}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) \right), t \in I, \\ \lambda(t) \geq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I \end{split}$$

Following Mond-Weir dual model was formulated by Husain et al [73] in order to further weaken pseudoinvexity requirements.

(**M-WD**) Maximize
$$\int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha$$
 , $x(b) = \beta$
 $\dot{x}(a) = \gamma$, $\dot{x}(b) = \delta$

$$\begin{split} &\left(f_{x}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)+\lambda\left(t\right)^{T}g_{x}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)+\mu\left(t\right)^{T}h_{x}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right)\\ &=D\left(f_{\dot{x}}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)-\lambda\left(t\right)^{T}g_{x}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)-\mu\left(t\right)^{T}h_{\dot{x}}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right)\\ &-D^{2}\left(f_{\ddot{x}}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)-\lambda\left(t\right)^{T}g_{\ddot{x}}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)-\mu\left(t\right)^{T}h_{\dot{x}}\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right),\ t\in I,\\ &\int_{I}\left(\lambda\left(t\right)^{T}g\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)+\mu\left(t\right)^{T}h\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}}\right)\right)dt\leq0\\ &\lambda(t)\geq0\ ,\ t\in I \end{split}$$

Summary of the Thesis

The research work reported in this thesis is presented in chapters 2-7. The results in these chapters are briefly summarized as follows.

Chapter 2

Chapter 2 has two sections, 2.1 and 2.2. In the section 2.1, we consider the following nondifferentiable nonlinear programming problem with support functions:

(NP): Minimize
$$(f^1(x)+S(x|C^1),...,f^p(x)+S(x|C^p))$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(x) + S(x|D^{j}) \leq 0, j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

where,

- i. $f^i: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}$ and $g^j: \mathbb{R}^n \to \mathbb{R}$, j = 1, 2, ..., m are differentiable functions and
- **ii.** $S(\cdot|C^i)$, i=1,2,...,p and $S(\cdot|D^j)$, j=1,2,...,m are support functions of a compact convex set C^i , i=1,2,...,p and D^j , j=1,2,...,m in R^n .

For this problem, we formulate the following Wolfe and Mond-Weir type dual problems and establish various duality results under invexity / generalized invexity assumptions.

The following Wolfe type dual to the problem (NP) is presented:

(WND): Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}z^{1} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j} \right) \right)$$

 $\dots, f^{p}(u) + u^{T}z^{p} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j} \right)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p ,$$

$$w^{j} \in D^{j} , \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m ,$$

$$y \ge 0 ,$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{j=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1 .$$

The Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (NP) is given as:

(**M-WND**): Maximize
$$(f^{1}(u)+u^{T}z^{1},...,f^{p}(u)+u^{T}z^{p})$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla (f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i}) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j}) = 0,$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j}) \ge 0,$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \quad y \ge 0$$

Several known results are deduced as special cases.

In section 2.2, mixed type duality is studied under suitable invexity / generalized invexity requirements to unify Wolfe and Mond-Weir type dual problem considered in section 2.1.

The following is the mixed type dual (Mix D) to (NP):

(**Mix D**): Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}z^{1} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j}) \right)$$

 $,..., f^{p}(u) + u^{T}z^{p} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0 \,, \\ &\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \geq 0 \,, \, \alpha = 1, 2, \dots, r \,, \\ &z^{i} \in C^{i} \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p \,, \\ &w^{j} \in D^{j} \quad , \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m \,, \\ &y \geq 0 \,, \\ &\lambda \in \Lambda \,, \end{split}$$

where $\Lambda = \left\{ \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^p \middle| \lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i = 1 \right\}.$

where $J_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, $\alpha = 0, 1, 2, ..., r$ with $\bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} J_{\alpha} = M$ and $J_{\alpha} \bigcap J_{\beta} = \phi$, if $\alpha \neq \beta$.

For the above pair of problems (VP) and (Mix D), various duality results have been established and special cases are also deduced.

Chapter 3

The main purpose of this chapter is to present continuous-time version of the results of section 2.1 of chapter 2. This chapter deals with Wolfe type duality and Mond-Weir type duality for multiobjective

variational problems containing support functions in objective as well as in constraint functions.

In this chapter we present the following nondifferentiable variational problem:

(CP): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x \middle| C^{1}\right)\right) dt, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x \middle| C^{p}\right)\right) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha$$
 , $x(b) = \beta$

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x})+S(x|D^{j})\leq 0, j=1,2,...,m, t\in I,$$

where,

 $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p), $g^j: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (j = 1, 2, ..., m) are continuously differentiable function, and for each C^i , i = 1, ..., p and D^j , j = 1, ..., m are compact convex set in R^n .

For this problem (CP), the Wolfe and Mond-Weir type dual variational problems are constructed and various duality theorems are proven under invexity / generalized invexity requirements.

The following is Wolfe type dual (WCD) for the problem (CP).

(WCD): Maximize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{1}\left(t\right)+\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(g^{j}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} w^{j}\left(t\right)\right)\right) dt$$

$$,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{p}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha$$
, $u(b) = \beta$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) = D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y(t) g_{x} \right), \ t \in I$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$
 $w^{j}(t) \in D^{j}$, $j = 1, 2, ..., m$
 $\lambda > 0$, $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$

We further weaken the invexity requirements by formulating Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (CP).

(M-WCD): Maximize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{1}\left(t\right)\right) dt, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{p}\left(t\right)\right) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t)) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) (g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)) = D(\lambda^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}), t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t)^{T} (g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t)) dt \ge 0,$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i} , i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j} , j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$y(t) \ge 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 .$$

The problems related to the above variational problems are also discussed.

Chapter 4

This chapter is devoted to the study a more general class of variational problems than the existing variational problem, treated by Mond and Hanson [105]. The basic purpose of this chapter is to study optimality criteria and duality for multiobjective variational problems having higher order derivatives. This chapter consists of three sections, 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3. In section 4.1, we present the following variational problem:

(VPE) Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$h(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0 , t \in I$$

where

- 1. $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$ and $h: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^k$ are continuously differentiable function, and
- 2. X designates the space of piecewise functions $x: I \to R^n$ possessing derivatives \dot{x} and \ddot{x} with the norm $||x|| = ||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty}$, where the differentiation operator D is given by

$$u = Dx \Leftrightarrow x(t) = \alpha + \int_{a}^{t} u(s) ds$$
,

where α is given boundary value; thus $D = \frac{d}{dt}$ except at discontinuities.

In the results to follow, we use $C(I, R^m)$ to denote the space of continuous functions $\phi: I \to R^k$ with the uniform norm $\|\phi\| = Sup |\phi|_{t \in I}$; the partial derivatives of g and h are $m \times n$ and $k \times n$ matrices respectively; superscript T denotes matrix transpose.

For this variational problem, Fritz John and Karush-Kuhn-Tuker type optimality conditions are derived.

Theorem 4.1 (*Fritz John Optimality Conditions*): If \bar{x} is an optimal solution of (P_0) and $h_x(x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot))$ maps X into the subspace of $C(I, R^k)$,

then there exists Lagrange multiplier $\overline{\tau} \in R$, the piecewise smooth $\overline{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\overline{z}: I \to R^k$, such that

$$\begin{split} \left(\overline{\tau}\,\phi_{x} + \overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T}\,g_{x} + \overline{z}\left(t\right)^{T}\,h_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\tau}\,\phi_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T}\,g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}\left(t\right)^{T}\,h_{\dot{x}}\right) \\ + D^{2}\left(\overline{\tau}\,\phi_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T}\,g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}\left(t\right)^{T}\,h_{\dot{x}}\right) = 0, \, t \in I, \\ \overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T}\,g\left(t,\overline{x},\dot{x},\dot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0, \, t \in I, \\ \left(\overline{\tau},\overline{y}\left(t\right)\right) \geq 0, \, t \in I, \\ \left(\overline{\tau},\overline{y}\left(t\right),\overline{z}\left(t\right)\right) \neq 0, \, t \in I. \end{split}$$

If $\bar{\tau} = 1$, then the above optimality conditions will reduce to the Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type optimality conditions and the solution \bar{x} is commonly referred to as a normal solution.

Theorem 4.2 (*Karush-Kuhn-Tucker Conditions*): Let \overline{x} be an efficient solution for (VPE) which is assumed to be normal for (\overline{P}_r) for each $r=1,2,\ldots,p$. Let the constraints of (P_r) satisfy Slater's Constraint Qualification [5] for each $r=1,2,\ldots,p$. Then there exist $\overline{\lambda}^T \in R_+^k$, $\overline{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\overline{z}: I \to R^k$, such that the following relation hold for all $t \in I$,

$$\begin{split} \left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_x + \overline{y}(t)^T g_x + \overline{z}(t)^T h_x\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^T g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^T h_{\dot{x}}\right) \\ + D^2 \left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^T h_{\ddot{x}}\right) &= 0, \ t \in I \\ \overline{y}(t)^T g\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) &= 0, \ t \in I \\ \overline{\lambda} > 0, \quad y(t) \geq 0, \ t \in I \end{split}$$

As an application of the above Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type optimality conditions, the following Wolfe dual problem is formulated.

(WD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{i}^{1} \left(f^{T}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

$$\dots, \int_{i}^{1} \left(f^{P}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b)$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \lambda^{T} e = 1$$

For the pair of dual problems (VP) and (WD), usual duality theorems are validated under the extended invexity conditions. In this section, it is also shown that the results of this section can be related to those of the nonlinear programs studied earlier.

In the section 4.2, using the optimality conditions derived in the section 4.1, the following Mond-Weir type dual variational problem is formulated and various duality results are proved under generalized invexity defined in the section 4.1.

(M-WD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt\right)$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b),$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b),$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right)$$

$$+ D^{2}\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) = 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\int_{1}^{\infty} y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) dt \ge 0,$$

$$y(t) \ge 0, \quad t \in I,$$

$$\lambda > 0.$$

As in the section 4.1, in this section also, the relationship between our results and those of static cases is outlined. In the section 4.3, we present the following mixed type dual problem for unifying the two dual models incorporated in the section 4.1 and 4.2 and present similar results to those in these sections.

(Mix VD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$\left(\lambda f_{u} + y(t)^{T} g_{u}\right) - D\left(\lambda f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}\right)$$

$$+ D^{2}\left(\lambda f_{\ddot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, \quad t \in I,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

where $I_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ with $\bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} I_{\alpha} = M$ and $I_{\alpha} \cap I_{\beta} = \phi$, if $\alpha \neq \beta$.

Related problems are also deduced.

Chapter 5

In chapter 5, we study optimality and duality for a class of nondifferentiable variational problem involving higher order derivatives containing nondifferentiable terms for the following problem (VP):

(VP): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I,$$

where, $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (i=1,2,...,p), $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$, are assumed to be continuously differentiable functions, for each $i \in P = \{i=1,2,...,p\}$, $B^i(t)$ is an $n \times n$ positive semidefinite symmetric matrix with $B^i(\cdot)$ continuous on I.

The purpose of this chapter is to extend the duality results of the chapter 4 to nondifferentiable case. This chapter contains two sections 5.1 and 5.2. In subsection 5.1.1 optimality conditions for the variational problems are obtained and these conditions are used to formulate duals to study Wolfe type vector duality and Mond-Weir type vector duality under invexity / generalized invexity defined in chapter 4. The related problems are also incorporated.

The following is the Wolfe type dual to the problem (VP):

(**MWD**): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) + y(t)^{T} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} u(a) &= 0 = u(b) \\ \dot{u}(a) &= 0 = \dot{u}(b) \\ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) dt + B^{i} \left(t \right) z^{i} \left(t \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \\ &- D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \\ &+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) = 0 , t \in I \\ \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right)^{T} B^{i} \left(t \right) \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) \leq 1 , t \in I , i \in P \\ y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I \\ \lambda > 0 , \lambda^{T} e = 1 \end{split}$$

Following is the Mond-Weir type vector dual to the problem (VP):

(M-WVD):Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T}B^{1}(t)z^{1}(t) \right) dt \right)$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T}B^{p}(t)z^{p}(t) \right) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) dt + B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$-D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) + D^{2}(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$

$$\lambda > 0, y(t) > 0, t \in I$$

In the section 5.2, under invexity and generalized invexity, we study mixed type duality for (VP) that combines Wolfe and Mond-Weir type duals presented section in 5.1. As in section 5.1, here also the results of variational problems are shown to be connected with those of nonlinear programming.

Following is the mixed type dual to the problem (VP):

(**Mix D**): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b),$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b),$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$-D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}) + D^{2} (\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}}) = 0, t \in I,$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P.$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}.$$

where

(i)
$$\Lambda^{+} = \left\{ \lambda \in R^{p} \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^{T} \in R^{p} \right\}$$

(ii)
$$J_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}, \ \alpha = 0, 1, 2, ..., r \text{ with } \bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} J_{\alpha} = M \text{ and }$$

$$J_{\alpha} \bigcap J_{\beta} = \phi \text{,if } \alpha \neq \beta.$$

Chapter 6

This chapter is aimed to unify the existing pairs of formulations of Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems

Now, we state the following pair of mixed type multiobjective symmetric dual variational problems involving vector functions f and g.

(Mix SP): Minimize
$$F(x^1, x^2, y^1, y^2) = \int_I \{f(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1) + g(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2) - y^1(t)^T (\lambda^T f_{y^1}(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1) - D\lambda^T f_{\dot{y}^1}(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1)) e \} dt$$
Subject to
$$x^1(a) = 0 = x^1(b) , \quad y^1(a) = 0 = y^1(b) ,$$

$$x^2(a) = 0 = x^2(b) , \quad y^2(a) = 0 = y^2(b) ,$$

$$\lambda^T f_{\dot{y}^1}(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1) - D\lambda^T f_{\dot{y}^1}(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1) \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2}(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2) - D\lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2}(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2) \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_I y^2(t)^T (\lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2}(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2) - D\lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2}(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2) \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$-D\lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2}(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2, \dot{y}^2) \geq 0 ,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+ .$$

The dual formulation of the above problem is:

(Mix SD): Maximize
$$G(u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}) = \int_{I} \{f(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + g(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2})\}$$

$$-u^{1}(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}))$$

$$-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}))e\} dt$$
Subject to
$$u^{1}(a) = 0 = u^{1}(b) , v^{1}(a) = 0 = v^{1}(b) ,$$

$$u^{2}(a) = 0 = u^{2}(b) , v^{2}(a) = 0 = v^{2}(b) ,$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \geq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \geq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_{I} u^{2}(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \geq 0 ,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} .$$

where
$$\Lambda^+ = \left\{ \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^p \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^T e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T \in \mathbb{R}^p \right\}$$

For the above pair of problems, weak and strong and self duality theorem under invexity / generalized invexity, are proved. Special cases are deduced and it is also pointed out that our results can be considered as dynamic generalizations of corresponding (static) symmetric duality results in multiobjective nonlinear programming.

Chapter 7

Chapter 7 is divided into two sections, 7.1 and 7.2. In the section 7.1 we consider the pairs of Wolfe type symmetric dual (SWP) and (SWD) and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual (SM-WP) and (SM-WD) multiobjective variational problems containing support functions. This chapter is essentially an extension of the results of chapter 7 of nondifferentiable case.

In the section 7.1, we consider the following is the pair of Wolfe type symmetric multiobjective dual variational problems, (SWP) and (SWD):

(SWP): Minimize:
$$\int_{I} (H^{1}, H^{2}, ..., H^{p}) dt$$

Subject to: $x(a) = 0 = x(b)$
 $y(a) = 0 = y(b)$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) \leq 0, t \in I$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}, i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$x(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} = \left\{ \lambda \in R^{p} \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = \left(1, 1, \dots, 1\right)^{T} \in R^{p} \right\}$$
(SWD): Maximize:
$$\int_{C} \left(G^{1}, G^{2}, \dots, G^{p}\right) dt$$

Subject to:

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$

$$v(a) = 0 = v(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right) \ge 0, t \in I$$

$$\omega^{i} (t) \in K^{i}, i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$v(t) \ge 0, \ t \in I$$

 $\lambda \in \Lambda^+$

where,

1.
$$H^{i} = f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + s(x(t)|C^{i})$$

 $-y(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f^{i}_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + z^{i}(t) - Df^{i}_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) - y(t)^{T} z(t)$

- 2. $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R, (i = 1, 2, ..., p)$, is continuously differentiable function.
- 3. $G^{i} = f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + s(v(t)|K^{i})$ $-u(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v})) - x(t)^{T} \omega(t)$

The following is the pair of Mond-Weir type symmetric multiobjective dual variational problems (SM-WP) and (SM-WD):

(SM-WP): Maximize:
$$\int_{I} \left(\Phi^{1}, \Phi^{2}, ..., \Phi^{p}\right) dt$$
Subject to:
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})\right) \leq 0, t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{T}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})\right) dt \geq 0$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}, i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$x(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

(SM-WD): Minimize: $\int_{I} (\psi^{1}, \psi^{2}, ..., \psi^{p}) dt$

Subject to:

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$
$$v(a) = 0 = v(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) \geq 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{T} \left(t \right) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) dt \leq 0$$

$$\omega^{i} \left(t \right) \in K^{i}, \ i = 1, ..., p$$

$$v(t) \geq 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

where

1.
$$\Phi^{i} = f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + s(x(t)|C^{i}) - y(t)^{T}z(t)$$
, $i = 1, ..., p$

2.
$$\psi^{i} = f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - s(v(t)|K^{i}) + u(t)^{T} \omega(t)$$
, $i = 1, ..., p$

For above pairs of problems, weak, strong and self duality theorems under convexity-concavity and pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity, are proved. The problems with natural boundary values are also formulated.

In section 7.2, we consider the following pair of mixed type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems containing support functions:

(Mix SP): Minimize:
$$\int_{I} \left(H^{1}\left(t, x^{1}, x^{2}, y^{1}, y^{2}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{2}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{2}, z^{1}, z^{2}, \lambda\right), \dots, H^{p}\left(t, x^{1}, x^{2}, y^{1}, y^{2}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{2}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{2}, z^{1}, z^{2}, \lambda\right) \right) dt$$

Subject to:

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b) , \quad y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b) ,$$

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b) , \quad y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b) .$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - z_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - z_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_{I} y^{2}(t)^{T} \left[\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - z_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right) \right] \geq 0 ,$$

$$(x^{1}(t), x^{2}(t)) \ge 0, t \in I,$$

 $z_{i}^{1}(t) \in K_{i}^{1} \text{ and } z_{i}^{2}(t) \in K_{i}^{2},$
 $\lambda > 0, \lambda^{T} e = 1, e^{T} = (1,, 1).$

where,

$$H^{i} = f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) + s(x^{1}(t)|C_{i}^{1}) + s(x^{2}(t)|C_{i}^{2})$$

$$- y^{1}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - z_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right]$$

$$- z_{i}^{1}(t) y^{1}(t) - z_{i}^{2}(t) y^{2}(t)$$

(**Mix SD**): Maximize:
$$\int_{I} \left(G^{1}\left(t, u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}, \dot{u}^{1}, \dot{u}^{2}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{v}^{2}, w^{1}, w^{2}, \lambda\right), \dots, G^{p}\left(t, u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}, \dot{u}^{1}, \dot{u}^{2}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{v}^{2}, w^{1}, w^{2}, \lambda\right) \right) dt$$

Subject to:

$$u^{1}(a) = 0 = u^{1}(b) , \quad v^{1}(a) = 0 = v^{1}(b) ,$$

$$u^{2}(a) = 0 = u^{2}(b) , \quad v^{2}(a) = 0 = v^{2}(b) ,$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + \omega_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right] \ge 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) + \omega_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right] \ge 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_{I} u^{2}(t)^{T} \left[g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) + \omega_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right] \le 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\left(v^{1}(t), v^{2}(t) \right) \ge 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\omega_{i}^{1}(t) \in C_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad \omega_{i}^{2}(t) \in C_{i}^{2} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1 , \quad e^{T} = (1, ..., 1) .$$

where,

$$G^{i} = f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2})$$

$$+ s(v^{1}(t)|K_{i}^{1}) + s(v^{2}(t)|K_{i}^{2}) + u^{1}(t)\omega_{i}^{1}(t) + u_{i}^{2}(t)\omega^{2}(t)$$

$$- u^{1}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + \omega_{i}^{1}(t) - Df_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right].$$

For the above pair of mixed type nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problems, weak, strong and self duality theorems are established under convexity-concavity and pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity of certain combination of functionals appearing in the formulations. Special cases are also derived. A pair of mixed type nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problem with natural boundary values is also formulated to investigate various duality theorem and to have linkage between the duality results of this chapter and results for static cases surveyed in this thesis.

Chapter-2

ON MULTIOBJECTIVE NONLINEAR PROGRAMMING WITH SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

- 2.1 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming
 - 2.1.1 Introductory Remarks
 - 2.1.2 Statement of the Primal Problem
 - 2.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality
 - 2.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality
 - 2.1.5 Related Problems
- 2.2 On Mixed Type Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Programming
 - 2.2.1 Mixed Type Duality
 - 2.2.2 Special Cases

2.1 NONDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE NONLINEAR PROGRAMMING

2.1.1 Introductory Remarks

The usefulness of study of duality in mathematical programming lies in Let the fact that the duality helps to develop numerical algorithms as it provides stopping rules for primal and dual problems. Motivated with these observations, in this chapter we consider vector version of the problem by Husain et al [74], considered in section 2.1.3 and study duality byformulating Wolfe and Mond-Weir type dual problems to multiobjective problem with support functions under invexity and generalized invexity requirements. It is remarked in this chapter that the primal problem is a nondifferentiable multiobjective problem but its Wolfe and Mond-Weir problems differentiable multiobjective programming problems. are Obviously it is easier to solve differentiable programming problems than to solve a nondifferentiable programming problem. In essence, this observation explains the advantage of these dual problems over the primal problems. The problems considered in this chapter are hard to solve. So to expect an immediate application of these problems would be far from reality. Unfortunately, there has not always been sufficient flow between the researchers in the multiple criteria decision making and the researchers applying it to their problems. Of course, we can find many problems of facility location and portfolio selection modeled as multiobjective programming problems which reflect the utility of our problems.

This chapter is divided into two sections, 2.1 and 2.2. In section 2.1, Wolfe type duality and Mond-Weir type duality are investigated under invexity and generalized invexity. Special cases are derived. The section 2.2 unifies the nondifferentiable Wolfe type dual and Mond-Weir type dual problems considered in section 2.1 and also incorporates particular cases.

2.1.2 Statement of the Primal Problem

In [74] Husain et al considered the following problem:

(P): Minimize
$$f(x) + S(x|C)$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(x)+S(x|D^{j})\leq 0, j=1,2,...,m$$

where

- i. $f: R^n \to R$ and $g_j: R^n \to R$, j = 1, 2, ..., m are continuously differentiable and
- ii. $S(\cdot|C)$ and $S(\cdot|D^j)$, j=1,2,...,m are support functions of a compact convex sets C and D^j , j=1,2,...,m in R^n .

The authors in [74], constructed the following Wolfe type dual (WD) and Mond-Weir type dual (M-WD) to the problem (NP) and established various duality results under convexity and generalized convexity assumptions.

(WD): Maximize
$$f(u) + u^T z + \sum_{j=1}^m y_j (g_j(u) + w_j^T u)$$

Subject to
$$\nabla (f(u) + u^T z) + \sum_{j=1}^m y_j (g_j(u) + w_j^T u) = 0,$$

$$z \in C,$$

$$w^j \in D^j, j = 1, 2, ..., m.$$

(**M-WD**): Maximize $f(u) + u^T z$

Subject to

$$\nabla (f(u) + u^{T}z) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y_{j} (g_{j}(u) + w_{j}^{T}u) = 0,$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y_{j} (g_{j}(u) + w_{j}^{T}u) \ge 0,$$

$$z \in C, \ w_{j} \in D_{j}, \ j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$y \ge 0$$

We present the following nondifferentiable multiobjective programming problem containing support function as the primal problem.

(**NP**): Minimize
$$(f^1(x)+S(x|C^1),...,f^p(x)+S(x|C^p))$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(x)+S(x|D^{j})\leq 0, j=1,2,...,m$$

where

- **i.** $f^i: R^n \to R$ and $g^j: R^n \to R$, j = 1, 2, ..., m are differentiable functions and
- **ii.** $S(\cdot|C^i)$, i=1,2,...,p and $S(\cdot|D^j)$, j=1,2,...,m are support functions of a compact convex set C^i , i=1,2,...,p and D^j , j=1,2,...,m in R^n .

2.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality

We formulate the following Wolfe type dual to the problem (NP) and establish various duality results under invexity defined in the preceding section.

(WND): Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}z^{1} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j} \right) \right)$$

 $\dots, f^{p}(u) + u^{T}z^{p} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j} \right)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0$$
 (2.1)

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$, (2.2)

$$w^{j} \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, (2.3)

$$y \ge 0, \tag{2.4}$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$
 (2.5)

Theorem 2.1: (Weak Duality): Let x be feasible for (NP) and $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ be feasible for (WND). If for all feasible

$$(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$$
 $, \sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i (f^i(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T z^i) + \sum_{j=1}^m y^j (g^j(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T w^j)$ is

pseudoinvex with respect to η , then the following cannot hold.

$$f^{i}(x) + S(x|C^{i}) \le f^{i}(u) + u^{T}z^{i} + \sum_{i=1}^{m} y^{j}(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$, and

$$f^{r}(x) + S(x|C^{r}) < f^{r}(u) + u^{T}z^{r} + \sum_{i=1}^{m} y^{j}(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}, r \neq i$.

Proof: Suppose this the conclusion of the theorem hold. Then from the feasibility of (NP) together with $x^T z^i \leq S(x|C^i)$, i = 1, 2, ..., p and $x^T w^j \leq S(x|D^j)$, j = 1, 2, ..., m.

$$f^{i}(x) + x^{T}z^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(g^{j}(x) + x^{T}w^{j})$$

$$\leq f^{i}(u) + u^{T}z^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$

$$f^{r}(x) + x^{T}z^{r} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(x) + x^{T}w^{j})$$

$$< f^{r}(u) + u^{T}z^{r} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

In view of $\lambda > 0$ and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$, these inequalities yield

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(x) + x^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(x) + x^{T} w^{j} \right)$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j} \right)$$

This in view of the pseudoinvexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i} \left(\cdot \right) + \left(\cdot \right)^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(\cdot \right) + \left(\cdot \right)^{T} w^{j} \right)$ gives,

$$\eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(x \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \right) < 0$$

$$(2.6)$$

From the equality constraint of the (WND), we have

$$\eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(x \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \right) = 0$$

This is a contradiction to (2.6). Hence the proof of the theorem follows.

In order to prove the strong duality theorem, we require the following lemma due to Chankong and Haimes [35].

Lemma 2.1 [35]: A point $\overline{x} \in X$ is an efficient for (NP), if and only if $\overline{x} \in X$ solves.

$$(P_k(\overline{x}))$$
: Minimize $f^k(x) + S(x|C^k)$

Subject to

$$f^{i}(x)+S(x|C^{i}) \leq f^{i}(\overline{x})+S(\overline{x}|C^{i})$$

for all $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}, i \neq k$

$$g^{j}(x)+S(x|D^{j})\leq 0, j=1,2,...,m$$

where X is the set of feasible solutions of (NP).

Theorem 2.2 (*Strong Duality*): Let $\overline{x} \in X$ be an efficient solution of (NP) and for at least one i, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$, \overline{x} satisfies the constraint qualification [30] for the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist $\lambda \in R^p$ with $\lambda^T = (\overline{\lambda}^1, ..., \overline{\lambda}^i, ..., \overline{\lambda}^p)$, $\overline{y} \in R^m$ with $\overline{y}^T = (\overline{y}^1, ..., \overline{y}^i, ..., \overline{y}^m)$, $z^i \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and $w^j \in R^n$, j = 1, 2, ..., m such that $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (WND) and $\sum_{i=1}^m \overline{y}^i \nabla (g^i(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^T w^j) = 0$.

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 2.1 are met, then $(x,u,y,z^1,...,z^p,w^1,...,w^m,\lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (WND).

Proof: Since $\overline{x} \in X$ is an efficient solution of (NP), by Lemma 2.1, \overline{x} is an optimal solution of $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Consequently, there exists $\tau \in R^p$ with $\tau^T = (\tau^1, ..., \tau^i, ..., \tau^p)$, $\overline{v}^T = (\overline{v}^1, ..., \overline{v}^i, ..., \overline{v}^m)$, $z^i \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and $w^j \in R^n$, j = 1, 2, ..., m such that the following optimality conditions [30] hold:

$$\tau^{k} \left[\nabla \left(f^{k} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{k} \right) \right] + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i \neq k}}^{p} \tau^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right)$$

$$+ \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i \neq k}}^{m} \upsilon^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + x^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0,$$

$$(2.7)$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} v^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j}(x) + x^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0, \qquad (2.8)$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$, (2.9)

$$w^{j} \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, (2.10)

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{z}^i = S(\overline{x}|C^i) \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p,$$
(2.11)

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j = S(\overline{x}|D^j)$$
, $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, (2.12)

$$\tau > 0$$
 , $\nu \ge 0$ (2.13)

The relation (2.7) can reduce to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{\upsilon}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.14)$$

Dividing (2.8), (2.13) and (2.14) by $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \neq 0$, and putting $\lambda^{i} = \frac{\tau^{i}}{\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i}}$ and

$$y^i = \frac{v^i}{\sum_{i=1}^p \tau^i}$$
, we have,

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.15)$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$
 (2.16)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.17)$$

Consequently (2.9), (2.10), (2.16) and (2.17) implies that $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (WD). In view of (2.11) and (2.15)

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} (g^{j}(x) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j})$$
$$= f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x} | C^{i}), \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p.$$

In view of Theorem 2.1, this implies the efficiency of $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ for (WND).

Theorem 2.3 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution: Assume that

- (A_1) f and g are twice differentiable, and
- (A₂) $\nabla^2 \left(\lambda^T f^i(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^T g(x) \right)$ is positive or negative definite.

Further, if the assumptions of Theorem 2.1 are satisfied, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (NP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (WND), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$ with $\alpha^T = (\alpha^1, ..., \alpha^i, ..., \alpha^p)$, $\beta \in R^n$, $\eta \in R^p$ with $\eta^T = (\eta^1, ..., \eta^i, ..., \eta^p)$, and $\kappa \in R$ such that the following Fritz-John conditions [37] holds,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(\nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) \right) + \beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{y}^{T} g \left(x \right) \right) = 0$$

$$(2.18)$$

$$-(\alpha^T e)(g^j + \overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j) - \mu^j = 0 , \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$(2.19)$$

$$\nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) \beta - \eta^{i} + \kappa = 0$$
(2.20)

$$\left(\beta \lambda^{i} - \alpha^{i} \overline{x}\right) \in N_{C^{i}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}\right), \ i = 1, \dots, p$$

$$(2.21)$$

$$\left(\beta - \left(\alpha^{T} e\right) \overline{x}\right) y^{j} \in N_{D^{j}}\left(\overline{w}^{j}\right), \quad j = 1, \dots, m$$
(2.22)

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{2.23}$$

$$\kappa \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} - 1 \right) = 0 \tag{2.24}$$

$$\mu^T \overline{y} = 0 \tag{2.25}$$

$$(\alpha, \mu, \eta, \kappa) \ge 0 \tag{2.26}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta, \mu, \eta, \kappa) \neq 0 \tag{2.27}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (2.23) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (2.20) implies

$$\nabla \left(f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) \beta = -\kappa \tag{2.28}$$

From the equality constraint of (WND), we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j}(x) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) \beta = -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) \beta = \kappa$$
 (2.29)

Using (2.28) and (2.29) in (2.18), we have

$$\beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^{T} g(x) \right) \beta = 0$$

In view of the hypothesis (A_2) , this yields

$$\beta = 0 \tag{2.30}$$

Suppose $\alpha = 0$, then from (2.19) we have $\mu = 0$, and from (2.20) we get $\kappa = 0$.

Consequently $(\alpha, \beta, \mu, \eta, \kappa) = 0$. This contradicts (2.27).

Hence $\alpha > 0$. From (2.21) and (2.22) in view of (2.30) implies,

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{z}^i = S(\overline{x}|C^i) \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p$$
 (2.31)

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j = S(\overline{x}|D^j)$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$ (2.32)

From (2.19) along with (2.32), (2.28) and $\alpha > 0$, we have

$$g^{j}(x)+S(\overline{x}|D^{j})\leq 0$$
 , $j=1,2,...,m$

This implies \bar{x} is feasible for (NP).

Again from (2.19) in view of (2.25), we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.33)$$

In view of (2.31) and (2.33), we have

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla (g^{j}(x) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j})$$

$$= f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

Since the requirements of the Theorem 2.1 are fulfilled, this implies \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (NP).

2.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality

In this section, we construct the following problem as the Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (NP).

(**M-WND**): Maximize $(f^1(u)+u^Tz^1,...,f^i(u)+u^Tz^p)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0, \quad (2.34)$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$, (2.35)

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \ge 0, \qquad (2.36)$$

$$\lambda > 0 \quad , \qquad y \ge 0 \tag{2.37}$$

Theorem 2.4 (*Weak Duality*): Let $\overline{x} \in X$ be feasible for (NP) and $(\overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \overline{w}^1, ..., \overline{w}^m, \overline{\lambda})$ be feasible for (M-WND). If for all feasible $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$, $\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i \nabla (f^i(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T z^i)$ is pseudoinvex and $\sum_{j=1}^m y^j (g^j(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T w^j)$ is quasi-invex with respect to η , then the following cannot hold.

$$f^{i}(x) + S(x|C^{i}) \le f^{i}(u) + u^{T}z^{i}$$

$$(2.38)$$

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$. and

$$f^{r}(x) + S(x|C^{r}) < f^{r}(u) + u^{T}z^{r}$$

$$(2.39)$$

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

Proof: Suppose (2.38) and (2.39) of the theorem hold. Then by feasibility of (NP) and (M-WND) along with $\lambda > 0$ and $x^T z^i \le S(x|C^i)$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f^{i}(x) + x^{T} z^{i}) < \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i})$$

which because of the pseudo-invexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla (f^{i}(\cdot) + (\cdot)^{T} z^{i})$ implies,

$$\eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + \left(u \right)^{T} z^{i} \right) \right) < 0.$$
 (2.40)

Now from feasibility of (NP) and (M-WND) with $x^T w^j \le S(x|D^j)$, j = 1, 2, ..., m

We have

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} (x) + (x)^{T} w^{j} \right) \leq \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} (u) + (u)^{T} w^{j} \right)$$

this, due to quasi-invexity of $\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(\cdot) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j})$ with respect to η gives

$$\eta^{T} \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + \left(u \right)^{T} w^{j} \right) \leq 0.$$
 (2.41)

Combining (2.40) and (2.41), we have

$$\eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \right) < 0.$$

This contradicts the equality constraint. Hence the validation of the theorem follows.

The following duality theorem can be proved on the line of Theorem 2.2.

Theorem 2.5 (*Strong Duality*): Let $\overline{x} \in X$ be an efficient solution of (MNP) and for at least one i, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$, \overline{x} satisfies the constraint qualification [30] for the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist $\lambda \in R^p$ with $\lambda^T = (\overline{\lambda}^1, ..., \overline{\lambda}^i, ..., \overline{\lambda}^p)$, $\overline{y} \in R^m$ with $\overline{y}^T = (\overline{y}^1, ..., \overline{y}^i, ..., \overline{y}^m)$, $z^i \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and $w^j \in R^n$, j = 1, 2, ..., m such that $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (M-WND).

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 2.4 are satisfied, then $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (M-WND).

Theorem 2.6 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (M-WND). Assume that

 (A_1) f and g are twice continuously differentiable,

(A₂) $\nabla (f^i(\bar{x}) + \bar{x}^T \bar{z}^i)$, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ are linearly independent.

(A₃) $\nabla^2 (\lambda^T f^i(\bar{x}) + \bar{y}^T g(x))$ is positive or negative definite.

Further, if the assumptions of Theorem 2.4 are satisfied, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution.

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (M-WND), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$ with $\alpha^T = (\alpha^1, ..., \alpha^i, ..., \alpha^p)$, $\beta \in R^n$, $\eta \in R^p$ with $\eta^T = (\eta^1, ..., \eta^i, ..., \eta^p)$, $\gamma \in R$ and $\mu \in R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John conditions [37] are satisfied

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{y}^{T} g \left(\overline{x} \right) \right)$$
$$- \gamma \sum_{i=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$
 (2.42)

$$-\gamma \left(g^{j}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j}\right) - \mu^{j} = 0 , \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m,$$

$$(2.43)$$

$$\nabla \left(f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) \beta - \eta^{i} = 0, \qquad (2.44)$$

$$\left(\beta \lambda^{i} - \alpha^{i} \overline{x}\right) \in N_{C^{i}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}\right), \ i = 1, \dots, p,$$

$$(2.45)$$

$$\left(\beta - \gamma \overline{x}\right) y^{j} \in N_{D^{j}}\left(\overline{w}^{j}\right), \quad j = 1, \dots, m, \tag{2.46}$$

$$\gamma \sum_{i=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0, \qquad (2.47)$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0, \qquad (2.48)$$

$$\mu^T \overline{y} = 0, \tag{2.49}$$

$$(\alpha, \mu, \eta, \gamma) \ge 0, \tag{2.50}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta, \mu, \eta, \gamma) \neq 0. \tag{2.51}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (2.48) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (2.44) implies

$$\nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) \beta = 0 \tag{2.52}$$

Using the equality constraint of (M-WND) in (2.42), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \nabla \left(f^{i}\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i}\right) + \beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{y}^{j} g^{j}\left(\overline{x}\right)\right) = 0$$
 (2.53)

Postmultiplying (2.53) by β and then using (2.52), we have

$$\beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^{T} g(x) \right) \beta = 0$$

This because of positive or negative definiteness of $\nabla^2 \left(\lambda^T f^i(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^T g(x) \right)$, yields

$$\beta = 0 \tag{2.54}$$

Using (2.54) in (2.53), we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} \right) \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) = 0$$

This, due to the hypotheses (A_2) gives,

$$\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} = 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (2.55)

Suppose $\gamma = 0$, then from (2.55) we have $\alpha = 0$. From (2.43), we have $\mu = 0$.

Consequently $(\alpha, \beta, \mu, \eta, \gamma) = 0$. This contradicts (2.51).

Hence $\gamma > 0$ and from (2.55), $\alpha > 0$.

For $\beta = 0$, (2.45) and (2.46), we have,

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{z}^i = S(\overline{x}|C^i) \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p$$
 (2.56)

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j = S(\overline{x}|D^j)$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$ (2.57)

The relation (2.43) along with (2.57) and (2.50) gives

$$g^{j}(x)+S(\overline{x}|D^{j})\leq 0$$
 , $j=1,2,...,m$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (MNP).

In view of (2.56), we have

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} = f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i})$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$.

This in view of the hypotheses of Theorem 2.4, gives the efficiency of \bar{x} for (NP).

2.1.5 Related Problems

In this section, we specialize our problem (NP) and its dual problems (WND) and (M-WND). As discussed in [111] we may write $S(x|C^i) = (x^T B^i x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$, i = 1,...,p and $S(x|D^j) = (x^T E^j x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$, j = 1,...,m and the matrices B^i , i = 1,...,p and E^j , j = 1,...,m are positive semidefinite. Putting these in our problems, we have

(MNP)₁: Minimize
$$\left(f^{1}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{1}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, ..., f^{p}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{p}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right)$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(x)+(x^{T}E^{j}x)^{\frac{1}{2}} \leq 0, j=1,2,...,m.$$

For the dual problem, we get

(WND)₁:Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}B^{1}z^{1} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}E^{j}w^{j} \right) \right)$$

 $\dots, f^{p}(u) + u^{T}B^{p}z^{p} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}E^{j}w^{j} \right)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} B^{i} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} E^{j} w^{j} \right) = 0,$$

$$z^{T} B^{i} z \leq 1, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$

$$\left(w^{j} \right)^{T} E^{j} w^{j} \leq 1, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$y \geq 0, \quad \lambda > 0, \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$

(**M-WND**)₁: Maximize $(f^{1}(u)+u^{T}B^{1}z^{1},...,f^{p}(u)+u^{T}B^{p}z^{p})$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i}(u) + u^{T} B^{i} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} D^{j} w^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} E^{j} w^{j} \right) \ge 0$$

$$z^{T} B^{i} z \le 1, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$\left(w^{j} \right)^{T} E^{j} w^{j} \le 1, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$\lambda > 0, \quad y \ge 0$$

2.2 MIXED TYPE DUALITY FOR NONDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE PROGRAMMING

2.2.1 Mixed Type Duality

In this section we present the following mixed type dual formulation of nondifferentiable nonlinear programming (Mix D) which combines Wolfe and Mond-Weir dual models studied in the preceding section:

(Mix D): Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}z^{1} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j}\right) + \dots, f^{p}(u) + u^{T}z^{p} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j}\right)\right)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(u \right) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0, \quad (2.58)$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \ge 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$
(2.59)

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$, (2.60)

$$w^{j} \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, (2.61)

$$y \ge 0, \tag{2.62}$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
, (2.63)

where $J_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, $\alpha = 0, 1, 2, ..., r$ with $\bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} J_{\alpha} = M$ and $J_{\alpha} \cap J_{\beta} = \phi$, if $\alpha \neq \beta$.

If $J_{\circ} = M$, then (Mix D) becomes Wolfe type dual considered in the subsection 2.1.3. If $J_{\circ} = \phi$ and $J_{\alpha} = M$ for some $\alpha \in \{1, 2, ..., r\}$, then (Mix D) becomes Mond-Weir type dual considered in the subsection 2.1.4.

Theorem 2.7 (*Weak Duality*): Let \overline{x} be feasible for (NP) and $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix D).If for all feasible $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$, $\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i \nabla (f^i(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T z^i) + \sum_{i \in I} y^i (g^i(\cdot) + (\cdot)^T w^i)$ is

pseudoinvex and $\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} (g^{j}(\cdot) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j})$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ is quasi-invex with respect to η , then the following cannot hold.

$$f^{i}(x) + s(x|C^{i}) \le f^{i}(u) + u^{T}z^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$
(2.64)

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$, and

$$f^{k}(x) + s(x|C^{k}) < f^{k}(u) + u^{T}z^{k} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j})$$
(2.65)

for some k.

Proof: Suppose that (2.64) and (2.65) hold. Then in view of $\lambda > 0$ and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$, (2.64) and (2.65) together with $x^{T} z^{i} \leq s(x|C^{i})$, i = 1, 2, ..., p and $x^{T} w^{j} \leq s(x|D^{j})$, j = 1, 2, ..., m and the feasibility for (NP) and (Mix D) imply

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(x) + x^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(x) + x^{T} w^{j} \right)$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j} \right)$$

This, in view of the pseudoinvexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(\cdot) + (\cdot)^{T} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(\cdot) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j} \right)$ with respect to η , implies,

$$\eta^{T}\left(x,u\right)\left(\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i}\nabla\left(f^{i}\left(u\right)+u^{T}z^{i}\right)+\sum_{j\in J_{o}}y^{j}\nabla\left(g^{j}\left(u\right)+u^{T}w^{j}\right)\right)<0$$
(2.66)

Since \overline{x} is feasible for (VP), $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (Mix D), and $x^T w^j \le s(x|D^j)$, j = 1, 2, ..., m, we have

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + x^{T} w^{j} \right) \leq \sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right), \ \alpha = 1, 2, \dots, r$$

This in view of quasi-invexity of $\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(\cdot \right) + \left(\cdot \right)^{T} w^{j} \right)$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ with respect to η , gives

$$\eta^{T}(x,u)\left(\sum_{j\in J_{\alpha}}y^{j}\nabla\left(g^{j}(x)+x^{T}w^{j}\right)\right)\leq 0, \quad \alpha=1,2,\ldots,r$$

Hence,

$$\eta^{T}(x,u)\nabla\left(\sum_{j\in M-J_{o}}y^{j}(g^{j}(x)+x^{T}w^{j})\right) \leq 0, \quad \alpha=1,2,...,r$$
(2.67)

Combining (2.66) and (2.67), we have

$$\eta^{T}\left(x,u\right)\left(\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i}\nabla\left(f^{i}\left(u\right)+u^{T}z^{i}\right)+\sum_{j=1}^{m}y^{j}\nabla\left(g^{j}\left(u\right)+u^{T}w^{j}\right)\right)<0$$
(2.68)

From the equality constraint of (Mix D), we have

$$\eta^{T}(x,u) \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla (f^{i}(u) + u^{T} z^{i}) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \nabla (g^{j}(u) + u^{T} w^{j}) \right) = 0$$
 (2.69)

The relation (2.69) contradicts (2.68). Hence the conclusion of the theorem is true.

Theorem 2.8 (*Strong Duality*): Let \overline{x} be an efficient solution of (NP) and for at least one i, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$, \overline{x} satisfies the regularity condition [74] for the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist $\lambda \in R^p$ with $\lambda^T = (\overline{\lambda}^1, ..., \overline{\lambda}^i, ..., \overline{\lambda}^p)$, $\overline{y} \in R^m$ with $\overline{y}^T = (\overline{y}^1, ..., \overline{y}^i, ..., \overline{y}^m)$, $z^i \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and $w^j \in R^n$, j = 1, 2, ..., m such that $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (Mix D) and the objectives of (NP) and (Mix D) are equal.

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 2.7 are satisfied, then $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (Mix D).

Proof: Since \overline{x} is an efficient solution for $(P_k(\overline{x}))$, this implies that there exists $\xi \in R^p$ $v \in R^m$ with $\overline{v}^T = (\overline{v}^1, ..., \overline{v}^i, ..., \overline{v}^m)$ and $z^i \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ such that

$$\overline{\xi}^{k}\nabla\left(f^{k}\left(x\right)+\overline{x}^{T}\overline{z}^{k}\right)+\sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq k}}^{p}\overline{\xi}^{i}\nabla\left(f^{i}\left(x\right)+\overline{x}^{T}\overline{z}^{i}\right)+\sum_{j=1}^{m}y^{j}\nabla\left(g^{j}\left(x\right)+x^{T}w^{j}\right)=0,$$
(2.70)

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \bar{v}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j}(x) + x^{T} w^{j} \right) = 0, \qquad (2.71)$$

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{z}^i = S(\overline{x}|C^i), \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p , \qquad (2.72)$$

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j = S(\overline{x}|D^j), \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m,$$
(2.73)

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$
 (2.74)

$$w^{j} \in D^{j}, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m ,$$
 (2.75)

$$\xi > 0$$
, $\overline{\upsilon} > 0$ (2.76)

Dividing (2.70), (2.71) and (2.76) by $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \xi^{i} \neq 0$, and putting $\overline{\lambda}^{i} = \frac{\overline{\xi}^{i}}{\sum_{i=1}^{p} \xi^{i}}$ and

$$\overline{y}^i = \frac{\overline{v}^i}{\sum_{i=1}^p \xi^i}$$
, we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{i=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.77)$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.78)$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1 , \overline{y} \ge 0$$
 (2.79)

The equation (2.78) implies

$$\sum_{j \in J_a} \overline{y}^j \left(g^j \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j \right) = 0 \tag{2.80}$$

and
$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \overline{y}^{j} (g^{j}(x) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j}) = 0$$
, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ (2.81)

The relation (2.77), (2.79) and (2.81) imply that $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ is feasible for (Mix D).

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{0}} \overline{y}^{j}(g^{j}(x) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j}) = f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i}), \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p.$$

This implies the objective of the primal and dual problems are equal.

Further, in view of the assumptions Theorem 2.7, the efficiency of \bar{x} for (NP) is immediate.

Theorem 2.9 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (Mix D). Assume that

 (A_1) f and g are twice continuously differentiable,

(A₂)
$$\nabla f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} \overline{y}^{j}(\nabla g^{j}(\overline{x}) + \overline{w}^{j}), \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 are linearly independent,

(A₃)
$$\nabla^2 \left(\lambda^T f^i(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^T g(\overline{x}) \right)$$
 is positive or negative definite.

Further, if the assumptions of Theorem 2.7 are met, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution.

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix D), then there exist $\tau \in R^p$, $\beta \in R^n$, $\gamma \in R$ for each γ constraints, $\eta \in R^p$ with $\eta^T = (\eta^1, ..., \eta^i, ..., \eta^p)$ and $\mu \in R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions [37] are satisfied,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(\nabla \left(f^{i} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) \right) + \beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{y}^{T} g \left(\overline{x} \right) \right) - \gamma \sum_{\alpha=1}^{r} \sum_{j \in J_{o}} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(x \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$(2.82)$$

$$-(\tau^T e)(g^j(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j + \beta^T \nabla (g^j(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j)) - \mu^j = 0 , \quad j \in J_{\circ}$$
 (2.83)

$$-\gamma \left(g^{j}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} + \beta^{T} \nabla \left(g^{j}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j}\right)\right) - \mu^{j} = 0 , j \in J_{\alpha}, \alpha = 1, ..., r$$

$$(2.84)$$

$$\beta^{T} \nabla \left(f\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{\circ}} \overline{y}^{j} \left(\nabla g^{j} \left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{w}^{j} \right) - \eta^{i} = 0$$
(2.85)

$$\left(\lambda^{i}\beta - \tau^{i}\overline{x}\right) \in N_{C^{i}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}\right), \ i = 1, \dots, p$$

$$(2.86)$$

$$\left(\beta - \left(\tau^T e\right) \overline{x}\right) \overline{y}^j \in N_{D^j}(\overline{w}^j), \quad j \in J_{\circ}$$
(2.87)

$$\left(\beta - \gamma \overline{x}\right) \overline{y}^{j} \in N_{D^{j}}\left(\overline{w}^{j}\right), \quad j \in J_{\alpha}, \quad \alpha = i, ..., r$$

$$(2.88)$$

$$\mu^T \overline{y} = 0 \tag{2.89}$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{2.90}$$

$$\gamma \sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0 \quad , \quad \alpha = 1, \dots, r$$
 (2.91)

$$(\tau, \mu, \eta, \gamma) \ge 0 \tag{2.92}$$

$$(\tau, \beta, \mu, \eta, \gamma) \neq 0 \tag{2.93}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (2.90) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (2.85) implies

$$\left(\nabla \left(f^{i}\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{x}^{T}\overline{z}^{i}\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{\circ}} \overline{y}^{j} \left(\nabla g^{j}\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{w}^{j}\right)\right) \beta = 0$$
(2.94)

Using the equality constraint of (Mix D) in (2.82), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left(\nabla f^{i}\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{\circ}} \overline{y}^{T} \left(\nabla g^{j}\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{w}^{j}\right)\right) + \beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f\left(\overline{x}\right) + \overline{y} g\left(\overline{x}\right)\right) = 0$$

$$(2.95)$$

Postmultiplying (2.95) by β and then using (2.94), we have

$$\beta^{T} \nabla^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f(\overline{x}) + \overline{y}^{T} g(x) \right) \beta = 0$$

This because of (A_3) , yields

$$\beta = 0 \tag{2.96}$$

Using (2.96) along with (A_2) , we have

$$\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} = 0$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$ (2.97)

Suppose $\gamma = 0$, then from (2.97) we have $\tau = 0$. Consequently we have from (2.83) and (2.84), $\mu = 0$.

Thus $(\tau, \beta, \mu, \eta, \gamma) = 0$, contradicting (2.93).

Hence $\gamma > 0$ and $\tau > 0$.

In view of (2.96), (2.86), (2.87) and (2.88) we have,

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{z}^i = S(\overline{x}|C^i) \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p$$
 (2.98)

$$\overline{x}^T \overline{w}^j = S(\overline{x}|D^j) \quad , \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m$$
 (2.99)

From (2.83) and (2.84) along with (2.99) and (2.92), we have

$$g^{j}(x)+s(\overline{x}|D^{j})\leq 0$$
 , $j=1,2,...,m$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (VP).

From (2.83) and (2.89), we have

$$\sum_{i \in I} \overline{y}^{j} \nabla \left(g^{j} \left(\overline{x} \right) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \right) = 0$$

In view of this together with (2.98), we have

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} \overline{y}^{j} (g^{j}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{w}^{j})$$

$$= f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

This establishes the equality of objective values of (NP)

This in view of the hypothesis of Theorem 2.7 gives the efficiency of \bar{x} for (NP).

2.2.2 Special Cases

In this section, we specialize our problem (NP) and its mixed dual problem (Mix D). As discussed in [111] we may write $S(x|C^i) = (x^T B^i x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$, i = 1,...,p and $S(x|D^j) = (x^T E^j x)^{\frac{1}{2}}$, j = 1,...,m and the matrices B^i , i = 1,...,p and E^j , j = 1,...,m are positive semidefinite. Putting these in our problems, we have

(NP)₁: Minimize
$$\left(f^{1}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{1}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, ..., f^{p}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{p}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right)$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(x)+(x^{T}E^{j}x)^{\frac{1}{2}} \leq 0, j=1,2,...,m$$

For the dual (Mix D) problem, we get

(Mix D)₁: Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}B^{i}z^{1} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}E^{j}w^{j} \right) \right)$$
$$f^{p}(u) + u^{T}B^{p}z^{p} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T}E^{j}w^{j} \right)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \nabla \left(f^{i}(u) + u^{T} B^{i} z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} D^{j} w^{j} \right) = 0,$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} \left(g^{j}(u) + u^{T} D^{j} w^{j} \right) \ge 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$

$$z^{T} B^{i} z \le 1, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$

$$\left(w^{j} \right)^{T} E^{j} w^{j} \le 1, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$\lambda > 0 \quad , \quad y \ge 0.$$



MULTIOBJECTIVE CONTINUOUS PROGRAMMING CONTAINING SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

- 3.1 Multiobjective Continuous Programming
 - 3.1.1 Introductory Remarks
 - 3.1.2 Multiobjective Variational Problems and Related Results
 - 3.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality
 - 3.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality
 - 3.1.5 Related Problems

3.1 MULTIOBJECTIVE CONTINUOUS PROGRAMMING

3.1.1 Introductory Remarks

Recently, Husain and Jabeen [70] derived optimality conditions for a nondifferentiable continuous programming problem in which nondifferentiability enters due to appearance of support functions in the integrand of the objective functional as well as in each constraint function. As an application of these optimality conditions, the authors in [70] formulated both Wolfe and Mond-weir type duals to the nondifferentiable continuous programming problem and established various duality results under invexity and generalized invexity.

There exist an extensive literature relating to optimality and duality in multiobjective nonlinear programming. But the status of continuous programming for optimality and duality is not very accomplished. Duality and optimality for multiobjective variational problems which can be referred to as continuous programming problems have been studied by a number of authors notably Bector and Husain [19], Chen [36] and many others cited in these references.

Any real world problem can be identified as multiple objective problem. Motivated with this cursory observation, in this chapter we formulate multiobjective nondifferentiable variational programming problem where nondifferentiability occurs due to support functions and study its duality under suitable invexity hypotheses. The close relationship of our duality results with those of nonlinear programming is also outlined.

3.1.2 Multiobjective Variational Problems and Related Results

We present the following nondifferentiable continuous programming problem containing support function.

(CP): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x \middle| C^{1}\right)\right) dt, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x \middle| C^{p}\right)\right) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha$$
 , $x(b) = \beta$
 $g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + S(x|D^{j}) \le 0$, $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, $t \in I$

where $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p), $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$, j = 1, 2, ..., m are continuously differentiable function, and for each C^i , i = 1, ..., p and D^j , j = 1, ..., m are compact convex set in R^n .

In order to validate the strong duality theorem, we will require the following lemma of Chankong and Haimes [35].

Lemma 3.1: A point \bar{x} is an efficient for (CP) if and only if \bar{x} is an optimal solution for all

$$(P_k(\overline{x}))$$
: Minimize $\left(\int_I (f^k(t,x,\dot{x}) + S(x|C^k)) dt\right)$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha , x(b) = \beta$$

$$\int_{C} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}) + S(x|C^{i}) \right) dt \le \int_{C} \left(f^{i}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i}) \right) dt ,$$

for all $i \neq k$

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x}) + S(x|D^{j}) \le 0, j = 1,2,...,m, t \in I$$

3.1.3 Wolfe Type Duality

The following problem is formulated as Wolfe type dual for the problem (CP).

(WCD): Maximize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{1}\left(t\right)+\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(g^{j}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} w^{j}\left(t\right)\right)\right) dt$$

$$,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{p}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$
 (3.1)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) = D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y(t) g_{x}^{j} \right), \ t \in I$$
(3.2)

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$ (3.3)

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$ (3.4)

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$
 (3.5)

Theorem 3.1 (*Weak Duality*): Let \overline{x} be feasible for (CP) and $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ be feasible for (WCD). If for all feasible $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ and with respect to $\eta = \eta(t, x, u)$,

$$\int_{I} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}\left(t,...\right) + \left(\cdot\right)^{T} z^{i}\left(t\right) \right) dt + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}\left(t\right) \left(g^{j}\left(t,...\right) + \left(\cdot\right)^{T} w^{j}\left(t\right) \right) \right) dt \text{ is pseudoinvex}$$

then the following cannot hold.

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x(t) \middle| C^{i}\right) \right) dt \leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) dt + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{r}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x(t) \middle| C^{r}\right) \right) dt < \int_{I} \left(f^{r}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u(t)^{T} z^{r}(t) dt + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

Proof: Suppose that the conclusion of the theorem hold. With the feasibility of the problems (CP) and (WCD), together with $x^{T}(t)z^{i}(t) \leq S(x(t)|C^{i})$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, we have

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt \\
\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{r}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} z^{r}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt
< \int_{I} \left(f^{r}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{r}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

Now in view of $\lambda > 0$ and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$, these inequalities yield

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

This in view of the pseudoinvexity of

$$\int_{I} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i}(t,...) + (\cdot)^{T} z^{i}(t) \right) dt + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t,...) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt \text{ gives,}$$

$$0 > \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) (g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)) \right) + (D\eta)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) (g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)) \right) - D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) \right\} dt + \eta^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

(by integration by parts)

Using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b give $\eta = 0$, we have

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) (g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)) \right) - D(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}) \right\} dt < 0$$
(3.6)

From the equality constraint of the (WCD), we have

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) \right\} dt = 0$$

This relation (3.6) contradicts the equality constraint. Hence the conclusion of the theorem is true.

Theorem 3.2 (*Strong Duality*): Let \overline{x} be a feasible solution of (CP) and for at least one i, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$, \overline{x} satisfies the regularity condition [30] for $(P_i(x))$. Then there exist $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$ with $\overline{\lambda}^T = (\overline{\lambda}^1, ..., \overline{\lambda}^i, ..., \overline{\lambda}^p)$, $z^i(t) \in C^i$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, $w^j(t) \in D^j$, j = 1, 2, ..., m piecewise smooth $\overline{v}: I \to R^m$ with $\overline{v}^T = (\overline{v}^1, ..., \overline{v}^i, ..., \overline{v}^m)$, such that $(\overline{x}, \overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \overline{w}^1, ..., \overline{w}^m, \overline{\lambda})$ is feasible for (WCD) and the objective values of (CP) and (WCD) are equal, and $\sum_{j=1}^m \int_I \overline{y}^j(t) \Big(g^j(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) + \overline{x}(t)^T \overline{w}(t)^j\Big) dt = 0$.

Further, if the hypothesis of Theorem 3.1 is met, then $(x,u,y,z^1,...,z^p,w^1,...,w^m,\lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (WCD).

Proof: Since \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (CP), by Lemma 3.1, \bar{x} is an optimal solution of $(P_k(\bar{x}))$. Consequently, by Theorem 1 [70] there exists $\tau \in R^p$ with $\tau^T = (\tau^1, ..., \tau^i, ..., \tau^p)$, $z^i(t) \in C^i$, i = 1, 2, ..., p and $w^j(t) \in D^j$, j = 1, 2, ..., m and piecewise smooth $\bar{v}: I \to R^m$ with $\bar{v}^T = (\bar{v}^1, ..., \bar{v}^i, ..., \bar{v}^m)$ such that the following optimality conditions [30] hold:

$$\tau^{k} \left(f_{x}^{k} + \overline{z}^{k} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{k} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{\upsilon}^{j} \left(t \right) \left(g_{x}^{j} + \overline{w}^{j} \left(t \right) \right) - D \upsilon \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}$$

$$+ \sum_{\substack{i=1\\ i\neq k}}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \right) = 0$$

$$(3.7)$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) + \overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}(t) \right) dt = 0$$
(3.8)

$$\overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{z}^{i}(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p, t \in I$$
(3.9)

$$\overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|D^{j}) , \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m, t \in I$$

$$(3.10)$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$ (3.11)

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$ (3.12)

$$\tau > 0$$
, $\upsilon(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ (3.13)

Dividing (3.7), (3.8) and (3.13) by $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \neq 0$, and setting $\lambda^{i} = \frac{\tau^{i}}{\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i}}$ and

$$y^{i}(t) = \frac{v^{i}(t)}{\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i}}$$
, we have

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(t \right) \left(g_{x}^{j} + \overline{x} \left(t \right) \overline{w}^{j} \left(t \right) \right) = D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right)$$

$$(3.14)$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + \overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}(t) \right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(3.15)$$

$$\lambda > 0 , y(t) \ge 0, t \in I , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$
 (3.16)

Consequently from (3.11), (3.12), (3.14), (3.15) and (3.16), the feasibility of $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ for (WCD) follows.

In view of (3.9), (3.10) and (3.15), we have for each i = 1, ..., p.

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + \overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j}\left(t\right) \left(g^{j}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + \overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}\left(t\right)\right) \right) dt = 0$$

$$= \int_{I} f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + S\left(\overline{x}\left(t\right) \middle| C^{i}\right) dt, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p.$$

This in view of Theorem 3.1, yields the efficiency of $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ for (WCD)

For the converse duality, we make the assumption that X denote the space of the piecewise differentiable function $x: I \to R^n$ for which x(a) = 0 = x(b) equipped with the norm $||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty}$.

The problem (WCD) may be rewritten in the following form:

Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} - \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} - \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{p}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha , u(b) = \beta$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \lambda) = 0$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i} , i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j} , j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$

where

$$\theta = \theta\left(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), y(t), \lambda\right)$$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t)\right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + y(t) g_{\dot{x}}\right), \ t \in I$$
with $\ddot{x} = D^{2} x(t)$ and $\dot{y} = Dy(t)$

Consider $\theta(t,x(\cdot),\dot{x}(\cdot),\dot{x}(\cdot),y(\cdot),\dot{y}(\cdot),\lambda)=0$ as defining a mapping $\psi:I\times X\times Y\times R^p\to B$ where Y is a space of piecewise differentiable function and B is the Banach Space. In order to apply results of Craven [37] to the problem (WCD), the infinite dimensional inequality must be restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda),\psi_y(x,y,\lambda),\psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)]$.

Theorem 3.3 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (WCD) Assume that

- (H₁) The Frèchèt derivative ψ' has a (weak*) closed range,
- $(\mathbf{H_2})$ f and g are twice continuously differentiable, and

(H₃)
$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) \beta(t) = 0, \Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

Further, if the assumptions of Theorem 3.1 are satisfied, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (CP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' having a (weak*) closed range, is an efficient solution of (WD), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$ with $\alpha^T = (\alpha^1, ..., \alpha^i, ..., \alpha^p)$, piecewise smooth $\beta: I \to R^n$ and $\mu: I \to R^m$ with $\mu(t)^T = (\mu^1(t), ..., \mu^m(t))$, $\eta \in R^p$ and $\kappa \in R$ such that the following Fritz-John conditions [37] holds,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(\left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) - D \left(\alpha^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}^{i} \right) \right) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x}^{i} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x}^{i} = 0, t \in I$$
(3.17)

$$-\left(\alpha^{T}e\right)\left(g^{j}+\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T}\overline{w}^{j}\left(t\right)\right)+\beta\left(t\right)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}}-D\beta\left(t\right)^{T}\theta_{\dot{y}^{j}}-\mu^{j}\left(t\right)=0\ ,\ t\in I$$

$$j = 1, 2, ..., m$$
 (3.18)

$$(f_x^i + z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^i) \beta(t) - \eta^i + \kappa = 0 \quad i = 1,..., p$$
 (3.19)

$$\left(\beta(t)\lambda^{i} - \alpha^{i}\overline{x}(t)\right) \in N_{C^{i}}(\overline{z}^{i}(t)), \ i = 1, \dots, p, \ t \in I$$
(3.20)

$$\left(\beta(t) - \left(\alpha^T e\right) \overline{x}(t)\right) \overline{y}^j(t) \in N_{D^j}(\overline{w}^j(t)), \quad j = 1, \dots, m, t \in I$$
 (3.21)

$$\eta^T \overline{\lambda} = 0 \tag{3.22}$$

$$\kappa \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} - 1 \right) = 0 \tag{3.23}$$

$$\mu(t)^T \overline{y}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$
(3.24)

$$(\alpha, \eta, \kappa, \mu(t)) \ge 0 \tag{3.25}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \eta, \kappa, \mu(t)) \neq 0 \tag{3.26}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (3.22) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (3.19) implies

$$\left(f_{x}^{i}+z^{i}\left(t\right)-Df_{x}^{i}\right)\beta\left(t\right)=-\kappa\tag{3.27}$$

From the equality constraint of (WCD), we have

$$\left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + \overline{w}^{j}(t) - Dy(t)^{T} g_{x}\right)\right) \beta(t) = -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \overline{z}^{i}(t) + Df_{x}^{i}\right) \beta(t)$$

$$= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(-\kappa\right) = \kappa$$
(3.28)

From (3.17) have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \left(t \right) + D f_{x}^{i} \right) \beta \left(t \right) - \left(\alpha^{T} e \right) \left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \left(t \right) \left(g_{x}^{j} + \overline{w}^{j} \left(t \right) - D \overline{y} \left(t \right)^{T} g_{x} \right) \right) \beta \left(t \right)$$

$$+ \left(\beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{x}^{i} + D^{2} \beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{x}^{i} \right) \beta \left(t \right) = 0, t \in I$$

Using (3.27) and (3.28) in this relation, we have

$$\left(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} = 0\right)\beta(t), t \in I$$

This because of the hypothesis (H₃), gives

$$\beta(t) = 0 , t \in I \tag{3.29}$$

Suppose $\alpha = 0$, then from (3.18) we have $\mu^{j}(t) = 0$, j = 1, 2, ..., m, and from (3.19) we get $\kappa = 0$.

Consequently $(\alpha, \beta(t), \eta, \kappa, \mu(t)) = 0$. This contradicts (3.26).

Hence $\alpha > 0$.

From (3.20) and (3.21) in view of (3.29) implies,

$$\overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{z}^{i}(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p, t \in I$$

$$(3.30)$$

$$\overline{x}(t)^T \overline{w}^j(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|D^j)$$
, $j = 1, 2, ..., m, t \in I$ (3.31)

From (3.18) along with (3.25), (3.29) and (3.31), we have

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x})+S(\bar{x}(t)|D^{j})\leq 0$$
, $j=1,2,...,m, t\in I$

This implies \bar{x} is feasible for (CP).

The relation (3.18) along with (3.29) and (3.24) gives

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + \overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}(t) \right) = 0 , t \in I$$
(3.32)

Now for each $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$, in view of (3.30) and (3.32), we have

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + \overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} z^{i}\left(t\right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(g^{j}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + \overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} w^{j}\left(t\right)\right) \right) dt = 0$$

$$= \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + S\left(\overline{x}|C^{i}\right) \right) dt , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

This along with the requirements of Theorem yields the efficiency of \bar{x} for (CP).

3.1.4 Mond-Weir Type Duality

We further weaken the invexity requirements in the preceeding section by formulating Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (CP).

(**M-WCD**): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u})+u(t)^{T}z^{1}(t)\right)dt,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u})+u(t)^{T}z^{p}(t)\right)dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = \alpha \quad , \quad u(b) = \beta \tag{3.33}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} (t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j} (t) \right)$$

$$= D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y (t)^{T} g_{x} \right), \ t \in I$$
(3.34)

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}$$
 , $i = 1, 2, ..., p$, (3.35)

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j}$$
 , $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, (3.36)

$$y(t) \ge 0 , t \in I$$
 (3.37)

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) dt \ge 0 , t \in I$$
 (3.38)

$$\lambda > 0. \tag{3.39}$$

Theorem 3.4 (*Weak Duality*): Let \bar{x} be feasible for (CP) and $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ be feasible for (M-WCD). If for all feasible $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, w^1, ..., w^m, \lambda)$ with respect to $\eta \equiv \eta(t, x, u)$,

i.
$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i} \left(t, ., . \right) + \left(\cdot \right)^{T} z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) dt$$
 is pseudoinvex and

ii. $\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) \Big(g^{j}(t,...) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j}(t) \Big) dt \text{ is quasi-invex with respect to}$ $\operatorname{same} \eta = \eta(t,x,u) \text{ following cannot hold.}$

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x\left(t\right)\middle|C^{i}\right) \right) dt \le \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{i}\left(t\right) dt \right)$$
(3.40)

for all $i \in \{1, ..., p\}$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{r}\left(t, x, \dot{x}\right) + S\left(x(t) \middle| C^{r}\right) \right) dt < \int_{I} \left(f^{r}\left(t, u, \dot{u}\right) + u(t)^{T} z^{r}\left(t\right) dt \right)$$
(3.41)

for some $r \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

Proof: Suppose that (3.40) and (3.41) hold, then in view of $\lambda > 0$ and $x(t)^T z^i(t) \leq S(x(t)|C^i)$, i = 1, 2, ..., p we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) \right) dt < \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{i}(t) \right) dt$$

This in view of the pseudoinvexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f^{i} \left(t, ... \right) + \left(\cdot \right)^{T} z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) dt$ yields,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} \right) \right\} dt < 0$$

This on integration by parts gives

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} \right) \right) dt + \eta^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

Using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $\eta = 0$, we have

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} \right) \right) dt < 0$$

From the feasibility requirements of (CP) and (M-WCD) together with $x(t)^T z^i(t) \leq S(x(t)|C^i)$, we have

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}) + x(t)^{T} w^{j}(t)\right) dt \leq \sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t)\right) dt$$

By quasi-invexity of $\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) (g^{j}(t,...) + (\cdot)^{T} w^{j}(t)) dt$, implies

$$\int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} y^{T}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right] dt \leq 0$$
(3.42)

This, by integration by parts, as earlier gives

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) - D y^{T}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right] dt \leq 0$$
(3.43)

Combining (3.42) and (3.43), we have

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) (g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)) \right) - D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) \right\} dt < 0$$

which contradicts (3.34), and the conclusion of the theorem is established.

The following strong duality can be proved on the lines of Theorem 3.2 with slight modifications.

Theorem 3.5 (*Strong Duality*): Let \overline{x} be a efficient solution of (CP) and for at least one i, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$, \overline{x} satisfies the regularity condition [30] for $(P_i(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$ with $\overline{\lambda}^T = (\overline{\lambda}^1, ..., \overline{\lambda}^i, ..., \overline{\lambda}^p)$ and piecewise smooth $\overline{y}: I \to R^m$ with $\overline{y}^T = (\overline{y}^1, ..., \overline{y}^i, ..., \overline{y}^m)$, $z^i(t) \in C^i$, i = 1, 2, ..., p and $w^j(t) \in D^j$, j = 1, 2, ..., m such that $(\overline{x}, \overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \overline{w}^1, ..., \overline{w}^m, \overline{\lambda})$ is feasible for (M-WCD) and the objective values of (CP) and (M-WCD) are equal.

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 3.4 are met, then $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of (M-WCD).

(M-WCD) can be rewritten in the following form:

Minimize
$$-\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u})+u(t)^{T}z^{1}(t)\right)dt, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u})+u(t)^{T}z^{p}(t)\right)dt\right)$$
Subject to
$$u(a) = \alpha \quad , \quad u(b) = \beta$$

$$\theta(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\lambda) = 0$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i} \quad , \quad i = 1,2, \dots, p,$$

$$w^{j}(t) \in D^{j} \quad , \quad j = 1,2, \dots, m,$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u})+u(t)^{T}w^{j}(t)\right)dt \geq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 \quad .$$

where

$$\theta = \theta\left(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), y(t), \lambda\right)$$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t)\right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t)\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + y(t) g_{\dot{x}}\right), \ t \in I$$

Theorem 3.6 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (M-WCD). Assume that

- (A₁) The Frèchèt derivative ψ' has a (weak*) closed range,
- (A_2) f and g are twice continuously differentiable,

(A₃)
$$f_x^i + \overline{z}^i(t) - Df_x^i$$
, $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ are linearly independent and

$$(\mathbf{A_4}) \left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) \beta(t) = 0, \Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 3.4 are met then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (CP)

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{w}^1, ..., \bar{w}^m, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' having a (weak*) closed range, is an efficient solution of (MWD), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$ with $\alpha^T = (\alpha^1, ..., \alpha^i, ..., \alpha^p)$, piecewise smooth $\beta: I \to R^n$ and $\mu: I \to R^m$, $\eta \in R^p$ with $\eta^T = (\eta^1, ..., \eta^p)$ satisfying the following Fritz-John conditions [37],

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \right) - \gamma \left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j} (t) \right) - D y (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$
 (3.44)

$$-\gamma (g^{j} + \overline{x}(t)\overline{w}^{j}(t)) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$j = 1, 2, ..., m$$
(3.45)

$$(f_x^i + z^i(t) - Df_x^i)\beta(t) - \eta^i = 0$$
, $i = 1,..., p$ (3.46)

$$\left(\beta(t)\lambda^{i} - \alpha^{i}\overline{x}(t)\right) \in N_{C^{i}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right), \ i = 1, \dots, p \ , \ t \in I$$

$$(3.47)$$

$$\left(\beta(t) - \gamma \overline{x}(t)\right) \overline{y}^{j}(t) \in N_{p,j}\left(\overline{w}^{j}(t)\right), \quad j = 1, \dots, m, t \in I$$
(3.48)

$$\gamma \sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j} \left(t \right) \left(g^{j} + \overline{x} \left(t \right)^{T} \overline{w}^{j} \left(t \right) \right) dt = 0$$

$$(3.49)$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{3.50}$$

$$\overline{\mu}^{T}(t)\overline{y}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$
(3.51)

$$(\alpha, \mu(t), \eta, \gamma) \ge 0 \tag{3.52}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu(t), \eta, \gamma) \neq 0 \tag{3.53}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (3.50) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (3.46) implies

$$(f_x^i + z^i(t) - Df_x^i)\beta(t) = 0$$
, $i = 1,..., p$ (3.54)

Using the equality constraint of (M-WCD) in (3.44), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} (\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}) (f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) - Df_{x}^{i}) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} = 0, t \in I$$
(3.55)

Using (3.54) and (3.55) in (3.44), we have

$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}}\right)\beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

which because of the hypothesis (A_4) implies,

$$\beta(t) = 0 , t \in I \tag{3.56}$$

The relation (3.55) along with (3.56), gives,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}\left(t\right) - D f_{x}^{i}\right) = 0$$

This, due to the hypothesis (A_3) gives,

$$\alpha^{i} = \gamma \lambda^{i} = 0, i = 1, 2, \dots, p$$

$$(3.57)$$

Suppose $\gamma = 0$; Then from (3.57) we have $\alpha = 0$. From (3.45), we have,

$$\mu(t) = 0$$
 , $t \in I$.

Consequently, $(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu(t), \eta, \gamma) = 0$ contradicting the Fritz-John condition (3.53).

Hence $\gamma > 0$ and from (3.57), $\alpha > 0$.

In view of (3.56) together with $\gamma > 0$ and $\alpha > 0$, (3.47) and (3.48), respectively imply

$$\overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{z}^{i}(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p, t \in I$$
(3.58)

$$\overline{x}(t)^{T} \overline{w}^{j}(t) = S(\overline{x}(t)|D^{j}) , \quad j = 1, 2, \dots, m, t \in I$$
(3.59)

The relation (3.45) along with $\gamma > 0$ and $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ and (3.59) imply

$$g^{j}(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}})+S(\overline{x}(t)|D^{j})\leq 0$$
, $j=1,2,\ldots,m$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (CP).

In view of (3.58), we have

$$f^{i}(\overline{x}) + \overline{x}^{T} \overline{z}^{i}$$

$$= f^{i}(\overline{x}) + S(\overline{x}|C^{i}) , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

This, in view of the hypothesis of Theorem 3.4 gives the efficiency of \bar{x} for (CP).

3.1.5 Related Problems

It is possible to extend duality theorems established in the previous sections to the corresponding multiobjective variational problem containing support functions with natural boundary values rather than fixed end point.

PRIMAL (**CP**)₀: Minimize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t,x,\dot{x}\right)+S\left(x(t)\middle|C^{1}\right)\right)dt,\ldots,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}\left(t,x,\dot{x}\right)+S\left(x(t)\middle|C^{p}\right)\right)dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x}) + S(x(t)|D^{j}) \le 0, j = 1,2,...,m, t \in I$$

DUAL (WDP)₀: Maximize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt
\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} z^{p}(t) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t)^{T} \left(g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j}(t) \right) \right) dt \right)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j}(t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j}(t) \right) = D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x}^{i} + y(t) g_{x} \right), \ t \in I$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x} = 0, \quad \text{at } t = a \text{ and } t = b$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$
 $w^{j}(t) \in D^{j}$, $j = 1, 2, ..., m$
 $\lambda > 0$, $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$

DUAL (M-WD)₀: Maximize

$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{1}\left(t\right)\right) dt, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}\left(t,u,\dot{u}\right)+u\left(t\right)^{T} z^{p}\left(t\right)\right) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} (t) \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (t) \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j} (t) \right)$$

$$= D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right), \ t \in I$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} = 0 = \lambda^{T} y(t) g_{\dot{x}}, \text{ at } t = a \text{ and } t = b$$

$$z^{i} (t) \in C^{i}, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p,$$

$$w^{j} (t) \in D^{j}, \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m,$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j} (t)^{T} \left(g^{j} (t, u, \dot{u}) + u(t)^{T} w^{j} (t) \right) dt \geq 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0.$$

If the functions in the problem mentioned in Section 3.5 are independent of t, they will reduce to the following.

PRIMAL (NP): Minimize
$$(f^1(x) + S(x|C^1),...,f^p(x) + S(x|C^p))$$

Subject to $g^j(x) + S(x|D^j) < 0, j = 1,2,...,m$

DUAL (WNP): Maximixe
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}z^{1} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j}) + \dots, f^{p}(u) + u^{T}z^{p} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} (g^{j}(u) + u^{T}w^{j}) \right)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$w^{j} \in D^{j} , \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$$

DUAL (M-WNP): Maximize $(f^1(u)+u^Tz^1,...,f^p(u)+u^Tz^p)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + z^{i} \right) + \sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g_{x}^{j} + w^{j} \right) = 0$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$w^{j} \in D^{j} , \quad j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$y \ge 0 , \quad t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} y^{j} \left(g^{j} \left(u \right) + u^{T} w^{j} \right) \ge 0$$

$$\lambda > 0$$



OPTIMALITY CONDITIONS AND MULTIOBJECTIVE DUALITY FOR VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS INVOLVING HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

4.1	Optimality Criteria and Duality for Multiobjective Variational
	Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives

- 4.1.1 Introductory Remarks
- 4.1.2 Invexity and Generalized Invexity
- 4.1.3 Variational Problem and Optimality Conditions
- 4.1.4 Wolfe Type Duality
- 4.1.5 Natural Boundary Values
- 4.1.6 Nonlinear Programming

4.2 Multiobjective Duality in Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives

- 4.2.1 Mond-Weir Type Duality
- 4.2.2 Natural Boundary Values
- 4.2.3 Nonlinear Programming

4.3 Mixed Type Multiobjective Variational Problems with Higher Order Derivatives

- 4.3.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality
- 4.3.2 Related Nonlinear Problems

4.1 OPTIMALITY CRITERIA AND DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS INVOLVING HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

4.1.1 Introductory Remarks

In [73], Husain and Jabeen studied a wider class of variational problem in which the arc function is twice differentiable by extending the notion of invexity given in [103]. They obtained Fritz John as well as Karush-Kuhn-Tucker necessary optimality conditions as an application of Karush-Kuhn-Tucker optimality conditions studied various duality results for Wolfe and Mond-Weir type models.

Since mathematical programming and classical calculus of variations have undergone independent development, it is felt that mutual adaptation of ideas and techniques may prove useful. Motivated with this idea in this exposition, we propose to study optimality criteria and duality for a wider class of multiobjective variational problems involving higher order derivative. These results not only generalize the results of Husain and Jabeen [73] and Bector and Husain [19] but also present a dynamic generalization of some of the results in multiobjective nonlinear programming already existing.

This chapter is divided into three sections, 4.1, 4.2 and 4.3. In the section 4.1, optimality conditions, both Fritz-John and Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type optimality conditions are derived for the variational problem and the notion of invexity / generalized invexity are extended. As an application of Karush-Kuhn-Tucker optimality conditions, Wolfe type dual is formulated and various duality results are established under invexity defined in this section. In this section, it is also shown that our results can be considered as continuous time extension of nonlinear problem existing in the literature. The section 4.2 formulates Mond-Weir dual for multiobjective variational problem considered in the subsection 4.2.1 to relax the invexity requirements of section 4.1 for various duality results to hold and gives relationship between the results of this section to those of nonlinear programming. The section 4.3 is meant to unify the dual formulations of the variational problems in the section 4.1 and 4.2 and prove various duality results under invexity and generalized invexity results.

4.1.2 Invexity and Generalized Invexity

For ready reference, we reproduce the following definition extended by Husain and Jabeen [73].

Definition 4.1 (*Invexity*): If there exists vector function $\eta(t, \dot{u}, \dot{x}, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \in \mathbb{R}^n$ with $\eta = 0$ and $x(t) = u(t), t \in I$ and $D\eta = 0$ for $\dot{x}(t) = \dot{u}(t), t \in I$ such that for a scalar function $\phi(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})$, the functional $\Phi(x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = \int_{I} \phi(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$ satisfies, $\Phi(u) - \Phi(x) \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^T \phi_x(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (D\eta)^T \phi_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (D^2\eta)^T \phi_{\ddot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right\} dt$, Φ is said to be invex in x, \dot{x} and \ddot{x} on I with respect to η .

Definition 4.2 (*Pseudoinvexity*): Φ is said to be pseudoinvex in x, \dot{x} and \ddot{x} with respect to η if $\int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \phi_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (D\eta)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (D^{2}\eta)^{T} \phi_{\ddot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right\} dt \ge 0$ implies $\Phi(u) \ge \Phi(x)$.

Definition 4.3 (*Quasi-Invex*): The functional Φ is said to quasi-invex in x, \dot{x} and \ddot{x} with respect to η if

$$\Phi(u) \leq \Phi(x) \quad \text{implies}$$

$$\int_{T} \left\{ \eta^{T} \phi_{x} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x} \right) + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \phi_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x} \right) \right\} dt \leq 0.$$

4.1.3 Variational Problem and Optimality Conditions

We present the following multiobjective variational problem with higher order derivatives:

(VPE): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$
 (4.1)

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b) \tag{4.2}$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0$$
 , $t \in I$ (4.3)

$$h(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I \tag{4.4}$$

where

- 1) $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$ and $h: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^k$ are continuously differentiable function, and
- 2) \hat{X} designates the space of piecewise functions $x: I \to R^n$ possessing derivatives \dot{x} and \ddot{x} with the norm $||x|| = ||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty}$.

We require the following definition of efficient solution for our further analysis.

Definition 4.4 (*Efficient Solution*): A feasible solution \bar{x} is efficient for (VPE) if there exist no other feasible x for (VPE) such that for some $i \in P = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt < \int_{I} f^{i}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) dt$$

and

$$\int_{I} f^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt \leq \int_{I} f^{j}(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\dot{\overline{x}})dt \text{ for all } j \in P, \ j \neq i.$$

In relation to (VPE), we introduce the following set of problems \overline{P}_r for each r = 1, 2, ..., p in the spirit of [35], with a single objective,

$$(\overline{\mathbf{P}}_{\mathbf{r}})$$
: Minimize $\int_{I} f^{r}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b),$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b),$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I,$$

$$h(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I,$$

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \int_{I} f^{i}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{x}) dt \quad , \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p \quad , \quad i \neq r.$$

The following lemma can be proved on the lines of Chankong and Haimes [35].

Lemma 4.1: x^* is an efficient solution of (VPE) if and only if \overline{x} is an optimal solution of (\overline{P}_r) for each r = 1, 2, ..., p.

Consider the following single objective variational problem considered in [73].

(**P**₀): Minimize
$$\int_{I} \phi(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b),$$

 $\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b),$
 $g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I,$
 $h(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0, t \in I,$

where $\phi: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$.

The following proposition gives the Fritz-John type necessary optimality conditions obtained by Husain and Jabeen [73]. In this proposition, we have written the functions without arguments for brevity.

Proposition 4.1 [73]: (*Fritz John Optimality Conditions*) If \bar{x} is an optimal solution of (P₀) and $h_x(x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot))$ maps X into the subspace of $C(I, R^k)$, then there exists Lagrange multiplier $\bar{\tau} \in R$, the piecewise smooth $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\bar{z}: I \to R^k$, such that

$$\left(\overline{\tau} \phi_{x} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\tau} \phi_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\dot{x}}\right)$$

$$+ D^{2}\left(\overline{\tau} \phi_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I,$$

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T} g\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I,$$

$$\left(\overline{\tau}, \overline{y}(t)\right) \geq 0, t \in I,$$

$$\left(\overline{\tau}, \overline{y}(t), \overline{z}(t)\right) \neq 0, t \in I.$$

If $\bar{\tau} = 1$, then the above optimality conditions will reduce to the Karush-Kuhn-Tucker type optimality conditions and the solution \bar{x} is referred to as a normal solution.

We now establish the following theorem that gives the necessary optimality conditions for (VPE).

Theorem 4.1 (*Fritz-John Conditions*): Let \overline{x} be an efficient solution of (VPE) and $h_x(x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot))$ maps X into the subspace of $C(I, R^k)$, then there exist $\overline{\lambda} \in R^k$ and the piecewise smooth $\overline{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\overline{z}: I \to R^k$, such that

$$\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\dot{x}}\right)
+ D^{2} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, \quad t \in I,$$
(4.5)

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, \ t \in I,$$

$$(4.6)$$

$$(\bar{\lambda}, \bar{y}(t)) \ge 0, \ t \in I,$$
 (4.7)

$$(\overline{\lambda}, \overline{y}(t), \overline{z}(t)) \neq 0, t \in I.$$
 (4.8)

Proof: Since \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VPE) by Lemma 4.1, \bar{x} is an optimal solution of (\bar{P}_r) , for each $r=1,2,\ldots,p$. From Proposition1, it follows that, there exist scalars $\bar{\lambda}^{1r}, \bar{\lambda}^{2r}, \ldots, \bar{\lambda}^{pr}$ and piecewise smooth function $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\bar{z}: I \to R^k$, such that

$$\begin{split} \overline{\lambda}^{rr} f_{x}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq r}}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{\substack{j=1\\i\neq r}}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{x}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{x}^{l} \\ -D \left(\overline{\lambda}^{rr} f_{\dot{x}}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq r}}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{\dot{x}}^{l} \right) \\ + D^{2} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{rr} f_{\dot{x}}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq r}}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{\ddot{x}}^{l} \right) = 0 , t \in I, \\ \overline{y}^{T}(t) g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) = 0 , t \in I, \\ \left(\overline{\lambda}^{1r}, \overline{\lambda}^{2r}, \dots, \overline{\lambda}^{pr}, \overline{y}^{1r}(t), \overline{y}^{2r}(t), \dots, \overline{y}^{mr}(t), \overline{z}^{1r}(t), \overline{z}^{2r}(t), \dots, \overline{z}^{lr}(t) \right) \neq 0 , t \in I. \end{split}$$

Summing over r, we have

$$\begin{split} \sum_{r=1}^{p} & \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} \right) f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) \right) g_{x}^{j} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) \right) h_{x}^{l} \\ & - D \left(\sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} \right) f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) \right) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) \right) h_{\dot{x}}^{l} \right) \\ & + D^{2} \left(\sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} \right) f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr} \right) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{r=1}^{p} \left(\sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) \right) h_{\ddot{x}}^{l} \right) = 0, t \in I, \end{split}$$

$$\overline{y}^{T}(t) g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I,$$

$$\left(\sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{1r}, \dots, \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{pr}; \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{y}^{1r}(t), \dots, \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{y}^{mr}(t)\right) \ge 0, t \in I,$$

$$\left(\sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{1r}, \dots, \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{pr}; \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{y}^{1r}(t), \dots, \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{y}^{mr}(t); \sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{z}^{1r}(t), \dots, \sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{z}^{lr}(t)\right) \ne 0, t \in I$$

Setting $\overline{\lambda}^i = \sum_{r=1}^p \overline{\lambda}^{ir}$, $\overline{y}^j(t) = \sum_{r=1}^p \overline{y}^{jr}(t)$, $t \in I$ and $\overline{z}^l(t) = \sum_{r=1}^l \overline{z}^{lr}(t)$, $t \in I$, we have,

$$\begin{split} \left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_x + \overline{y}(t)^T g_x + \overline{z}(t)^T h_x\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^T g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^T h_{\dot{x}}\right) \\ + D^2 \left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^T g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^T h_{\dot{x}}\right) = 0 \ , \ t \in I \,, \\ \overline{y}(t)^T g\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0 \ , \ t \in I \,, \\ \left(\overline{\lambda}, \overline{y}(t)\right) \geq 0 \ , \ t \in I \,, \\ \left(\overline{\lambda}, \overline{y}(t), \overline{z}(t)\right) \neq 0 \ , \ t \in I \,. \end{split}$$

Theorem 4.2 (*Karush-Kuhn-Tucker Conditions*): Let \bar{x} be an efficient solution for (VPE) which is assumed to be normal for (\bar{P}_r) for each $r=1,2,\ldots,p$. Let the constraints of (P_r) satisfy Slater's Constraint Qualification [30] for each $r=1,2,\ldots,p$. Then there exist $\bar{\lambda}^T \in R_+^k$, $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\bar{z}: I \to R^k$, such that the following relation hold for all $t \in I$,

$$\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\dot{x}}\right)
+ D^{2}\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$
(4.9)

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, \ t \in I$$
(4.10)

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0$$
 , $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ (4.11)

Proof: Since \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VPE) by lemma 4.1, \bar{x} is an optimal solution of (\bar{P}_r) , for each r = 1, 2, ..., p then there exist scalars $\bar{\lambda}_{1r}, \bar{\lambda}_{2r}, ..., \bar{\lambda}_{pr}$ with $\bar{\lambda}_{rr} = 1$, $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ and $\bar{z}: I \to R^k$, such that the following conditions are satisfied for all

$$\begin{split} f_{x}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i \neq r}}^{k} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{x}^{r} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{x}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{x}^{l} \\ - D \left(f_{x}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i \neq r}}^{k} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{\dot{x}}^{r} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{\dot{x}}^{l} \right) \\ + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{r} + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i \neq r}}^{k} \overline{\lambda}^{ir} f_{\ddot{x}}^{r} + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{jr}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} + \sum_{l=1}^{k} \overline{z}^{lr}(t) h_{\ddot{x}}^{l} \right) = 0, t \in I, \\ \overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I, \\ \overline{y}(t) \geq 0, \end{split}$$

 $\overline{\lambda}_{ir} \ge 0$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, $i \ne r$. Summing over r and setting $\overline{\lambda}_i = \sum_{r=1}^p \overline{\lambda}^{ir}$ with $\overline{\lambda}^{ii} = 1$,

$$\begin{split} \overline{y}^{j}(t) &= \sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{y}^{jr}(t), \overline{z}^{l}(t) = \sum_{r=1}^{p} \overline{z}^{lr}(t), \text{ we have,} \\ & \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\dot{x}}\right) \\ & + D^{2}\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{z}(t)^{T} h_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I, \\ & \overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I, \\ & \overline{\lambda} > 0, \overline{y}(t) \geq 0, t \in I. \end{split}$$

Remark: If $\lambda > 0$, then Theorem 4.1 reduces to Theorem 4.2 and then an efficient solution is called a normal solution as an analogy to the normality condition given in [30].

4.1.4 Wolfe Type Duality

In this section, we consider the following variational problem (VP) involving higher order derivatives, by suppressing the equality constraint in (VPE).

(VP): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt,\ldots,\int_{I} f^{p}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0$$
, $t \in I$

We formulate the following Wolfe type dual to the problem (VP) and establish various duality results under invexity defined in the preceding section.

(WD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{i} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b)$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I$$

$$(4.12)$$

$$y(t) \ge 0 , t \in I$$
 (4.13)

$$\lambda > 0$$
, $\lambda^T e = 1$ (4.14)

where $e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T$ and $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^k$.

Theorem 4.3 (*Weak Duality*): Let $x \in X$ be feasible for (VP) and (u, λ, y) be feasible for (WD), if $\int_I \lambda^T f dt$ is invex and $\int_I y(t)^T g dt$ is invex with respect to the same η . Then

Proof:
$$\lambda^{T} \left(\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt - \int_{I} \left\{ f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) e \right\} dt \right)$$

$$= \int_{I} (\lambda^{T} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - \lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) - (\lambda^{T} e) y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt,$$
(By using $\lambda^{T} e = 1$)
$$\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{x}) + (D\eta)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{x}) + (D^{2} \eta)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{x}) \right\} dt$$

$$- \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \qquad (4.15)$$

This is possible by invexity of $\int_{T} \lambda^{T} f dt$

Also from the feasibility of (VP) and (WD), we have

$$\int_{I} y(t)^{T} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} (y^{T} g)_{x} + (D\eta)^{T} (y^{T} g)_{\dot{x}} + (D^{2} \eta)^{T} (y^{T} g)_{\ddot{x}} \right\} dt$$
(By definition of Invexity)

This implies

$$-\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) dt \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \left(y^{T} g \right)_{x} + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(y^{T} g \right)_{\dot{x}} + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(y^{T} g \right)_{\dot{x}} \right\} dt$$
$$-\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) dt$$

Using this in (4.15), we have,

$$\lambda^{T} \left(\int_{I} f\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt - \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) e \right\} dt \right)$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f_{x} + \left(D\eta\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}\right) + \left(D^{2}\eta\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$+ \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \left(y^{T} g\right)_{x} + \left(D\eta\right)^{T} \left(y^{T} g\right)_{\dot{x}} + \left(D^{2}\eta\right)^{T} \left(y^{T} g\right)_{\ddot{x}} \right\} dt$$

$$- \int_{I} y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt$$

$$\begin{split} &= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) \right. \\ &+ \left(D \eta^{2} \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right\} dt - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \\ &= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) dt + \eta^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \\ &- \int_{I} \eta^{T} D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) dt + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \\ &- \int_{I} \left(D \eta \right)^{T} D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) dt - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \end{split}$$

(By integration by parts)

Using the boundary conditions which give $D\eta = 0 = \eta$ at t = a, t = b

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) dt - \int_{I} \eta^{T} D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) dt + \eta^{T} D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

$$+ \int_{I} \eta^{T} D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) dt - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$$
(By integration by parts)

Using the boundary conditions which give $D\eta = 0 = \eta$ at t = a, t = b

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right\} dt$$

$$- \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$$

$$\geq - \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt, \text{ (By equation (4.12))}$$

$$\geq 0 \qquad \text{(by (4.3) and (4.13))}$$

That is,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right\} dt$$

or

$$\lambda^{T} \left(\int_{I} f\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) \right) dt \ge \lambda^{T} \left(\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) e \right\} \right) dt$$

This yields,

$$\int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \int_{I} \left\{ f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) e \right\} dt.$$

Theorem 4.4 (*Strong Duality*): If \bar{x} is efficient and normal solution of (VP), then there exist piecewise smooth $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ such that (\bar{x}, \bar{y}) is feasible for (WD) and the corresponding objective values of the problems (VP) and (WD) are equal. If the hypotheses of Theorem 4.2 are satisfied, then (\bar{x}, \bar{y}) is an efficient solution of (WD).

Proof: Since \overline{x} is efficient and normal for (VP), by Theorem 4.2, it implies that there exist $\mu \in \mathbb{R}^p$ and piecewise smooth $u: I \to \mathbb{R}^m$ such that,

$$\left(\mu^{T} f_{x} + u(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\mu^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + u(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\mu^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + u(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) = 0, \ t \in I,$$

$$\overline{u}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}) = 0, \ t \in I,$$

$$\mu > 0 \quad \overline{u}(t) \ge 0, \ t \in I.$$

Since $\mu > 0$, $\mu^T e \neq 0$.

$$\left(\left(\frac{\mu}{\mu^{T}e}\right)^{T} f_{x} + \frac{y(t)^{T}}{\mu^{T}e} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\left(\frac{\mu}{\mu^{T}e}\right)^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + \frac{y(t)^{T}}{\mu^{T}e} g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\left(\frac{\mu}{\mu^{T}e}\right)^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \frac{y(t)^{T}}{\mu^{T}e} g_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\left(\frac{y(t)}{\mu^T e}\right)^T g\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\frac{\mu}{\mu^T e} > 0, \frac{y(t)}{\mu^T e} \ge , t \in I$$

Setting $\frac{\mu}{\mu^T e} = \overline{\lambda}_i$ and $\frac{y(t)}{\mu^T e} = \overline{y}(t)$ in the above relations, we have,

$$\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(4.16)$$

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I$$
(4.17)

$$\begin{vmatrix}
\overline{\lambda} > 0 & \overline{y}(t) \ge 0 \\
\lambda^T e = 1
\end{vmatrix}, t \in I$$
(4.18)

From (4.5) and (4.7), it follows that $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ is feasible for (WD). The equality of the objective of (VP) and (WD) is obvious in view of (4.17). The efficiency of $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ for (WD) follows from Theorem 4.3.

As in [105], by employing chain rule in calculus, it can be easily seen that the expression $\left(\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x\right) - D\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^2\left(\lambda^T f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}}\right)$, may be regarded as a function θ of variables $t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}$ and λ , where $\ddot{x} = D^3 x$ and $\ddot{y} = D^2 y$. That is, we can write

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = (\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x) - D(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}) + D^2(\lambda^T f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}})$$

In order to prove converse duality between (VP) and (WD), the space X is now replaced by a smaller space X_2 of piecewise smooth thrice differentiable function $x: I \to R^n$ with the norm $||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty} + ||D^3x||_{\infty}$. The problem (WD) may now be briefly written as,

Minimize
$$-\left(\int_{i}^{1} (f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\right) dt$$

$$\dots, \int_{i}^{1} (f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})) dt$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0 , \lambda^{T} e = 1$$

where $e = (1,1,...,1)^T \in \mathbb{R}^p$ and $\lambda \in \mathbb{R}^p$.

Consider $\theta(t, x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \lambda) = 0$ as defining a mapping $\psi: X_2 \times Y \times R^p \to B$ where Y is a space of piecewise twice differentiable function and B is the Banach Space. In order to apply Theorem 4.1 to the problem (WD), the infinite dimensional inequality must bne restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda), \psi_y(x,y,\lambda), \psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)]$.

Theorem 4.5 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ be an efficient solution of (WD) and ψ' has a (weak*) closed range. Assume that

- $(\mathbf{H_1})$ f and g are twice differentiable,
- $(\mathbf{H_2})$ the hypotheses of Theorem 4.3 hold, and

$$(\mathbf{H_3}) \quad \sigma(t)^T \left(\sigma(t)^T \theta_x - D\sigma(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \sigma(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} - D^3 \sigma(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\Rightarrow \sigma(t) = 0, \ t \in I$$

Then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ is an efficient solution of (WD) and ψ' has a closed range, then by Theorem 4.1, there exist $\alpha \in R^k$ and piecewise smooth $\beta: I \to R^n$, $\xi: I \to R^m$ and $\mu^T \in R^p$ such that

$$\left[-\left(\alpha f_{x} + \left(\alpha^{T} e\right) y(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} \right] - D\left[-\left(\alpha f_{\dot{x}} + \left(\alpha^{T} e\right) y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} \right]
+ \left[-\left(\alpha f_{\ddot{x}} + \left(\alpha^{T} e\right) y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}\right) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right] - D^{3} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0$$
(4.19)

$$-\left(\alpha^{T}e\right)g + \beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y} - D\left(\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\dot{y}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\dot{y}}\right) - \xi(t) = 0$$

$$(4.20)$$

$$\beta(t)(f_x - Df_{\dot{x}} + D^2 f_{\ddot{x}}) + \mu^i + \gamma = 0$$
(4.21)

$$\mu^T \lambda = 0 \tag{4.22}$$

$$\overline{\xi}(t)^T \overline{y}(t) = 0 \tag{4.23}$$

$$\gamma \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} - 1 \right) = 0 \tag{4.24}$$

$$(\alpha, \mu, \gamma, \xi(t)) > 0 \tag{4.25}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu, \gamma, \xi(t)) \neq 0 \tag{4.26}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (4.22) implies $\mu = 0$. Consequently (4.21) implies

$$\beta(t)^{T} \left(f_{x}^{i} - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right) = -\gamma \tag{4.27}$$

From the equality constraint of the dual problem (WD) together with (4.27), it follows

$$y(t)^{T} g_{x} - Dy(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} = -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right)$$

$$\left(y(t)^{T} g_{x} - Dy(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \beta(t) = -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right) \beta(t)$$

$$= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(-\gamma \right) = \gamma \qquad (4.28)$$

Postmultiplying (4.19) by $\beta(t)$ and then using (4.27) and (4.28), we have

$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2\beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^3\beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right)\beta(t) = 0$$

This because of the hypothesis of (H_3) yields

$$\beta(t) = 0, t \in I \tag{4.29}$$

Therefore from (4.27), we have $\gamma = 0$.

Suppose $\alpha = 0$, then from (4.20), $\xi(t) = 0$, $t \in I$. Consequently we have $(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu, \gamma, \xi(t)) = 0$, $t \in I$. This is in contradiction to (4.26).

Hence $\alpha > 0$. The relation (4.20) in conjunction with (4.29) yields,

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = -\frac{\xi(t)}{\alpha^T e} \le 0 \tag{4.30}$$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (VP). The relation (4.30) with (4.23) yields

$$y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0, t \in I$$
 (4.31)

This implies,

$$\int_{i} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt = \int_{i} f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt$$

This along with an application of Theorem 4.3 accomplishes the efficiency of \bar{x} for (VP).

4.1.5 Natural Boundary Values

The duality results obtained in the preceding sections can easily be extended to the multiobjective variational problems with natural boundary values rather than fixed end points.

Primal (P₁): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0 , t \in I$$

Dual (D₁): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left(f\left(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}\right) e \right) dt$$
Subject to
$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y\left(t\right)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y\left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y\left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) = 0 \quad t \in I$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y\left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) = 0 , at \quad t = a \quad and \quad t = b$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y\left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) = 0 , at \quad t = a \quad and \quad t = b$$

$$y \geq 0 \quad , \qquad \lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

4.1.6 Nonlinear Programming

If the problems (P_1) and (D_1) are independent of t, then they will reduce the following multiobjective nonlinear programming problems: studied in [55]

(**NP**): Minimize f(x)

Subject to

$$g(x) \leq 0$$
.

(ND):Maximize $f(x) + y^T g(x)e$

Subject to

$$\lambda^T f_x + y^T g_x = 0$$

$$y \ge 0$$
.

4.2 MULTIOBJECTIVE DUALITY IN VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS WITH HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

4.2.1 Mond-Weir type Duality

We formulate the following Mond-Weir type dual to the problem (VP) and establish various duality results under invexity defined in the preceding section.

(**M-WD**): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt,\ldots,\int_{I} f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$
, (4.32)

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b), \tag{4.33}$$

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$(4.34)$$

$$\int_{1} y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \qquad (4.35)$$

$$y(t) \ge 0 , t \in I,$$
 (4.36)

$$\lambda > 0. \tag{4.37}$$

Theorem 4.6 (*Weak Duality*): Let $x \in X$ be feasible for (VP) and (u, λ, y) be feasible for (M-WD) if for all feasible $(x, u, \lambda, y) \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$ is pseudoinvex and $\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$ is quasi-invex with respect to the same η . Then,

$$\int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \not\leq \int_{I} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt.$$

Proof: The relations $g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \le 0$, $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ imply

$$\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

This because of the quasi-invexity of $\int_{t}^{t} y(t)^{T} g(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt$, implies that

$$0 \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} y^{T}(t) g_{u} + (D\eta)^{T} y^{T} g_{\dot{u}} + (D^{2}\eta)^{T} y^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{u} dt + \eta^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

$$- \int_{I} \eta^{T} Dy(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} dt + (D\eta)^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} - \int_{I} (D\eta)^{T} Dy(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} dt$$

(By integration by parts)

Using the boundary conditions which gives $D\eta = 0 = \eta$ at t = a, t = b

$$= \int_{I} \eta^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{u} dt - \int_{I} \eta^{T} Dy(t)^{T} g_{u} dt - \eta^{T} Dy(t)^{T} g_{u}\Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} + \int_{I} \eta^{T} D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{u} dt$$

(By integration by parts)

Using the boundary conditions which give $D\eta = 0 = \eta$ at t = a, t = b

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{u} dt - \int_{I} \eta^{T} Dy(t)^{T} g_{u} dt + \int_{I} \eta^{T} D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{u} dt \leq 0$$

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(y(t)^{T} g_{u} - Dy(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} + D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} \right) dt \leq 0$$

From equation (4.34) this yields,

$$\int_{T} \eta^{T} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f_{x} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} \right\} dt \ge 0$$

This by integration by parts and then using boundary conditions gives,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} \right) + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right\} dt \geq 0,$$

This, in view of pseudoinvexity of $\int_{t}^{\infty} \lambda^{T} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt$ implies that

$$\lambda^T \int_I f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \geq \lambda^T \int_I f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$
.

For this, it follows

$$\int_{I} f(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt \not\leq \int_{I} f(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt.$$

Theorem 4.7 (*Strong Duality*): If \bar{x} be a feasible solution for (VP) and assume that

- **i.** \bar{x} is an efficient solution.
- ii. for at least one i, $i \in P$, \overline{x} satisfies a regularity condition in [30] for $P_k(\overline{x})$.

Then there exists one $\bar{\lambda} \in R^p$, $\bar{y} \in R^m$ such that $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ is efficient for (VD). Further if the assumptions of Theorem 4.6 are satisfied, then $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of (VD).

Proof: Since \bar{x} is efficient solution by Lemma 4.2, it is an optimal solution of $P_k(\bar{x})$. By Proposition 4.2, this implies that there exists $\lambda^T = (\lambda^1, ..., \lambda^p)$ and piecewise smooth $y: I \to R^m$ such that,

$$\overline{\lambda}_{k} \left(f_{x}^{k} - D f_{\dot{x}}^{k} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{k} \right) + \sum_{i \neq k} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right)
+ \left(y (t)^{T} g_{x} - D y (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} y (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0 ,$$
(4.38)

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0 , t \in I,$$
(4.39)

$$\overline{y}(t)^T g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) dt = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I ,$$
(4.40)

$$(\bar{\lambda}, \bar{y}(t)) \ge 0$$
, $t \in I$, (4.41)

$$(\overline{\lambda}, \overline{y}(t)) \neq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I$$
 (4.42)

From (4.40), we have

$$\int_{1}^{T} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt = 0$$
(4.43)

Equations (4.39), (4.40) and (4.41) imply that $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ is feasible for (M-WD). The equality of objective functional of the primal and dual problems is obvious from their formulations. Efficiency of $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ is immediate from the application of Theorem 4.6.

As in [105], by employing chain rule in calculus, it can be easily seen that the expression $\left(\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x\right) - D\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^2\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right)$, may be regarded as a function θ of variables $t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}$ and λ , where $\ddot{x} = D^3 x$ and $\ddot{y} = D^2 y$. That is, we can write

$$\theta(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x},\ddot{x},y,\dot{y},\ddot{y},\lambda) = \left(\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x\right) - D\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^2\left(\lambda^T f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}}\right)$$

In order to prove converse duality between (VP) and (M-WD), the space X is now replaced by a smaller space X_2 of piecewise smooth thrice differentiable function $x: I \to R^n$ with the norm $||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty} + ||D^3x||_{\infty}$. The problem (M-WD) may now be briefly written as,

Minimize
$$\left(-\int_{i}^{1} f^{1}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt,...,-\int_{i}^{p} f^{p}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b),$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b),$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = 0$$

$$\int_{1}^{1} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \ge 0$$

$$y(t) \ge 0, \quad t \in I$$

Consider $\theta(t, x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \lambda) = 0$ as defining a mapping $\psi: X_2 \times Y \times R^p \to B$ where Y is a space of piecewise twice differentiable function and B is the Banach Space. In order to apply Theorem 4.1 to the problem (M-WD), the infinite dimensional inequality must be restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $\left[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda),\psi_y(x,y,\lambda),\psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)\right]$.

Theorem 4.8 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ be an efficient solution with $x \in X_2$, $y \in Y_2$ and $\lambda^T \in R^p$ and ψ' have a (weak*)closed range hypothesis. Let f and g be twice continuously differentiable. Assume that

(**H**₁) $\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f dt$ be pseudoinvex and $\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g dt$ be quasi-invex with respect to same η .

$$(\mathbf{H_2}) \quad \sigma(t)^T \left(\sigma(t)\theta_x - D\sigma(t)\theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2\sigma(t)\theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^3\sigma(t)\theta_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0$$
$$\Rightarrow \sigma(t) = 0, \ t \in I.$$

(H₃) $f_x^i - Df_{\dot{x}}^i + D^2 f_{\ddot{x}}^i$, i = 1, 2, ..., p are linearly independent.

Then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{\lambda}, \bar{y})$ where $\bar{x} \in X$ and ψ' having a closed range, is an efficient solution of (M-WD), by Theorem 4.6, it implies that there exist $\alpha \in R$, $\gamma \in R$, $\eta \in R^p$ and piecewise smooth $\beta: R \to R^n$ and $\mu: R \to R^m$ satisfying the following conditions.

$$-\alpha \left(f_{x} - Df_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}} \right) - \gamma \left(y(t)^{T} g_{x} - D \left(y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right)$$

$$+ \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \left(\beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right) - D^{3} \left(\beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0$$
(4.44)

$$\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y} - D(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}}) + D^{2}(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}}) - \gamma g - \mu(t) = 0$$

$$(4.45)$$

$$\beta(t)^{T} (f_{x} - Df_{x} + D^{2} f_{x}) - \eta = 0$$
(4.46)

$$\gamma \int_{1}^{T} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt = 0$$

$$(4.47)$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0, \quad \mu(t)^T y(t) = 0, \quad t \in I$$
(4.48)

$$(\alpha, \gamma, \eta, \mu(t)) \ge 0$$
, $t \in I$ and $(\alpha, \gamma, \eta, \mu(t), \beta(t)) \ne 0$, $t \in I$ (4.49)

Since $\lambda > 0$, $\eta^T \lambda = 0$, which implies $\eta = 0$

This yields from (4.46)

$$\beta(t)^{T} \left(f_{x} - D f_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0 \tag{4.50}$$

Using the equality constraint (4.34) in (4.44), we have

$$-(\alpha - \gamma \lambda)^{T} \left(f_{x} - D f_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}} \right) + \beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{x}$$

$$-D \left(\beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right) - D^{3} \left(\beta \left(t \right)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0$$

$$(4.51)$$

Postmultiplying equation (4.44) by $\beta(t)$ and using (4.50) in (4.51) we get,

$$\beta(t)^{T} \left(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^{2} \left(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) - D^{3} \left(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

This by hypothesis (H₂) implies $\beta(t) = 0$, $t \in I$

Also from (4.51) we have

$$(\alpha - \gamma \lambda)^{T} (f_{x} - Df_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}) = 0$$

This, because of linear independence of $f_x^i - Df_{\dot{x}}^i + D^2 f_{\ddot{x}}^i$, i = 1, 2, ..., p, gives

$$\alpha - \gamma \lambda = 0 \tag{4.52}$$

Now suppose $\gamma = 0$, then, from (4.45) and (4.52) we have

$$\mu(t) = 0$$
, $t \in I$ and $\alpha = 0$ respectively.

This implies $(\alpha, \beta(t), \gamma, \eta, \mu(t)) = 0$, which is the contradiction to

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \gamma, \eta, \mu(t)) \neq 0, t \in I.$$

Hence $\gamma > 0$ and by (4.52) we have, $\alpha > 0$.

The relation (4.45) in conjunction with $\beta(t) = 0$, and $\mu(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ gives

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0$$
, $t \in I$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (VP) and its efficiency is evident from and application of Theorem 4.6.

4.2.2 Natural Boundary Values

The duality results obtained in the preceding sections can easily be extended to the following multiobjective variational problems with natural boundary values rather than fixed end points:

Primal (P₁): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt,\ldots,\int_{I} f^{p}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0$$
 , $t \in I$

Dual (D₁): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt\right)$$

Subject to

$$\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x} + y(t)^{T} g_{x}\right) - D\left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}\right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}\right) = 0 \quad t \in I,$$

$$y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} = 0 , at \quad t = a \text{ and } t = b ,$$

$$y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} = 0 , at \quad t = a \text{ and } t = b ,$$

$$y(t) > 0 , t \in I .$$

4.2.3 Nonlinear Programming

If the problems (P_1) and (D_1) are independent of t, then they will reduce to the following multiobjective nonlinear programming problems studied in [55]

(**NP**): Minimize f(x)

Subject to

$$g(x) \leq 0...$$

(**ND**): Maximize f(x)

Subject to

$$\lambda^T f_x + y^T g_x = 0$$

$$\lambda > 0$$
 , $y > 0$.

4.3 MIXED TYPE MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS WITH HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

4.3.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality

In the spirit of Xu [157], we formulate a mixed type dual for a wider class of variational problems involving higher order derivatives to unify the duality results of section 4.1 and 4.2, under invexity and generalized invexity conditions.

The following is the mixed type dual for multiobjective variational problem (VP):

(Mix VD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b) \tag{4.53}$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b) \tag{4.54}$$

$$\left(\lambda f_{u} + y(t)^{T} g_{u}\right) - D\left(\lambda f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}\right) + D^{2}\left(\lambda f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(4.55)$$

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j} (t)^{T} g^{j} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \ge 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, \dots, r$$
 (4.56)

$$y(t) \ge 0, t \in I,$$
 (4.57)

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} \tag{4.58}$$

where $I_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ with $\bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} I_{\alpha} = M$ and $I_{\alpha} \cap I_{\beta} = \phi$, if $\alpha \neq \beta$.

If $I_{\circ} = M$, then (Mix VD) becomes (WD) considered in the section 4.1. If $I_{\circ} = \phi$ for $I_{\alpha} = M$ (for some $\alpha \in \{1, 2, ..., r\}$, then the (Mix VD) becomes the problem (M-WD) considered in the section 4.2.

Theorem 4.9(Weak Duality): Let $x \in X$ for feasible (VP) and (u, y, λ) be feasible for (Mix VD). If, for all feasible (x, u, y, λ) $\int_{I} \left(\lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$ is p s e u doin v e x and $\sum_{j \in I_{o}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ is quasi-invex with respect to same η , then,

Proof: The relations $g(t, x, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \leq 0$ and $y(t) \geq 0$, $t \in I$ imply

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\circ}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \sum_{j \in I_{\circ}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

This because of the quasi-invexity of $\sum_{j \in I_0} \int y^j(t) g^j(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$, implies,

$$0 \ge \sum_{j \in I_{\circ}} \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + (D\eta)^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + (D^{2}\eta)^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right\} dt, \ \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$$

This by integrating by parts gives,

$$0 \geq \sum_{j \in I_{a}} \left[\int_{I} \eta^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt - \eta^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \right.$$

$$\left. - \int_{I} \eta^{T} D(y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) dt + (D\eta)^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\ddot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \right.$$

$$\left. - \int_{I} \eta^{T} D(y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) dt \right] \qquad , \qquad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$$

Integrating by parts and using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b give $D\eta = 0 = \eta$ and from this we have,

$$0 \ge \sum_{j \in I_{a}} \left[\int_{I} \eta^{T} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt - \int_{I} \eta^{T} D(y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) dt - \int_{I} \eta^{T} D(y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) dt \right]$$

$$- \eta^{T} D(y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} + \int_{I} \eta^{T} D^{2}(y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{u}}^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u})) dt$$

again using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b give $D\eta = 0 = \eta$

$$0 \underset{j \in M \setminus I_{\circ}}{\geq} \left[\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt - D(y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) + D^{2} \left(y^{j}(t) g^{j}_{\ddot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right\} dt \right]$$

$$(4.59)$$

Using equations (4.55) and (4.59) we have

$$0 \leq \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \left(\lambda^{T} f_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right.$$

$$\left. - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) dt \right.$$

$$\left. + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right\} dt$$

This, on integrating by parts, implies

$$0 \leq \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \left(\left(\lambda^{T} f_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{u}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right. \\ \left. + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right. \\ \left. + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g_{\dot{u}}^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right] dt \geq 0$$

This, because of pseudoinvexity of $\int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t,...,\right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g\left(t,...,\right) \right\} dt \text{ with respect to } \eta \text{ implies}$

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right\} dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right\} dt$$

Because $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ and $g(t, x, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \le 0$, $t \in I$, it follows

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \ge \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + \sum_{j \in I_{\circ}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right\} dt$$

Since $\lambda > 0$ and $\lambda^T e = 1$, this yields,

$$\lambda^{T} \int_{I} f(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \geq \lambda^{T} \int_{I} \left\{ f(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) e \right\} dt$$

This implies,

Theorem 4.10 (*Strong Duality*): Let \bar{x} be a feasible solution for (VP) and assume that

- i. \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP), and
- ii. for at least one $i, i \in P$, \overline{x} satisfies a regularity condition for [30] for $P_i(\overline{x})$,

Then there exist $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$, $\overline{y} \in R^m$ such that $(\overline{x}, \overline{y}, \overline{\lambda})$ is efficient for (Mix VD). Further if the assumptions of Theorem 4.10 are satisfied, then $(\overline{x}, \overline{y}, \overline{\lambda})$ is efficient for (Mix VD).

Proof: Since \bar{x} is an optimal solution for (VP) and is normal, then by Proposition 4.1, there exists piecewise smooth $\bar{y}: I \to R^m$ such that

$$\overline{\lambda} f_{x} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + \overline{y} \left(t \right)^{T} g_{x} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) \\
- D \left(\overline{\lambda} f_{\dot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + \overline{y} \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) \right) \\
+ D^{2} \left(\overline{\lambda} f_{\ddot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + \overline{y} \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) \right) = 0, t \in I \tag{4.60}$$

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I$$
(4.61)

$$\overline{y}(t) \ge 0, t \in I \tag{4.62}$$

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0$$
 (4.63)

The relation $\overline{y}(t)^T g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}) = 0$, $t \in I$ implies

$$\sum_{j \in I} \overline{y}^{j} \left(t \right)^{T} g^{j} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(4.64)$$

and

$$\sum_{j \in I_{-}} \overline{y}^{j} (t)^{T} g^{j} (t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) = 0, t \in I, \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$
(4.65)

giving

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \int_{I} \overline{y}^{j} \left(t\right)^{T} g^{j} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) = 0 , t \in I , \alpha = 1, 2, \dots, r$$

From (4.60), (4.62) and (4.63), it follows that $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ is feasible for (Mix VD). Also

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) \right\} dt = \int_{I} f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) dt , i = 1, \dots, p$$

That is, the objective values of (VP) and (Mix VD) are equal. The efficiency of $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ follows from Theorem 4.9.

As in [105], by employing the chain rule in calculus, it can be easily seen that the expression $\left(\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x\right) - D\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^2\left(\lambda^T f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right)$, may be regarded as a function θ of variables $t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}$ and λ , where $\ddot{x} = D^3 x$ and $\ddot{y} = D^2 y$. That is, we can write $\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = \left(\lambda^T f_x + y(t)^T g_x\right) - D\left(\lambda^T f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}\right) + D^2\left(\lambda^T f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}}\right)$

In order to prove converse duality between (VP) and (Mix VD), the space X is now replaced by a smaller space X_2 of piecewise smooth thrice differentiable function $x: I \to R^n$ with the norm $||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty} + ||D^3x||_{\infty}$. The problem (Mix VD) may now be briefly written as,

Minimize
$$-\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})\right)dt\right)$$

$$,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})\right)dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}) = 0, t \in I$$

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I,$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

where
$$\theta(\cdot) = \lambda f_u + y(t)^T g_u - D(\lambda f_u + y(t)^T g_u) + D^2(\lambda f_u + y(t)^T g_u), t \in I$$

Consider $\theta(t, x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), y(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \lambda) = 0$ as defining a mapping $\psi: X_2 \times Y \times R^p \to B$ where Y is a space of piecewise twice differentiable functions and B is the Banach space. In order to apply Theorem 4.1 to the

problem (Mix D), the infinite dimensional inequality must be restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $\left[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda),\psi_y(x,y,\lambda),\psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)\right]$.

Theorem 4.11 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix VD).

Assume that

H₁: The Frechet derivative ψ' has a (weak *) closed range,

 $\mathbf{H_2}$: f and g are twice continuously differentiable,

H₃:
$$f_x^i + \sum_{j \in I_o} y_j(t)^T g_x^j - D \left(f_{\dot{x}}^i + \sum_{j \in I_o} y_j(t)^T g_{\dot{x}}^j \right) + D^2 \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^i + \sum_{j \in I_o} y_j(t)^T g_{\ddot{x}}^j \right),$$
 $t \in I, i = 1, ..., p \text{ are linearly independent, and}$

H4:
$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^3 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}} \right) \beta(t) = 0$$

$$\Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, t \in I.$$

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 4.10 are satisfied, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (Mix VD).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' has closed (weak*) range is an efficient solution, by (Mix VD), there exist Lagrange multipliers $\tau \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\beta: I \to R^n$, $\gamma \in R$ for each of r constraints, $\eta \in R^p$ and piecewise smooth $\mu(t): I \to R^m$, satisfying the Fritz-John conditions

$$\left(\tau^{T} f_{x} + (\alpha^{T} e) \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g_{x}^{j}\right) - D\left(\tau^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + (\alpha^{T} e) \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}^{j}\right)
+ D^{2} \left(\tau^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + (\alpha^{T} e) \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j}\right) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}}
- \gamma \sum_{\alpha=1}^{r} \sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \left[y^{j}(t)^{T} g_{x}^{j} - Dy^{j}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}^{j} + D^{2} y^{j}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j}\right] = 0, \ t \in I$$
(4.66)

$$-(\tau^{T}e)g^{i} + \beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\ddot{y}^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0, \ j \in I_{\circ}, \ t \in I$$
(4.67)

$$\gamma g^{i} + \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} + D^{2} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} - \mu^{j} (t) = 0, \ j \in I_{\alpha}$$

$$t \in I, \alpha = 1, \dots, r$$

$$(4.68)$$

$$\left[\left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \right] \beta(t) - \eta^{i} = 0$$

$$\mu(t)^{T} y(t) = 0, t \in I,$$
 (4.70)

(4.69)

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{4.71}$$

$$\sum_{j \in I_{\alpha}} \int y^{j} (t)^{T} g^{j} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt = 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$$
(4.72)

$$(\tau, \gamma, \mu(t), \eta) \ge 0, \quad t \in I, \tag{4.73}$$

$$(\tau, \beta(t), \gamma, \mu(t), \eta) \neq 0, t \in I.$$
(4.74)

Since $\lambda > 0$, (4.71) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (4.69) yields,

$$\left[\left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) + D^{2} \left(\tau^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \right] \beta(t) = 0, \ t \in I$$
(4.75)

Using the equality constraint of (Mix VD) in (4.66) we have,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left[\left(f_{x} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t\right)^{T} g_{x}^{j}\right) - D\left(f_{\dot{x}} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t\right)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}^{j}\right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{x}} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} \left(t\right)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j}\right) \right] \beta(t) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$
 (4.76)

Postmultiplying (4.76) by $\beta(t)$, we have

$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2\beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^3\beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right)\beta(t) = 0, \ t \in I$$

This, because of the hypothesis (H_4) gives

$$\beta(t) = 0, t \in I \tag{4.77}$$

Using (4.77) in (4.76), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left[\left(f_{x} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{x}^{j}\right) - D \left(f_{x} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{x}^{j}\right) + D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in I_{o}} y^{j} (t)^{T} g_{x}^{j}\right) \right] = 0, \quad t \in I$$

This because of the linear independence stated in (H₃) gives

$$\left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) = 0, i = 1, 2, \dots, p \tag{4.78}$$

If possible, let $\gamma = 0$. Then (4.78) implies $\tau = 0$. The equations (4.67) and (4.68) imply that $\mu(t) = 0$, $t \in I$. Then $(\tau, \beta(t), \gamma, \mu(t), \eta) = 0$, contradicting $\tau > 0$.

From (4.67) and (4.68) it follows,

$$g^{j} = -\frac{\mu^{j}(t)}{(\tau^{T}e)}, j \in I_{\circ}, t \in I$$

$$g^{j} = -\frac{\mu^{j}(t)}{\gamma}, j \in I_{\alpha}, \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r, t \in I$$

This implies $g \le 0$, also in view of (4.70) $y^T g = 0$. From $y^T g = 0$, it implies $\sum_{j \in J_a} y^j(t) g^j = 0, t \in I$

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{0}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) \right) dt = \int_{I} f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt$$

This along with the application of Theorem 4.9 establishes the efficiency of \bar{x} for (VP).

4.3.2 Related Nonlinear Problems

If f and g do not explicitly depend on t, the variational problem considered in the preceding section reduces to the following static problems similar to those by Xu [157] and Zhang and Mond [160].

(**NP**): Minimize
$$f(x)$$

Subject to

$$g(x) \leq 0$$

(Mix ND): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(u) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} g^{j}(u), \dots, f^{p}(u) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} g^{j}(u) \right)$$

Subject to

$$\nabla \left(\lambda^T f(u) + y^T g(u) \right) = 0$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} g^{j} (u) \geq 0, \alpha = 1, \dots, r$$

$$y \ge 0$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{\scriptscriptstyle +}$$



OPTIMALITY AND DUALITY FOR NONDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS WITH HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

- 5.1 Optimality Conditions and Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives
 - 5.1.1 Introductory Remarks
 - 5.1.2 Problem Formulation
 - 5.1.3 Optimality
 - 5.1.4 Wolfe Type Vector Duality
 - 5.1.5 Mond-Weir Type Duality
 - 5.1.6 Related Problems
- 5.2 Mixed Type Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems
 - 5.2.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality
 - 5.2.2 Variational Problems with Natural Boundary Values
 - 5.2.3 Nondifferentiable Nonlinear Programming

5.1 OPTIMALITY CONDITIONS AND DUALITY FOR NONDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS INVOLVING HIGHER ORDER DERIVATIVES

5.1.1 Introductory Remarks

Chandra and Husain [30] obtained necessary optimality conditions for a constrained continuous programming having term with a square root of a quadratic form in the objective function, and using these optimality conditions formulated Wolfe type dual and established weak, Strong and Huard [92] type converse duality theorems under convexity of functions. Subsequently, for the problems of [30], Bector, Chandra and Husain [16] constructed a Mond-Weir type dual which allows weakening of convexity hypotheses of [30] and derived various duality results under generalized convexity of functionals.

This chapter is divided into two sections, 5.1 and 5.2. In the section 5.1, we study optimality and duality for a class of nondifferentiable variational problem containing higher order derivatives. The popularity of this type of problems seem to originate from the fact that, even though the objective function and or/ constraint functions are non-smooth, a simple representation of the dual problem may be found. The theory of non-smooth mathematical programming deals with much more general types of functions

by means of generalized subdifferentials [41] and quasi differentials [49]. However, the square root of a positive semi-definite quadratic form is one of the few cases of a nondifferentiable function for which one can write down the sub or quasi differentials explicitly. We formulate Wolfe and Mond-Weir type dual problems for this class of variational problems and prove various duality results under invexity and generalized invexity. The result of section 5.1 also serves as correction to some of the results obtained by Kim and Kim [85]. In the section 5.2 we study mixed type duality for the class of nondifferentiable multiobjective variational programming considered in the section 5.1. The subsection 5.2.2 considers the variational problem with natural boundary conditions instead of fixed point conditions. These formulations provide close relationship of the duality results of the section 5.2 to those of nondifferentiable programming.

5.1.2 Problem Formulation

We present the following nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problem with higher order derivatives as:

(**VP**): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$
 (5.1)

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b) \tag{5.2}$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I, \tag{5.3}$$

where, $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p), $g: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$, are assumed to be continuously differentiable functions, for each $i \in P$, $\{i = 1, 2, ..., p\}$, $B^i(t)$ is an $n \times n$ positive semidefinite symmetric matrix with $B^i(\cdot)$ continuous on I.

The following generalized Schwartz inequality [125] is required in the sequel.

$$\left(x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)z(t)\right) \leq \left(x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)x(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\left(z(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)z(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
$$\forall x(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}, z(t) \in \mathbb{R}^{n}, t \in \mathbb{R}^{n}$$

In order to prove the strong duality theorem, we will invoke the following lemma due to Changkong and Haimes [35].

Lemma 5.1 [39]: A function $\overline{x} \in X$ be an efficient solution of (VP) if and only if $\overline{x} \in X$ is an optimal solution of the following problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$ for all k.

$$\left(\mathbf{P}_{k}\left(\overline{x}\right)\right): \mathbf{Minimize}\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{k}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{k}\left(t\right) x(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right) dt$$
Subject to

x(a) = 0 = x(b)

Subject to

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$g(t, x, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I,$$

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), \ddot{x}(t)) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, \overline{x}(t), \dot{\overline{x}}(t), \dot{\overline{x}}(t)) dt + \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T} B(t) \overline{x}(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, i \neq k$$

5.1.3 Optimality

In this section, we give necessary optimality conditions for the problem $(P_k(\bar{x}))$ which are required to establish strong duality theorem for Wolfe and Mond-weir type vector dual.

In order to derive optimality conditions for $(P_k(\bar{x}))$, we require the following Lemma 5.2.

Lemma 5.2 [85]: Define a function $h: R^n \to R$ by $h(x(t)) = (\bar{x}(t)^T B(t) \bar{x}(t))^{\frac{1}{2}}$, where B is a symmetric positive semidefinite $n \times n$ matrix and continuous on I, then h is convex, and

$$\partial h(x(t)) = \left\{ B(t)z(t) : z(t)^T B(t)z(t) \le 1 \right\},\,$$

where $\partial h(x(t))$ is subgradient of h at x(t).

Using the analysis in [91] and [49], the Fritz-John optimality conditions for $(P_k(\bar{x}))$ can be given by the following theorem.

Theorem 5.1: (*Fritz-John Optimality Conditions*): If \bar{x} is optimal solution of $(P_k(\bar{x}))$ there exist scalars $\tau^1, \tau^2, ..., \tau^p$, piecewise smooth $z^i: I \to R$, $i \in P$, such that

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\tau}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) \right) \\ & \qquad \qquad t + \sum_{j=1}^{m} \overline{y}^{j} \left(t \right) \left(g_{x}^{j} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) - D g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) + D^{2} g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) \right) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I \\ & \qquad \qquad y(t)^{T} g \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}} \right) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I \\ & \qquad \qquad \overline{x} \left(t \right)^{T} B^{i} \left(t \right) \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) = \left(\overline{x} \left(t \right)^{T} B^{i} \left(t \right) \overline{x} \left(t \right) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \quad , \quad i \in P \quad , \quad t \in I \\ & \qquad \qquad \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right)^{T} B^{i} \left(t \right) \overline{z}^{i} \left(t \right) \leq 1, \\ & \qquad \qquad \left(\overline{\tau}, \overline{y} \left(t \right) \right) \geq 0 \quad , \quad \left(\overline{\tau}, \overline{y} \left(t \right) \right) \neq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I \end{split}$$

Proof: The proof of the theorem easily follows on the line of analysis in [73] and [30]. Hence it is omitted for brevity.

5.1.4 Wolfe Type Vector Duality

In this section, we present Wolfe type vector dual to (VP) and establish various duality results.

(MWD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) + y(t)^{T} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$
 (5.4)

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b) \tag{5.5}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$- D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$(5.6)$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$
 (5.7)

$$y(t) \ge 0, t \in I \tag{5.8}$$

$$\lambda > 0$$
, $\lambda^T e = 1$ (5.9)

Theorem 5.2: (*Weak Duality*): Let \overline{x} be feasible for (VP) and $(u, \lambda, z^1, ..., z^p, y)$ be feasible for (MWD). If for all feasible $(x, u, \lambda, z^1, ..., z^p, y)$, $\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i \int_I (f^i(t, ..., t) + (\cdot)^T B^i(t) z^i(t) + y(t)^T g(t, ..., t)) dt$ is pseudoinvex with respect to η ,

Then the following cannot hold:

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + x(t)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + u(t)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) + y(t)^{T} g\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt, \quad (5.10)$$

For all $i \in P$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + x(t)^{T} B^{j}(t) z^{j}(t) \right) dt$$

$$< \int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{j}(t) z^{j}(t) \right) + y(t)^{T} g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \quad (5.11)$$

for some $j \in P$.

Proof: Suppose that (5.10) and (5.11) hold. Then, from (5.3) and (5.8), we have,

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt,$$

For all $i \in P$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})dt + x(t)^{T}B^{j}(t)z^{j}(t) + y(t)^{T}g(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) \right)dt$$

$$< \int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})dt + \left(u(t)^{T}B^{j}(t)z^{j}(t) \right) + y(t)^{T}g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right)dt$$

for some $j \in P$.

Now using $\lambda > 0$ and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$, these inequalities yield,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right)\right) dt$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + \left(u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right) + y\left(t\right)^{T} g\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right)\right) dt$$

This, because of the pseudoinvexity of

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t,...,) + (\cdot)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g(t,...,) \right) dt \quad \text{implies}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f^{i}_{u}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt \quad \text{implies}$$

$$\left(D\eta \right)^{T} \left(f^{i}_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(f^{i}_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt < 0$$

Integrating by parts, we get

$$0 > \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) z^{i} \left(t \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right] dt$$

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} (D\eta)^{T} \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) dt \\
+ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \eta^{T} \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \\
+ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (D\eta)^{T} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

Using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $D\eta = 0 = \eta$, we have

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt$$

$$- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Again, integrating by parts we obtain

$$\begin{split} & = \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \\ & - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt \\ & + \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \eta^{T} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \end{split}$$

Again using boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $D\eta = 0 = \eta$,

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt < 0$$
(5.12)

From the equality constraint (5.6), we have

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt = 0$$
(5.13)

The inequality (5.12) contradicts (5.13). Hence our assumption is invalid and the theorem follows.

Theorem 5.3 (*Strong Duality*): Let $\bar{x} \in X$ be an efficient solution of (VP) and for at least one $k \in P$, \bar{x} satisfies the regularity condition [30] for the problem $(P_k(\bar{x}))$. Then there exist multipliers $\bar{\lambda} \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\bar{y} \in R^m, z^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ such that $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \lambda)$ is feasible for (MWD) and the objectives of (VP) and (MWD) are equal.

Further, if the hypothesis of Theorem 5.2 is met, then $(x, u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, \lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (MWD).

Proof: By Lemma 5.1 \overline{x} is an optimal solution of $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. This implies that there exist $\overline{\xi} \in R^p$ with $\overline{\xi}^1, ..., \overline{\xi}^p, \overline{z}^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and piecewise smooth $\overline{v} \in R^m$ such that, the following optimality conditions [73] hold:

$$\overline{\xi}^{k} \left(f_{x}^{k} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{k} (t) \overline{z}^{k} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{k} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{k} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)
+ \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq k}}^{p} \overline{\xi}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i} (t) \overline{z}^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)
+ \overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{x} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - D \left(\overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) + D^{2} \left(\overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) = 0$$
(5.14)

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} = \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right), i = 1, \dots, p$$

$$(5.15)$$

$$\overline{v}(t)^{T}g(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\dot{\overline{x}})dt = 0$$
(5.16)

$$\left(\overline{z}\left(t\right)^{T}B^{i}\left(t\right)\overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right)\right) \leq 1, t \in I, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$(5.17)$$

$$\overline{\xi} > 0$$
, $\overline{v}(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ (5.18)

From (5.14) we obtain

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\xi}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$+ \overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{x} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - D \left(\overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) + D^{2} \left(\overline{v} (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) = 0$$

$$(5.19)$$

Dividing (5.16), (5.18) and (5.19) by $\overline{\xi}^T e (\neq 0)$, and setting

$$\lambda^{i} = \left(\frac{\overline{\xi}}{\overline{\xi}^{T}e}\right), i = 1, ..., p \text{ and } \overline{y}(t) = \left(\frac{\overline{v}(t)}{\overline{\xi}^{T}e}\right), \text{ we have,}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2}f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\right)$$

$$+ \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - D\left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\right) + D^{2}\left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\right) = 0$$

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T}g(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}})dt = 0$$
(5.21)

(5.20)

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0 , \lambda^T e = 1$$
 (5.22)

$$\overline{y}(t) \ge 0, t \in I \tag{5.23}$$

Consequently (5.17), (5.20), (5.22) and (5.23) implies that $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ is feasible for (WD). Because of (5.21), the two objectives of the problem (VP)and (MWD) are equal. Hence by Theorem 5.2 $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ is efficient solution for (MWD). This completes the proof.

For validating converse duality theorem, we regard (MWD) in term of function x for convenience instead of the function u.

As in [105], by employing chain rule in calculus, it can be easily seen that the expression

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y (t)^{T} g_{x} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$- D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) = 0, t \in I$$

may be regarded as a function θ of variables $t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}$ and λ , where $\ddot{x} = \frac{d^3}{dt^3}x = D^3x$ and $\ddot{y} = D^2y$. That is, we can write

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$-D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}))$$

$$+D^{2}(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})) = 0, t \in I$$

The problem (MWD) may now be briefly written as,

Minimize
$$\left(\int_{T} -\left(f^{1}\left(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}\right) + \left(u\left(t\right)^{T}B^{1}\left(t\right)z^{1}\left(t\right)\right) + y^{T}\left(t\right)g^{T}\left(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}\right)\right)dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = 0$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0, \lambda^{T} e = 1$$

Consider $\theta(t, x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \lambda) = 0$ as defining a mapping $\psi: X \times Y \times R^p \to Q$ where Y is a space of piecewise twice differentiable function and Q is the Banach Space. In order to apply Theorem 4.1 to the problem (MWD), the infinite dimensional inequality must be restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $\left[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda),\psi_y(x,y,\lambda),\psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)\right]$.

Theorem 5.4 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (MWD) Assume that

- ($\mathbf{H_1}$) The Frèchèt derivative ψ' has a (weak*) closed range,
- $(\mathbf{H_2})$ f and g be twice continuously differentiable, and

(H₃)
$$\left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right) \beta(t) = 0, \Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

Further, if the assumptions of Theorem 5.2 are satisfied, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' having a (weak*) closed range, is an efficient solution of (MWD), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$, $\eta \in R^p$, $\gamma \in R, \delta \in R, \xi \in R^m$ and piecewise smooth $\beta(t): I \to R^n$ and $\mu(t): I \to R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions hold

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$+ D \left(\alpha^{T} f_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (\alpha^{T} e) y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$- D^{2} \left(\alpha^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + (\alpha^{T} e) y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$+ \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$

$$(5.24)$$

$$-(\alpha^{T}e)g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + \beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{\ddot{y}^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$(5.25)$$

$$i = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$\left[f_{x}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + D^{2}f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) \right] \beta(t) + \eta^{i} + \gamma = 0, \qquad i = 1,...,p$$
(5.26)

$$-\alpha^{i}x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)+\beta(t)\lambda^{i}B^{i}(t)+\delta^{i}2B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)=0$$
(5.27)

$$\eta^T \overline{\lambda} = 0 \tag{5.28}$$

$$\mu(t)^T \overline{y}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$(5.29)$$

$$\gamma \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} - 1 \right) = 0 \tag{5.30}$$

$$\delta^{i}\left(z^{i}\left(t\right)^{T}B^{i}\left(t\right)z^{i}\left(t\right)-1\right)=0,\ t\in I$$
(5.31)

$$(\alpha, \lambda, \mu(t), \eta, \gamma, \delta) \ge 0$$
 , $t \in I$ (5.32)

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \lambda, \mu(t), \eta, \gamma, \delta,) \neq 0 \quad , \ t \in I$$
 (5.33)

Since $\lambda > 0$, (5.28) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (5.26) implies

$$\left(f_{x}^{i}\left(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}\right) + B^{i}\left(t\right)z^{i}\left(t\right) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}\left(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}\right) + D^{2}f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}\left(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}\right)\right)\beta(t)$$

$$= -\gamma = 0 \tag{5.34}$$

From the equality constraint of (MWD), we have

$$\begin{split} &\left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) - D\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + D^{2}\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})\right) \\ &= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) + D^{2}f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})\right) \end{split}$$

This, in view of (5.34), implies

$$\beta(t)^{T} \left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - D\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2}\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\right)$$

$$= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \beta(t)^{T} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}\right)(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})$$

$$= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i}(-\gamma) = \gamma$$

$$(5.35)$$

Postmultiplying (5.24) by $\beta(t)$ and then using (5.34) and (5.35), we obtain

$$(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} = 0)\beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

This, because of the hypothesis (H_3) , gives

$$\beta(t) = 0$$
, $t \in I$

Suppose $\alpha = 0$, then from (5.25) we have $\mu^{j}(t) = 0$, j = 1, 2, ..., m, and from (5.26) it follows that $\gamma = 0$.

Also from (5.27) we have $\delta^i B^i(t) z^i(t) = 0$ which together with (5.31) implies $\delta = 0$. Thus, $(\alpha, \beta(t), \lambda, \mu(t), \eta, \gamma, \delta,) = 0$, which is a contradiction to (5.33). Hence $\alpha > 0$.

From the equation (5.25), we have

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x}) = -\frac{\mu^{j}(t)}{(\alpha^{T}e)} \leq 0$$
, $t \in I$

which implies $g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \leq 0$, $t \in I$.

Therefore, \bar{x} is feasible for (VP). Multiplying (5.26) by $y^{j}(t)$, and using (5.29), we have

$$y^{j}(t)g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\ddot{x})=0$$
, $t \in I$

By generalized Schwarz inequality [125]

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right) \leq \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}(t)B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
(5.36)

Now let $\frac{2\delta^i}{\alpha^i} = \xi^i$. Then $\xi^i \ge 0$ and from (5.27), we have

$$B^{i}(t)x(t) = \xi^{i}2B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t), i=1,2,...,p$$

This is the condition for the equality in (5.36). Therefore, we have

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)\right) = \left(x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\left(z^{i}(t)B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

From (5.31), either $\delta^i = 0$ or $z^i(t)^T B^i(t) z^i(t) = 1$ and hence $B^i(t) \overline{x}(t) = 0$.

Therefore, in either case $\left(x(t)^T B^i(t) z^i(t)\right) = \left(x(t)^T B^i(t) z^i(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, i = 1, 2, ..., p$. Hence,

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) \right) dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

The efficiency of \bar{x} for (VP) is an immediate consequence of the application of Theorem 5.2.

Remarks: Theorem 5.4 serves as a correction to Theorem 5 of Kim and Kim [85] as its hypothesis (iii) is not required to establish it.

5.1.5 Mond-Weir Type Vector Duality

In this section, we establish various duality theorems for the Mond-Weir type nondifferentiable vector dual variational problems.

(M-WVD): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) dt \right)$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$
 (5.37)

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b) \tag{5.38}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$-D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) = 0, t \in I$$
(5.39)

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \ge 0 , t \in I$$
 (5.40)

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$
 (5.41)

$$\lambda > 0$$
, $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$ (5.42)

Theorem 5.5 (*Weak Duality*): Let \overline{x} be feasible for (VP) and $(u, \lambda, z^1, ..., z^p, y)$ be feasible for (M-WVD). If for feasible $(x, u, \lambda, z^1, ..., z^p, y)$, $\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i \int_I (f^i(t, ..., t) + (\cdot)^T B^i(t) z^i(t)) dt$ is pseudoinvex and $\int_I y(t)^T g(t, ..., t) dt$ is quasi-invex with respect to same η , the following cannot hold:

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) x\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + \left(u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, \text{ for all } i \in P, \qquad (5.43)$$

and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{j}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$< \int_{I} \left(f^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{j}(t) z^{j}(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, \quad \text{for some } j \in P \quad (5.44)$$

Proof: Suppose that (5.43) and (5.44) hold. Using $\lambda > 0$ and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} = 1$, then in view of Schwartz inequality [125], this gives

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + \left(u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

In view of $(x(t)^T B^i(t) z(t)) \le (x(t)^T B^i(t) x(t))^{\frac{1}{2}} (z(t)^T B^i(t) z(t))^{\frac{1}{2}}$ and $(z(t)^T B^i(t) z(t)) \le 1$, from this inequality we obtain,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) \right) dt$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) \right) dt$$

By pseudo invexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t,...,) + (\cdot)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) \right) dt$ with respect to η , this implies,

$$0 > \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \right] dt$$

This, by integration by parts and using boundary conditions as earlier, yields

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) z^{i} \left(t \right) \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right] dt < 0$$
(5.45)

Now, from the feasibility of (VP) and (M-WVD), we have

$$\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

which, because of the quasi-invexity of $\int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t,...,dt) dt$ with respect to η implies

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + (D\eta)^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + (D^{2}\eta)^{T} y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \leq 0$$

This, as earlier, implies

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[y(t)^{T} g_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) - Dy(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right] dt \leq 0$$
(5.46)

Combining (5.45) and (5.46), we have the inequality as,

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{\ddot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \right] dt < 0$$

which contradicts the dual equality constraint. Hence the theorem is validated.

Theorem 5.6 (*Strong Duality*): Let \overline{x} be an efficient solution of (VP) and for at least one $k \in P$, \overline{x} satisfies the regularity condition [30] for the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist multipliers $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\overline{y} \in R^m$ and $\overline{z}^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ such that $(\overline{x}, \overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \lambda)$ is feasible for (M-WVD) and the objectives of (VP) and (M-WVD) are equal.

Further, if the generalized invexity of hypothesis of Theorem 5.5 is met, then $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of (M-WVD).

Proof: Since \overline{x} is an solution of the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$, by analysis of Theorem 5.1, it implies that there exists $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\overline{y} \in R^m$ and $\overline{z}^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ such that, (5.20), (5.21), (5.22), (5.23) and (5.17) holds:

From (5.21), it implies,

$$\int_{I} \overline{y}(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}) dt = 0$$
(5.47)

Now from (5.20), (5.47), (5.17) and (5.23) together with $\overline{\lambda} > 0$, it follows that $(\overline{x}, \overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \overline{\lambda})$ is feasible. From the equality of the objectives of (VP) and (M-WVD), along with the hypotheses of Theorem 5.5, the efficiency of $(\overline{x}, \overline{u}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \overline{\lambda})$ follows. This completes the proof.

(M-WVD) may be rewritten in the following form:

Minimize
$$\left(-\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} -\left(f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) dt \right)$$
Subject to
$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$\dot{x}(a) = 0 = \dot{x}(b)$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = 0$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$

$$\lambda > 0, \quad y(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

Theorem 5.7 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (M-WDP). Assume that

- (A₁) The Frèchèt derivative ψ' has a (weak*) closed range,
- (A_2) f and g are twice continuously differentiable,
- (A₃) $f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^i(t)z^i(t) Df_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^2f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}),$ $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ are linearly independent and

$$(\mathbf{A_4}) \quad \left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}}\right) \beta(t) = 0, \Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 5.5 are met, then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP)

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{u}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' having a (weak*) closed range, is an efficient solution of (M-WDP), then there exist $\alpha \in R^p$, $\eta \in R^p$, $\gamma \in R$, $\delta \in R$, $\xi \in R^m$ and piecewise smooth $\beta(t): I \to R^n$ and $\mu(t): I \to R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions holds

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \alpha^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$-\gamma \left(y(t)^{T} g_{x} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) - D y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} (t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right)$$

$$+\beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$

$$(5.48)$$

$$-\gamma g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{y}^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$
(5.49)
$$j = 1, 2, ..., m$$

$$-\alpha^{i}x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)+\lambda^{i}\beta(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)+2\delta^{i}B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)=0$$
(5.50)

$$(f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^i(t)z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})$$

$$+ D^2 f_{\ddot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})\beta(t) - \eta^i = 0 , i = 1, ..., p$$
(5.51)

$$\gamma \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}) dt = 0$$
 (5.52)

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{5.53}$$

$$\mu^{T}(t)\overline{y}(t) = 0 , t \in I$$
 (5.54)

$$\delta^{i}\left(z^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) - 1\right) = 0 , t \in I$$
 (5.55)

$$(\alpha, \mu(t), \delta, \eta, \gamma) \ge 0 \tag{5.56}$$

$$(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu(t), \delta, \eta, \gamma) \ge 0 \tag{5.57}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (5.53) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (5.51) implies

$$(f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^i(t)z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^2 f_{\ddot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}))\beta(t) = 0 \quad i = 1, ..., p$$
 (5.58)

Using the duality constraint of (M-WVD) in (5.48), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} (\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}) (f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t)$$

$$-Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}))$$

$$+\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$

$$(5.59)$$

$$= -\sum_{i=1}^{p} (\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}) (f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t)$$

$$-Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x})) \beta(t)$$

$$+ (\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3} \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}}) \beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

This in conjunction with (5.58) yields

$$\beta(t)^T \theta_{y} - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{y}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{y}} = 0, t \in I$$

which because of the hypothesis (A₄) implies

$$\beta(t) = 0 , t \in I \tag{5.60}$$

Using (5.60) in (5.59), we have

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left(f_{x}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right)\right) = 0$$

This, due to the hypothesis (A_3) gives,

$$\alpha^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} = 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (5.61)

Suppose $\gamma = 0$, then from (5.61) we have $\alpha = 0$. The relation (5.49) gives, $\mu(t) = 0$, $t \in I$.

As earlier, (5.4) implies $\delta = 0$. Hence we get $(\alpha, \beta(t), \mu(t), \eta, \gamma, \delta) = 0$, which contradicts (5.56). Hence $\gamma > 0$. Consequently, (5.61) implies $\alpha > 0$.

From (5.50) we have,

$$g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) \leq 0$$

This implies the feasibility of \bar{x} for (VP).

In view of the explanations given in the proof of Theorem 5.3, (5.50) together with (5.55) readily yields,

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^T B^i(t) \overline{z}^i(t)\right) = \left(\overline{x}(t)^T B^i(t) \overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

Hence,

$$\iint_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right) \right) \right) dt$$

$$= \iint_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{x}\left(t\right) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

This, in view of the hypothesis of Theorem 5.5, implies that \bar{x} is efficient solution of (VP).

5.1.6 Related Problems

It is possible to extend the duality theorems established in the previous two sections to the corresponding variational problems with natural boundary values rather than fixed end points.

(VP)₀: Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(t,x,\dot{x},\dot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I, j = 1,...,m$$

$$(\mathbf{MWD})_{\mathbf{0}}: \mathbf{Maximize} \left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

$$\dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) + y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + B^{i} \left(t \right) z^{i} \left(t \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{u} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \\ - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) \\ + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) + y \left(t \right)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) = 0 , t \in I \end{split}$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) = 0, \text{ at } t = a, t = b,$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) = 0, \text{ at } t = a, t = b,$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0, \lambda^{T} e = 1$$

(M-WVD)₀: Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})+u(t)^{T}B^{1}(t)z^{1}(t)\right)dt\right)$$
$$,...,\int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u})+u(t)^{T}B^{p}(t)z^{p}(t)\right)dt$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$-D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$+D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) = 0 = y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}), \text{ at } t = a , t = b ,$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) = 0 = y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}), \text{ at } t = a , t = b ,$$

$$\sum_{j=1}^{m} \int_{I} y^{j} (t) g^{j} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \ge 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}^{i} (t)^{T} B^{i} (t) \overline{z}^{i} (t) \le 1, t \in I , i \in P$$

$$\lambda > 0 , y(t) \ge 0, t \in I$$

If the function in the problem (WD) and (M-WD) are independent of t, then these problems reduce to those treated by Mond, Husain and Prasad [109].

(VP)₁: Minimize
$$\left(f^{1}(x)+\left(x^{T}B^{1}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}},...,f^{p}(x)+\left(x^{T}B^{p}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right)$$

Subject to $g(x) \leq 0$

(MWD)₁: Maximize
$$(f^1(u) + u^T B^1 z^1 + y^T g(u), ..., f^p(u) + u^T B^p z^p + y^T g(u))$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x} \left(u \right) + B^{i} z^{i} \right) + y^{T} g_{x} \left(u \right) = 0$$

$$\overline{z}^{i} B^{i} \overline{z}^{i} \leq 1, \quad i \in P$$

$$y \geq 0, \quad \lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

where
$$\Lambda^{+} = \{ \lambda \in R^{p} | \lambda > 0, \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^{T} \in R^{p} \}$$

(M-WVD)₁: Maximize
$$(f^1(u)+u^TB^1z^1,...,f^p(u)+u^TB^pz^p)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}(u) + B^{i} z^{i} \right) + y^{T} g_{x}(u) = 0$$

$$y^{T} g(u) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}^{i} B^{i} \overline{z}^{i} \leq 1, i \in P,$$

$$\lambda > 0 , y(t) \geq 0, t \in I .$$

5.2 MIXED TYPE DUALITY FOR NONDIFFERENTIABLE MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS

5.2.1 Mixed Type Multiobjective Duality

In this section, we present the following mixed type dual formulation of nondifferentiable multiobjective nonlinear programming (Mix D) which combines Wolfe and Mond-Weir dual models studied in the preceding section in the spirit of Husain and Jabeen [71] and Xu [157]

(**Mix D**): Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b),$$
 (5.62)

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b),$$
 (5.63)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{u}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} \right) = 0 , t \in I ,$$
(5.64)

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \ge 0 , \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$
 (5.65)

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P,$$
 (5.66)

$$y(t) \ge 0, t \in I, \tag{5.67}$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
. (5.68)

where

(i)
$$\Lambda^{+} = \left\{ \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^{p} \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^{T} \in \mathbb{R}^{p} \right\}$$

(ii)
$$J_{\alpha} \subseteq M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}, \ \alpha = 0, 1, 2, ..., r \text{ with } \bigcup_{\alpha=0}^{r} J_{\alpha} = M \text{ and } J_{\alpha} \cap J_{\beta} = \emptyset, \text{if } \alpha \neq \beta.$$

If $J_{\circ} = M$, then (Mix D) becomes Wolfe type dual considered in the subsection 5.1.4, if $J_{\circ} = \phi$ and $J_{\alpha} = M$ for some $\alpha \in \{1, 2, ..., r\}$, then (Mix D) becomes Mond-Weir type dual considered in subsection 5.1.5.

Theorem 5.8 (*Weak Duality*): Let \overline{x} be feasible for (VP) and $(u, y, z^1, ..., z^p, \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix D). If for feasible $(x, u, z^1, ..., z^p, \lambda)$, $\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda^i \int_I \left(f^i(t, ..., \cdot) + \sum_{j \in J_a} y^j(t) g^j(t, ..., \cdot) + (\cdot)^T B^i(t) z^i(t) \right) dt$ is pseudoinvex and $\sum_{j \in J_a} \int_I y^j(t) g^j(t, ..., \cdot) dt$, $\alpha = 1, 2, ..., r$ is quasi-invex with respect to same η , then the following cannot hold:

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt$$
(5.69)

For all $i \in P$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{k} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x} \right) dt + \left(x \left(t \right)^{T} B^{k} \left(t \right) x \left(t \right) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{k} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) dt + \left(u \left(t \right)^{T} B^{k} \left(t \right) z^{k} \left(t \right) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} \left(t \right) g^{j} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u} \right) \right) dt$$
(5.70)

for some k.

Proof: Suppose contrary to the result, that (5.69) and (5.70) hold. In view of $y(t) \ge 0$, $t \in I$, $\overline{z}^i(t)^T B^i(t) \overline{z}^i(t) \le 1$, $t \in I$, $i \in P$ and $g(t, x, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \le 0$, $t \in I$, these inequalities yield,

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{\circ}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right)\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{\circ}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt$$

for all $i \in P$, and

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{k}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}\right) dt + \left(x\left(t\right)^{T} B^{k}\left(t\right) z^{k}\left(t\right)\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left(f^{k}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) dt + \left(u\left(t\right)^{T} B^{k}\left(t\right) z^{k}\left(t\right)\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j}\left(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}\right) \right) dt$$

for some k.

Now using $\lambda > 0$ and $\lambda^T e = 1$, these inequalities yield

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) dt$$

$$< \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) \right) dt$$

By pseudo invexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left(f^{i}(t,...,) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,...,) + (\cdot)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) \right) dt$ with respect to η , we have,

$$0 > \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \right] dt$$

This, by integration by parts, gives,

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left[\left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) \right\} dt$$

$$+ \eta^{T} \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b}$$

$$+ \int_{I} \left(D \eta \right)^{T} D \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) dt \right]$$

Using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $D\eta = 0 = \eta$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right\} dt$$

$$+ \int_{I} (D\eta)^{T} D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) dt$$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right\} dt - \eta^{T} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right|_{t=a}$$

$$0 > \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} \left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right\} dt$$

$$+ D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) dt$$

$$(5.71)$$

Now, from the feasibility of (VP) and (Mix-D), we have

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt \leq \sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt$$

This, because of quasi-invexity of $\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,...,t) dt$ with η implies,

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} \left\{ \eta^{T} \left(y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} + \left(D^{2} \eta \right)^{T} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right\} dt \leq 0$$

As earlier, integrating by parts and using the boundary conditions, we have,

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} \eta^{T} \left\{ \left(y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + D^{T} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j} + D^{2} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right\} dt \leq 0$$
 (5.72)

Combining (5.71) and 5.72), we have,

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right) dt < 0$$

From the equality constraint of the dual, we have,

$$\int_{I} \eta^{T} \left(\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) \right) dt = 0$$

which is a contradiction. Hence the conclusion of the theorem is true.

Theorem 5.9 (*Strong Duality*): Let $\overline{x} \in X$ be an efficient solution of (VP) and for at least one $i \in P$, \overline{x} satisfies the regularity condition [30] for the problem $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. Then there exist multipliers $\overline{\lambda} \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\overline{y} \in R^m$ and $z^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ such that $(\overline{x}, \overline{y}, \overline{z}^1, ..., \overline{z}^p, \lambda)$ is feasible for (Mix D) and the objectives of (VP) and (Mix D) are equal.

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 5.8 are met, then $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \lambda)$ is an efficient solution of (Mix D).

Proof: Since $\overline{x} \in X$ is an optimal solution of $(P_k(\overline{x}))$. This implies that there exist $\overline{\xi} \in R^p$ with $\overline{\xi}^1, ..., \overline{\xi}^p, z^i(t) \in R^n$, $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and piecewise smooth $\overline{v} \in R^m$ such that, the following optimality conditions [30] hold:

$$\overline{\xi}^{k} \left(f_{x}^{k} + B^{k} (t) z^{k} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{k} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{k} \right) + \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i\neq k}}^{p} \overline{\xi}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right)
+ \overline{\upsilon} (t)^{T} g_{x} - D \left(\overline{\upsilon} (t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\overline{\upsilon} (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0$$
(5.73)

$$\overline{\upsilon}(t)^{T}g(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\ddot{\overline{x}})dt = 0$$
(5.74)

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} = \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right), i = 1, \dots, p$$

$$(5.75)$$

$$\left(\overline{z}\left(t\right)^{T}B^{i}\left(t\right)\overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right)\right) \leq 1, t \in I, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$(5.76)$$

$$\overline{\xi} > 0 , \overline{\upsilon}(t) \ge 0, t \in I$$
 (5.77)

Dividing (5.73), (5.74) and (5.77) by $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\xi}^{i}$, and setting

$$\overline{\lambda}^i = \frac{\overline{\xi}}{\sum_{i=1}^p \overline{\xi}^i}, i = 1, ..., p \text{ and } \overline{y}(t) = \frac{\overline{\upsilon}(t)}{\sum_{i=1}^p \overline{\xi}^i}, \text{ we have,}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + D^{2} f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right) + \overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{x} - D \left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\overline{y}(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0$$
(5.78)

$$\overline{y}(t)^{T}g(t,\overline{x},\dot{\overline{x}},\dot{\overline{x}})dt = 0$$
(5.79)

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0$$
, $\overline{y}(t) > 0$, $t \in I$ (5.80)

The equation (5.79) implies

$$\sum_{j \in J_o} y^j(t) g^j(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0 \text{ and } \sum_{j \in J_\alpha} y^j(t) g^j(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0, \ \alpha = 1, ..., r$$
(5.81)

This implies,

$$\sum_{i \in J} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) = 0, \quad \alpha = 1, ..., r$$
(5.82)

Consequently (5.76), (5.78), (5.80) and (5.82) implies that $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ is feasible for (Mix D).

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) + \left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{x}\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) \right) dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}\right) + \left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right)\right) \right) dt , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

This in view of Theorem 5.8, the efficiency of $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ follows.

As in [105], by employing chain rule in calculus, it can be easily seen that the expression

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right)$$

$$-D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0, \ t \in I$$

may be regarded as a function θ of variables $t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}$ and λ , where $\ddot{x} = D^3 x$ and $\ddot{y} = D^2 y$. That is, we can write

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}}) + D^{2}(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}}) = 0$$

In order to prove converse duality between (VP) and (Mix D), the space X is now replaced by a smaller space X_2 of piecewise smooth thrice differentiable function $x: I \to R^n$ with the norm $||x||_{\infty} + ||Dx||_{\infty} + ||D^2x||_{\infty} + ||D^3x||_{\infty}$. The problem (Mix D) may now be briefly written as,

$$\operatorname{Minimize} \left(-\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \\
\dots, \int_{I} -\left(f^{p}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) dt \right)$$

Subject to

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b),$$

$$\dot{u}(a) = 0 = \dot{u}(b),$$

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = 0, t \in I,$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r,$$

$$\overline{z}^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) \overline{z}^{i}(t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P,$$

$$y(t) \geq 0, t \in I,$$

$$\lambda > 0, \lambda^{T} e = 1.$$

where

$$\theta(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \ddot{y}, \lambda) = \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + y(t)^{T} g_{x}(t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\dot{x}} \right) + D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{x}} + y(t)^{T} g_{\ddot{x}} \right) = 0$$

Consider $\theta(t, x(\cdot), \dot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{x}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \dot{y}(\cdot), \ddot{y}(\cdot), \lambda) = 0$ as defining a mapping $\psi: X \times Y \times R^p \to B$ where Y is a space of piecewise twice differentiable function and B is the Banach Space. In order to apply Theorem 4.1 to the problem (Mix D), the infinite dimensional inequality must be restricted. In the following theorem, we use ψ' to represent the Frèchèt derivative $\left[\psi_x(x,y,\lambda),\psi_y(x,y,\lambda),\psi_\lambda(x,y,\lambda)\right]$.

Theorem 5.10 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution for (Mix D). Assume that

- (A₁) The Frèchèt derivative ψ' has a (weak*) closed range,
- (A_2) f and g are twice continuously differentiable,

(A₃)
$$\left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{i} \right) - D \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{i} \right)$$

 $+ D^{2} \left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{i} \right), i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\} \text{ are linearly independent, and}$

$$(\mathbf{A_4}) \quad \left(\beta(t)^T \theta_x - D\beta(t)^T \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^2 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^3 \beta(t)^T \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right) \beta(t) = 0,$$

$$\Rightarrow \beta(t) = 0, \ t \in I$$

Further, if the hypotheses of Theorem 5.8 are met then \bar{x} is an efficient solution of (VP).

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}, \bar{y}, \bar{z}^1, ..., \bar{z}^p, \bar{\lambda})$ with ψ' having a (weak*) closed range, is an efficient solution of (Mix D), then by Theorem 4.1, there exist multipliers $\tau \in R^p$, piecewise smooth $\beta: I \to R^n$, $z^i(t) \in R^n$, i = 1, ..., p, $\gamma \in R$ for each of r constraints, $\eta \in R^p$, $\delta \in R$ and piecewise smooth $\mu: I \to R^m$ satisfying the following Fritz-John optimality conditions.

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left[\left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right] + D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) - \gamma \sum_{\alpha=1}^{r} \sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \left(y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} - D y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} + D^{2} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x}^{j} + D^{2} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x}^{j} - D^{3} \beta (t)^{T} \theta_{x}^{j} = 0, t \in I,$$

$$(5.83)$$

$$-(\tau^{T}e)g^{j} + \beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T}\theta_{y^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0 , j \in J_{\circ},$$
(5.84)

$$-\gamma g^{j} + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{y^{j}} - \mu^{j}(t) = 0 , j \in J_{\alpha}, \alpha = 1, ..., r$$
(5.85)

$$-\tau^{i}x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t) + \lambda^{i}\beta(t)^{T}B^{i}(t) + 2\delta^{i}B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t) = 0, i = 1,..., p,$$
 (5.86)

$$\left[f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} - D \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) + D^{2} \left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j} \right) \right] - \eta^{i} = 0,$$
(5.87)

$$\mu^{T}(t)\overline{y}(t) = 0 , t \in I, \qquad (5.88)$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0, \tag{5.89}$$

$$\gamma \sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} \int_{I} y(t)^{T} g(t, \bar{x}, \dot{\bar{x}}, \ddot{\bar{x}}) dt = 0 , \alpha = 1, 2, ..., p,$$
(5.90)

$$\delta^{i}(z^{i}(t)^{T} B^{i}(t) z^{i}(t) - 1) = 0 , t \in I,$$
(5.91)

$$(\tau, \gamma, \mu(t), \delta, \eta) \ge 0,$$
 (5.92)

$$(\tau, \beta(t), \gamma, \mu(t), \delta, \eta) \neq 0. \tag{5.93}$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (5.89) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently (5.87) implies

$$\left[f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{x}^{j} - D\left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{\dot{x}}^{j} \right) + D^{2}\left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \right] = 0$$
(5.94)

Using the duality constraint of (Mix D) equation (5.83) reduces to

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}\left(t\right) z^{i}\left(t\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{x}^{j}\right) - D\left(f_{\dot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\dot{x}}^{j}\right) + D^{2}\left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j}\right) \right\} + \beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} = 0, t \in I$$

$$(5.95)$$

Post multiplying (5.95) by $\beta(t)$ and then using (5.94), we obtain,

$$\left(\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{x} - D\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\dot{x}} + D^{2}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}} - D^{3}\beta(t)^{T} \theta_{\ddot{x}}\right)\beta(t) = 0, t \in I$$

This because of the hypothesis (A_4) yields,

$$\beta(t) = 0 , t \in I \tag{5.96}$$

Using (5.96) in (5.95) in (5.83), we have,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i}\right) \left\{ \left(f_{x}^{i} + B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{x}^{j}\right) - D\left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{x}^{j}\right) + D^{2}\left(f_{x}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t)g_{x}^{j}\right) \right\} = 0$$

This, due to the hypothesis (A_3) gives,

$$\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} = 0, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (5.97)

Suppose $\gamma = 0$, then from (5.97) we have $\tau = 0$. Consequently from (5.84) and (5.85) implies $\mu(t) = 0$, $t \in I$.

Also from (5.86) we have $\delta^i B^i(t) z^i(t) = 0$, which together with (5.91) implies $\delta^i = 0$, i.e., $\delta = 0$. Thus, $(\tau, \beta(t), \mu(t), \eta, \gamma, \delta,) = 0$, which is a contradiction to (5.93). Hence $\gamma > 0$. From (5.95) it implies that $\tau > 0$.

By the generalized Schwartz inequality [125],

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right) \leq \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\left(\overline{z}^{i}(t)B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$(5.98)$$

Now let $\frac{\delta^i}{\tau^i} = \alpha^i$. Then $\alpha^i \ge 0$ and from (5.86), we have,

$$B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t) = 2\alpha^{i}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t), i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

which, is the condition for the equality in (5.98). Therefore, we have,

$$\left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{z}^{i}(t)\right) = \left(\overline{x}(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)\overline{x}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\left(z^{i}(t)B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$$

From (5.91), either $\delta^i = 0$ or $\overline{z}^i(t)^T B^i(t) \overline{z}^i(t) = 1$ or $\delta^i = 0$, i = 1, ..., p and hence $B^i(t) \overline{x}(t) = 0$. Therefore, in either case,

$$\left(x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)z^{i}(t)\right) = \left(x(t)^{T}B^{i}(t)x(t)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, \ i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
(5.99)

From (5.84) and (5.85) we readily obtain,

$$g(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \ddot{\overline{x}}) \leq 0$$
, $t \in I$

which gives the feasibility of \bar{x} for (P). Using (5.88) in (5.84) and (5.85) we have

$$\overline{y}(t)^T g = 0$$
, i.e., $\overline{y}^j(t)g^j = 0$, $j = 1, 2, ..., m$, $t \in I$

This obviously gives

$$\sum_{j \in I} \overline{y}^{j}(t) g^{j} = 0, \ j = 1, 2, ..., m$$
 (5.100)

Hence

$$\int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} \overline{y}^{j}\left(t\right) g^{j} = 0 \right) dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left(f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) dt + \left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} B^{i}\left(t\right) \overline{x}\left(t\right)\right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt, \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
(by using (5.99) and (5.100)

The efficiency of \bar{x} for (VP) follows by an application of Theorem 5.8.

5.2.2 Variational Problems with Natural Boundary Values

Here we shall consider the following variational problems with natural boundary values rather that fixed points.

(**VP**)₀: Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

$$, \dots, \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, \ddot{x}) dt + \left(x(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) x(t) \right)^{\frac{1}{2}} \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$g^{j}(t, x, \dot{x}, \dot{x}) \leq 0, t \in I, \quad j = 1, ..., m$$

(MIX D)₀:Maximize
$$\left(\int_{I} \left(f^{1}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + u(t)^{T} B^{1}(t) z^{1}(t) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

$$,..., \int_{I} \left(f^{p}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) + \left(u(t)^{T} B^{p}(t) z^{p}(t) \right) + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}(t) g^{j}(t,u,\dot{u},\ddot{u}) \right) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + B^{i} (t) z^{i} (t) + y (t)^{T} g_{u} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \\ &- D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y (t)^{T} g_{\dot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) \\ &+ D^{2} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\ddot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) + y (t)^{T} g_{\ddot{u}} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) \right) = 0, t \in I, \\ \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \bigg|_{t=a} = 0, \\ \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \bigg|_{t=a} = 0, \\ \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \bigg|_{t=b} = 0, \\ \left(f_{\ddot{x}}^{i} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j} (t) g_{\ddot{x}}^{j} \right) \bigg|_{t=b} = 0, \\ \forall i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\} \\ \overline{z}^{i} (t)^{T} B^{i} (t) \overline{z}^{i} (t) \leq 1, t \in I, i \in P, \\ \sum_{j \in J_{a}} \int_{I} y^{j} (t) g^{j} (t, u, \dot{u}, \ddot{u}) dt \geq 0, \quad \alpha = 1, 2, ..., r, \\ \lambda > 0, \quad y(t) \geq 0, t \in I. \end{split}$$

5.2.3 Nondifferentiable Nonlinear Programming

If all the functions are independent of t then the problems (VP) $_0$ and (MIX D) $_0$ become the following problems.

(VP)₁: Minimize
$$\left(f^{1}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{1}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}, \dots, f^{p}(x) + \left(x^{T}B^{p}x\right)^{\frac{1}{2}}\right)$$

Subject to

$$g(x) \leq 0$$

(**Mix D**)₁:Maximize
$$\left(f^{1}(u) + u^{T}B^{1}z^{1} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}g^{j}(u), ..., f^{P}(u) + u^{T}B^{P}z^{P} + \sum_{j \in J_{o}} y^{j}g^{j}(u) \right)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(u \right) dt + B^{i} z^{i} + y^{T} g_{u} \left(u \right) \right) = 0$$

$$\overline{z}^{iT} B^{i} \overline{z}^{i} \leq 1 \quad , i \in P$$

$$\sum_{j \in J_{\alpha}} y^{j} g^{j} \left(u \right) \geq 0 \quad , \quad \alpha = 1, 2, \dots, r$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 \quad , \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

The duality results for this pair of problems are not explicitly reported in the literature but can be derived easily on the lines of the analysis of this research.

Chapter-6

MIXED TYPE SYMMETRIC AND SELF DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS

- 6.1 Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems
 - 6.1.1 Introductory Remarks
 - 6.1.2 Notations and Preliminaries
 - 6.1.3 Statement of the Problems
 - 6.1.4 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality
 - 6.1.5 Self Duality
 - 6.1.6 Natural Boundary Values
 - 6.1.7 Mathematical Programming

6.1 MIXED TYPE SYMMETRIC AND SELF DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVEVARIATIONAL PROBLEMS

6.1.1 Introductory Remarks

otivated with the results of Dorn [51], symmetric duality results in Lmathematical programming have been derived by a number of authors, notably, Dantzig et al [48], Mond [99], Bazaraa and Goode [6]. In these researches, the authors have studied symmetric duality under the hypothesis of convexity-concavity of the kernel function involved. Mond and Cottle [104] presented self duality for the problems of [48] by assuming skew symmetric of the kernel function. Later Mond-Weir [14] formulated a different pair of symmetric dual nonlinear program with a view to generalize convexity-concavity of the kernel function to pseudoconvexitypseudoconcavity.

Symmetric duality for variational problems was first introduced by Mond and Hanson [108] under the convexity-concavity conditions of a scalar functions like $\psi(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t))$ with $x(t) \in R^n$ and $y(t) \in R^m$. Bector, Chandra and Husain [15] presented a different pair of symmetric dual variational problems in order to relax the requirement of convexity-concavity to that of pseudoconvexity-pseudoconcavity while in [27] Chandra and Husain gave a fractional analogue.

Bector and Husain [19] probably were the first to study duality for multiobjective variational problems under appropriate convexity assumptions. Subsequently, Gulati, Husain and Ahmed [59] presented two distinct pairs of

symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems and established various duality results under appropriate invexity requirements. In this reference, self duality theorem is also given under skew symmetric of the integrand of the objective functional. Husain and Jabeen [72] formulated a pair of mixed type symmetric dual variational problem in order to unify the Wolfe and Mond-Weir symmetric dual pairs of variational problems studied in [59].

The purpose of this chapter is to unify formulations of Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual pairs of multiobjective variational problems incorporated by Gulati, Husain and Ahmed [59] and also present multiobjective version of the formulation of a pair of mixed type symmetric dual of Husain and Jabeen [72] and hence study symmetric and self duality for a pair of mixed multiobjective variational problem. This research is motivated by the work of Xu [157]. Problems with natural boundary values are formulated in the subsection 6.1.6, as in the previous chapters. In subsection 6.1.7, it is pointed out that our results can be considered as dynamic generalizations of corresponding (static) symmetric duality results of multiobjective nonlinear nonlinear treated by Bector. et.al.[15].

6.1.2 Notations and Preliminaries

Let I = [a,b] be the real interval, and $\phi^i(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t))$ be a scalar function and twice differentiable function for i=1,2,...,p where $x:I\to R^n$ and $y:I\to R^n$ with derivatives \dot{x} and \dot{y} . In order to consider $\phi^i(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t))$ denote the first partial derivatives of ϕ^i with respect to $t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)$ respectively, by $\phi^i_t,\phi^i_x,\phi^i_x,\phi^i_y,\phi^i_y$, that is,

$$\phi_{x}^{i} = \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial t}$$

$$\phi_{x}^{i} = \left[\frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{1}}, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{2}}, \dots, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{n}}\right], \qquad \phi_{\dot{x}}^{i} = \left[\frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{x}_{1}}, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{x}_{2}}, \dots, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{x}_{n}}\right]$$

$$\phi_{y}^{i} = \left[\frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{1}}, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{2}}, \dots, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{n}}\right], \qquad \phi_{\dot{y}}^{i} = \left[\frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{y}_{1}}, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{y}_{2}}, \dots, \frac{\partial \phi^{i}}{\partial \dot{y}_{n}}\right].$$

The twice partial derivatives of ϕ^i with respect to $t, x(t), \dot{x}(t), y(t)$ and $\dot{y}(t)$, respectively are the matrices

$$\phi_{xx}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} x_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{x\dot{x}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} \dot{x}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{xy}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} y_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{x\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{x\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{x\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial x_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}, \qquad \phi_{y\dot{y}}^{i} = \left(\frac{\partial^{2} \phi^{i}}{\partial y_{k} \dot{y}_{s}}\right)_{n \times n}$$

for i = 1, 2, ..., p.

Noting that

$$\frac{d}{dt}\phi_{\dot{y}}^{i} = \phi_{\dot{y}t}^{i} + \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i}\dot{y} + \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i}\ddot{y} + \phi_{\dot{y}x}^{i}\dot{x} + \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{x}}^{i}\ddot{x}$$

and hence

$$\frac{\partial}{\partial y} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}} = \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{y\dot{y}} , \qquad \frac{\partial}{\partial \dot{y}} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}} = \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} + \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} , \qquad \frac{d}{d\ddot{y}} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}}^{\dot{i}} = \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{\dot{i}}
\frac{\partial}{\partial x} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}} = \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{x}} , \qquad \frac{\partial}{\partial \dot{x}} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}} = \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{x}} + \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{x}} , \qquad \frac{\partial}{\partial \ddot{x}} \frac{d}{dt} \phi_{\dot{y}} = \phi_{\dot{y}\dot{x}}^{\dot{i}}$$

In order to establish our main results, the following are needed.

Definition 6.1 (*Partially Invex*): If there exists a vector function $\eta(t,x(t),y(t),u(t),v(t)) \in \mathbf{R}^n_+$ with $\eta=0$ at x(t)=u(t) or y(t)=v(t), such that for the scalar function $h(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t))$ the functional

$$H(x,y) = \int_{I} h(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t))dt$$

satisfies

$$H(x,y)-H(u,v) \ge \iint_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{x}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) + \left(D\eta\right)^{T} h_{\dot{x}}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) \right] dt$$

then $H(x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})$ is said to be partially invex in x and \dot{x} on I with respect to η , for fixed y. If H satisfies

$$H(x,y)-H(x,v) \ge \int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{y}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),v(t),\dot{v}(t)) + (D\eta)^{T} h_{\dot{y}}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),v(t),\dot{v}(t)) \right] dt,$$

then $H(x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})$ is said to be partially invex in y and \dot{y} on I with respect to η , for fixed x. If -H is partially invex in x and \dot{x} (or in y and \dot{y}) on I with respect to η , for fixed y (or for fixed x), then H is said to be partially incave in x and \dot{x} (or in y and \dot{y}) on I with respect to η , for fixed y (or for fixed x).

Definition 6.2 (*Partially Pseudoinvex*): The functional H is said to be partially pseudoinvex 2 in x and \dot{x} with respect to η , for fixed y if H satisfies

$$\iint_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{x} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} h_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right] dt \geq 0$$

implies

$$H(x,u) \ge H(x,y)$$
.

and

H is said to be partially pseudoinvex in *y* and \dot{y} with respect to η , for fixed *x* If *H* satisfies

$$\iint_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{y} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} h_{\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right] dt \geq 0$$

implies

$$H(x,v)\geq H(x,y)$$
.

Definition 6.3 (*Partially Quasi-Invex*): The functional H is said to be partially quasi-invex in x and \dot{x} with respect to η , for fixed y if H satisfies

$$H(x,u) \leq H(x,y)$$

implies

$$\iint_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{x} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} h_{\dot{x}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right] dt \leq 0$$

and

H is said to be partially quasi-invex in *y* and \dot{y} with respect to η , for fixed *x* if *H* satisfies

$$H(x,y) \leq H(x,y)$$

implies

$$\int_{I} \left[\eta^{T} h_{y} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \left(D \eta \right)^{T} h_{\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right] dt \leq 0.$$

If h is independent of t, then the above definitions become the usual definitions of invexity and generalized invexity, discussed by several authors, notably Ben-Israel and Mond [20], Martin [94], and Rueda and Hanson [130].

Now consider the following multiobjective variational problem considered in [19]:

(**VP₀**): Minimize
$$\left(\int_{I} \phi^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}) dt, \int_{I} \phi^{2}(t, x, \dot{x}) dt, \dots, \int_{I} \phi^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}) dt,\right)$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = \alpha, \qquad x(b) = \beta$$

$$h(t, x, \dot{x}) \le 0, t \in I,$$

where $\phi^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R$, (i = 1, 2, ..., p) and $h: I \times R^n \times R^n \times R^n \to R^m$. Let the set of feasible solution of (VP_0) be represented by K.

Definition 6.4 (*Efficiency*): A point $\overline{x} \in K$ is an efficient (Pareto optimal) solution of (VP_0) if for all $x \in K$,

6.1.3 Statement of the Problems

For $N = \{1, 2, ..., n\}$ and $M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, let $J_1 \subset N$, $K_1 \subset M$, $J_2 = N \setminus J_1$ and $K_2 = M \setminus K_1$. Let $|J_1|$ denote the number of elements in the subset J_1 . The other symbol $|J_2|, |K_1|$ and $|K_2|$ are similarly defined. Let $x^1 : I \to R^{|J_1|}$ and $x^2 : I \to R^{|J_2|}$, then any $x : I \to R^n$ can be written as $x = (x^1, x^2)$. Similarly

for $y^1: I \to R^{|K_1|}$ and $y^2: I \to R^{|K_2|}$ can be written as $y = (y^1, y^2)$. Let $f: I \times R^{|J_1|} \times R^{|K_1|} \to R^p$ and $g: I \times R^{|J_2|} \times R^{|K_2|} \to R^p$ be twice continuously differentiable functions.

We state the following pair of mixed type multiobjective symmetric dual variational problems involving vector functions f and g.

(Mix SP): Minimize
$$F(x^{1}, x^{2}, y^{1}, y^{2}) = \int_{I} \{f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - y^{1}(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1})) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \} e dt$$

Subject to

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b)$$
 , $y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b)$, (6.1)

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b)$$
, $y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b)$, (6.2)

$$\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \leq 0, t \in I,$$
(6.3)

$$\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \leq 0, t \in I,$$
(6.4)

$$\int_{I} y^{2}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) -D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right) \ge 0,$$
(6.5)

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
. (6.6)

(Mix SD): Maximize
$$G(u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}) = \int_{I} \{f(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + g(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - u^{1}(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1})) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \} e \} dt$$

Subject to

$$u^{1}(a) = 0 = u^{1}(b)$$
 , $v^{1}(a) = 0 = v^{1}(b)$, (6.7)

$$u^{2}(a) = 0 = u^{2}(b)$$
, $v^{2}(a) = 0 = v^{2}(b)$, (6.8)

$$\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \ge 0, t \in I,$$
(6.9)

$$\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \ge 0, t \in I,$$

$$(6.10)$$

$$\int_{I} u^{2}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2})\right)$$

$$-D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2})) \ge 0,, \tag{6.11}$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
. (6.12)

where $\Lambda^+ = \left\{ \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^p \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^T e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^T \in \mathbb{R}^p \right\}$

6.1.4 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality

In this section, we present various duality results and the appropriate invexity and generalized invexity assumptions.

Theorem 6.1. (*Weak Duality*): Let $(x^1, x^2, y^1, y^2, \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix SP) and $(u^1, u^2, v^1, v^2, \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix SD).

Let

 $\begin{aligned} \mathbf{H_1} & & \int_I \left\{ f\left(t,...,y^1(t),\dot{y}^1(t)\right) dt \text{ be partially invex in } x^1,\dot{x}^1 \text{ on } I \text{ for fixed} \\ & y^1,\dot{y}^1 \text{ with respect to } & \eta_1\left(t,x^1,u^1\right) \in R^{|J_1|}. \end{aligned}$ $& \int_I \left\{ f\left(t,x^1(t),\dot{x}^1(t),...\right) dt \text{ be partially incave in } y^1,\dot{y}^1 \text{ on } I \text{ for fixed} \\ & x^1,\dot{x}^1 \text{ with respect to } & \eta_2\left(t,y^1,v^1\right) \in R^{|K_1|}. \end{aligned}$

 $\mathbf{H_2} \qquad \int_I \lambda^T g\left(t,...,y^2(t),\dot{y}^2(t)\right) dt \text{ be partially pseudoinvex in } x^2,\dot{x}^2 \text{ on } I$ for fixed y^2,\dot{y}^2 with respect $\eta_3\left(t,x^2,u^2\right) \in R^{|J_2|}$ and $\int_I \lambda^T g\left(t,x^2,\dot{x}^2,...\right) dt \text{ be partially pseudoincave in } y^2,\dot{y}^2 \text{ on } I \text{ for fixed } x^2,\dot{x}^2 \text{ with respect to } \eta_4\left(t,y^2,v^2\right) \in R^{|K_2|}.$

$$\mathbf{H}_{3} \qquad \eta_{1}(t, x^{1}, u^{1}) + u^{1}(t) \ge 0, t \in I, \tag{6.13}$$

$$\eta_2(t, v^1, y^1) + y^1(t) \ge 0, t \in I,$$
(6.14)

$$\eta_3(t, x^2, u^2) + u^2(t) \ge 0, t \in I,$$
(6.15)

$$\eta_4(t, v^2, y^2) + y^2(t) \ge 0, t \in I,$$
 (6.16)

then

$$F(x^1, x^2, y^1, y^2) \leq G(u^1, u^2, v^1, v^2).$$

Proof: Because of the partial invexity-incavity of the function f, we have for each $i = \{1, 2, ..., p\}$.

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta_{1}^{T} f_{x^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + (D\eta_{1})^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\} dt \qquad (6.17)$$

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta_{2}^{T} f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + (D\eta_{2})^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\} dt \tag{6.18}$$

Multiplying (6.17) by $\lambda^i > 0$ and summing over i, we get,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt
\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta_{1}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \left(D \eta_{1} \right)^{T} \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right) \right\} dt$$

Integrating by parts, the above inequality becomes,

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) dt \\ & \geq \int_{I} \eta_{1}^{T} \lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) dt + \eta_{1}^{T} \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) \Big|_{t=a}^{t=b} \\ & - \int_{I} \eta_{1}^{T} D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) dt \end{split}$$

Using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $\eta_1 = 0$, we have,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \eta_{1}^{T} \left[\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - D(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1})) \right] dt$$
(6.19)

Multiplying (6.18) by λ^i , $i \in \{1, 2, ..., p\}$ and summing over i, we get,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt
\leq \int_{I} \left\{ \eta_{2}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right) + \left(D \eta_{2} \right)^{T} \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\} dt$$

On integrating by parts the R.H.S of the above inequality and using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $\eta_2 = 0$, we have,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt$$

$$\leq \int_{I} \eta_{2}^{T} \left[\left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \right] dt \quad (6.20)$$

Multiplying (6.20) by (-1) and adding to (6.19), we have

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \eta_{1}^{T} \left[\left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) \right] dt$$

$$- \int_{I} \eta_{2}^{T} \left[\left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) \right] dt$$
(6.21)

Now from the inequality (6.9) along with (6.13), it follows

$$\int_{I} \eta_{1}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right) dt
\geq - \int_{I} u^{1} \left(t \right)^{T} \left[\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right] dt$$
(6.22)

Also from the inequality (6.3) together with (6.14) implies

$$-\int_{I} \eta_{2}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} y^{1} \left(t \right)^{T} \left[\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right] dt \qquad (6.23)$$

Using (6.22) and (6.23), in (6.21), we have

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt - y^{1}(t)^{T} \int_{I} \lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq -\int_{I} u^{1}(t)^{T} \left[\left(\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right) \right] dt$$

$$+ \int_{I} y^{1}(t)^{T} \left[\left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right) \right] dt,$$
(6.24)

which implies,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - y^{1}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) \right\} dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - u^{1}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) \right\} dt$$
(6.25)

Now from the inequality (6.10) along with (6.15), we have,

$$\int_{I} \left(\eta_{3}^{T} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2} \right) + u^{2} \left(t \right) \right) \left(\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right) \geq 0.$$

This implies,

$$\int_{I} \eta_{3}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right) \right) dt
\ge - \int_{I} u^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \left[\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right) \right] dt$$

Integrating by parts and using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $\eta_3 = 0$, we have,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \eta_{3}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + \left(D \eta_{3} \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right) \right) \right\} dt \ge 0$$

Because of the partial pseudo-invexity of $\int \lambda^T g_{u^2} dt$, this gives,

$$\int_{I} \lambda^{T} g(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) dt \ge \int_{I} \lambda^{T} g(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) dt$$
(6.26)

Also from (6.4) together with (6.16), we have,

$$\int_{I} \left(\eta_{4}^{T} \left(t, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) + y^{2} \left(t \right) \right) \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) dt \ge 0$$

This implies,

$$\int_{I} \eta_{4}^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) dt \\
\leq - \int_{I} y^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \left[\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) \right] dt$$

This in view of (6.5) yields,

$$\int_{T} \eta_{4}^{T} \left\{ \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - D \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) \right\} dt \leq 0$$

On integrating by parts and using the boundary conditions which at t = a, t = b gives $\eta_4 = 0$, we have,

$$\int_{I} \eta_{4}^{T} \left\{ \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) + \left(D \eta_{4} \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) \right\} dt \leq 0$$

Because of partial pseudoincavity of $\int_{t}^{t} \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} dt$, we have,

$$\int_{I} \left(\lambda^{T} g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) \right) dt \leq \int_{I} \left(\lambda^{T} g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right) dt \tag{6.27}$$

From (6.26) and (6.27), we get,

$$\int_{I} \left(\lambda^{T} g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right) dt \ge \int_{I} \left(\lambda^{T} g\left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) \right) dt \tag{6.28}$$

Combining (6.25) and (6.28), we get,

$$\begin{split} & \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) \\ & - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + \lambda^{T} g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right)\right\} dt \\ & \geq \int_{I} \left\{ \lambda^{T} f\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - u^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) \\ & - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) + \lambda^{T} g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right)\right\} dt \end{split}$$

This implies,

$$\begin{split} &\lambda^{T} \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right. \\ &\left. - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt \\ & \geq \lambda^{T} \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) \right. \\ &\left. - u^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt \end{split}$$

This implies,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right. \\
\left. - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt \\
\not \leq \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) \right. \\
\left. - u^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt$$

This was to be proved.

Theorem 6.2 (*Strong Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}^1, \bar{x}^2, \bar{y}^1, \bar{y}^2, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix SP). Let $\lambda = \bar{\lambda}$ be fixed in (Mix SD) and

$$\int_{I} \left[\left\{ \left(\phi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}} - D\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) - D\phi^{1}(t)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) + D^{2}\phi^{1}(t)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right\} \phi^{1}(t) \right] dt > 0,$$

and

$$\int_{I} \left[\left\{ \left(\phi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) - D \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(-D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) + D^{2} \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right\} \phi^{2}(t) \right] dt > 0,$$

$$\iint_{I} \left\{ \left(\phi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}} - D\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) - D\phi^{1}(t)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right. \\
\left. + D^{2} \phi^{1}(t)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right\} \phi^{1}(t) \left. \right] dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \phi^{1}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

and

$$\iint_{I} \left\{ \left(\phi^{2}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) - D\phi^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right. \\
\left. + D^{2} \phi^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right\} \phi^{2}\left(t\right) \right] dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \phi^{1}\left(t\right) = 0, t \in I.$$

(C₃)
$$g_{y^2}^i - Dg_{y^2}^i = 0$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$ are linearly independent.

Let $\int_{I} f \, dt$ and $\int_{I} \lambda^{T} g \, dt$ satisfy the invexity and generalized invexity as stated in Theorem 6.1, then $(\bar{x}^{1}, \bar{x}^{2}, \bar{y}, \bar{y}^{2}, \bar{\lambda})$ and $(\bar{u}^{1}, \bar{u}^{2}, \bar{v}, \bar{v}^{2}, \bar{\lambda})$ are efficient solution of (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) respectively.

Proof: Since $(\bar{x}^1, \bar{x}^2, \bar{y}^1, \bar{y}^2, \bar{\lambda})$ is efficient, it is weak minimum. Hence there exists $\tau \in R^p$, $\eta \in R^p$, $\gamma \in R$ and piecewise smooth functions $\theta^1(t): I \to R^{|k_1|}$, $\theta^2(t): I \to R^{|k_2|}$ and $\mu: I \to R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions, in view of the analysis on [59, 104, 116], are satisfied

$$H = \tau (f+g) + \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T}e\right)y^{1}(t)^{T}\right)\left(\lambda^{T}f_{y^{1}} - D\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\right)$$
$$+ \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t)^{T}\right)\left(\lambda^{T}g_{y^{2}} - D\lambda^{T}g_{\dot{y}^{2}}\right) + \eta^{T}\lambda$$

Satisfying

$$H_{x^{1}} - DH_{x^{1}} + D^{2}H_{x^{1}} = 0, t \in I,$$
 (6.29)

$$H_{x^2} - DH_{\dot{x}^2} + D^2 H_{\dot{x}^2} = 0 , t \in I,$$
 (6.30)

$$H_{y^{1}} - DH_{\dot{y}^{1}} + D^{2}H_{\dot{y}^{1}} = 0, t \in I,$$
(6.31)

$$H_{y^{2}} - DH_{\dot{y}^{2}} + D^{2}H_{\dot{y}^{2}} = 0, t \in I,$$

$$(6.32)$$

$$(\theta^{1}(t) - (\tau^{T}e)y^{1}(t))^{T}(f_{v^{1}} - Df_{\dot{v}^{1}})$$

$$+ (\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t))^{T} (g_{y^{2}} - Dg_{y^{2}}) - \eta = 0, t \in I$$
 (6.33)

$$\theta^{1}(t) \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) = 0, t \in I,$$
(6.34)

$$\theta^{2}(t) \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} \right) = 0, t \in I,$$
(6.35)

$$\gamma \int_{t} y^{2} (t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}) = 0, \qquad (6.36)$$

$$\eta^T \overline{\lambda} = 0, \tag{6.37}$$

$$\left(\tau, \theta^{1}(t), \theta^{2}(t), \eta, \gamma\right) \geq 0, t \in I , \qquad (6.38)$$

$$\left(\tau, \theta^{1}(t), \theta^{2}(t), \eta, \gamma\right) \neq 0, t \in I, \qquad (6.39)$$

hold throughout I (except at the corners of $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t))$ where (6.29)-(6.32) are valid for unique right and left hand limits). Here θ^1 and θ^2 are continuous except possibly at corner of $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t))$.

The relations (6.29)-(6.32) are all deducible from the classical Euler-Lagrange and Clebsch necessary optimality conditions. Particularly, the equations (6.29)-(6.32) are the famous Euler-Lagrange differential equation when second order derivatives appear in H.Using the analogies of the observation of $D\phi_{\bar{y}}$ from the notational section, the equations (6.29)-(6.32) become.

$$\tau \left(f_{x^{1}} - D f_{\dot{x}^{1}} \right) - \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1} x^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} x^{1}} \right) \\
- D \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1} \dot{x}^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} \dot{x}^{1}} - \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} x^{1}} \right) \\
+ D^{2} \left(\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} \dot{x}^{1}} \right) \right) = 0, \tag{6.40}$$

$$\tau \left(g_{x^{2}} - Dg_{\dot{x}^{2}} \right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}x^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}x^{2}} \right)
- D \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{x}^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}} - \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}x^{2}} \right)
+ D^{2} \left(\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}} \right) \right) = 0,$$
(6.41)

$$\left(\tau - \left(\tau^T e\right)\lambda\right)^T \left(f_{\mathbf{y}^1} - Df_{\mathbf{\dot{y}}^1}\right) + \left(\theta^1\left(t\right) - \left(\tau^T e\right)\overline{\mathbf{y}}^1\left(t\right)\right)^T \left(\lambda^T f_{\mathbf{y}^1 \mathbf{y}^1} - D\lambda^T f_{\mathbf{\dot{y}}^1 \mathbf{y}^1}\right)$$

$$-D(\theta^{1}(t)-(\tau^{T}e)\bar{y}^{1}(t))^{T}(-D\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}})+D^{2}((\theta^{1}(t)-(\tau^{T}e)\bar{y}^{1}(t))^{T}(-\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}))=0,$$
(6.42)

$$(\tau - \gamma \lambda)^{T} (g_{y^{2}} - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}) + (\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t))^{T} (\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}y^{2}})$$

$$- D(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t))^{T} (-D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}) + D^{2} (\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t))^{T} (-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}) = 0$$

$$(6.43)$$

Since $\lambda > 0$, (6.27) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently, (6.33) reduces to

$$\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T}e\right)y^{1}(t)\right)^{T}\left(f_{y^{1}} - Df_{\dot{y}^{1}}\right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t)\right)^{T}\left(g_{y^{2}} - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}\right) = 0, t \in I$$
(6.44)

Postmultiplying (6.42) by $\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T}e\right)y^{1}(t)\right)$, (6.43) by $\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t)\right)$ and then adding, we have,

$$\begin{aligned}
&\Big\{ \left(\tau - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda \right)^{T} \left(f_{y^{1}} - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) + \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1} y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} y^{1}} \right) \\
&- D \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} \dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \\
&+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1} \dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \Big\} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right) \\
&+ \Big\{ \left(\tau - \gamma \lambda \right)^{T} \left(g_{y^{2}} - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2} y^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2} y^{2}} \right) \\
&- D \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2} \dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \\
&+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2} \dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \Big\} \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right) = 0 \quad (6.45)
\end{aligned}$$

Now multiplying (6.44) by $\overline{\lambda}$ and then using (6.35) and (6.36) we have,

$$\int_{I} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) dt = 0$$

that is,

$$\int_{I} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \left(\tau^{T} e \right) dt = 0$$

$$(6.46)$$

Multiplying (6.44) by τ , we have,

$$\int_{I} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\tau f_{y^{1}} - D \tau f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\tau g_{y^{2}} - D \tau g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] dt = 0$$
(6.47)

Subtracting (6.45) and (6.47) and using (6.35) and (6.36), we have

$$\int_{I} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(f_{y^{1}} - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \left(\tau - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \bar{\lambda} \right) \right] dt = 0$$

$$+ \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma y^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\tau g_{y^{2}} - D \tau g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \left(\tau - \gamma \bar{\lambda} \right) dt = 0$$
(6.48)

From (6.45) and (6.48), we obtain,

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left[\left\{ \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right. \\ & \left. - D \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \right. \\ & \left. + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right) \right] dt \\ & \left. + \int_{I} \left[\left\{ \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right. \right. \\ & \left. - D \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \right. \\ & \left. + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right) \right] dt = 0 \end{split}$$

In view of the hypothesis (C_1) , we have

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left[\left\{ \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}} - D \lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right. \\ & \left. - D \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \\ & \left. + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right) \right] dt = 0 \end{split}$$

and

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left[\left\{ \left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right. \\ & \left. - D \left[\left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(- D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \right. \\ & \left. + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(- \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \right) \right] dt = 0 \end{split}$$

This in view of the hypothesis (C_2) yields,

$$\phi^{1}(t) = \theta^{1}(t) - (\tau^{T}e)\overline{y}^{1}(t) = 0, t \in I$$
(6.49)

$$\phi^{2}(t) = \theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(6.50)$$

From (6.43) and (6.50), we have,

$$\left(\tau - \gamma \lambda\right)^{T} \left(g_{y^{2}} - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}\right) = 0$$

that is,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \lambda^{i} \right)^{T} \left(g_{y^{2}} - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}} \right) = 0$$

This in view of the (C_3) yields,

$$\tau^{i} = \gamma \lambda^{i}, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (6.51)

Let if possible, $\gamma = 0$. Then from (6.51), we have $\tau = 0$ and therefore, from (6.49) and (6.50), we have,

$$\phi^{1}(t) = 0, \theta^{2}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

Hence $(\tau, \theta^1(t), \theta^2(t), \eta, \gamma) = 0$, contradicting Fritz-John conditions (6.39). Hence $\gamma > 0$ and consequently $\tau > 0$.

From (6.40) and (6.41) along with (6.51), we obtain

$$\left(\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\downarrow^1} - D\overline{\lambda}^T f_{\downarrow^1}\right) = 0, t \in I$$
(6.52)

$$\left(\overline{\lambda}^T g_{x^2} - D\overline{\lambda}^T g_{x^2}\right) = 0, t \in I$$
(6.53)

which implies

$$\int_{I} x^{2} (t)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{x^{2}} - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{x^{2}} \right) dt = 0$$

$$(6.54)$$

From (6.52)-(6.54) together with (6.49), we have

$$y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T}\left(\overline{\lambda}^{T}f_{y^{1}}-D\overline{\lambda}^{T}f_{y^{1}}\right)=0, t \in I$$

$$(6.55)$$

From the primal objective with (6.55)

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}} - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt \tag{6.56}$$

From the dual objective in view of (6.52), we have

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) - x^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}} - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt \tag{6.57}$$

From (6.65) and (6.57), the equality of objective values is evident. Consequently, in view of the hypothesis of Theorem 6.1, the efficiency of $(\bar{x}^1, \bar{x}^2, \bar{y}^1, \bar{y}^2, \bar{\lambda})$ follows.

We now state converse duality whose proof follows by symmetry.

Theorem 6.3 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}^1, \bar{x}^2, \bar{y}^1, \bar{y}^2, \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix SP). Let $\lambda = \bar{\lambda}$ be fixed in (Mix SD) and

$$\begin{split} (\mathbf{A_{1}}) \qquad & \int_{I} \left[\left\{ \psi^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}x^{1}} - D\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}\right) - D\psi^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}\right) + D^{2}\psi^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}\right) \right\} \psi^{1}\left(t\right) \right] dt > 0, \\ \text{and} \\ & \int_{I} \left[\left\{ \psi^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{x^{2}x^{2}} - D\lambda^{T} g_{x^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}\right) - D\psi^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}\right) + D^{2}\psi^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}\right) \right\} \psi^{2}\left(t\right) \right] dt > 0, \end{split}$$

$$(\mathbf{A_2}) \qquad \int_{I} \left[\left\{ \psi^1(t)^T \left(\lambda^T f_{x^1 x^1} - D \lambda^T f_{x^1 x^1} \right) - D \psi^1(t)^T \left(-D \lambda^T f_{x^1 x^1} \right) + D^2 \psi^1(t)^T \left(-\lambda^T f_{x^1 x^1} \right) \right\} \psi^1(t) \right] dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \psi^1(t) = 0, t \in I,$$
 and

$$\int_{I} \left[\left\{ \psi^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{x^{2} x^{2}} - D \lambda^{T} g_{x^{2} \dot{x}^{2}} \right) - D \psi^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \left(-D \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2} \dot{x}^{2}} \right) \right. \\
\left. + D^{2} \psi^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2} \dot{x}^{2}} \right) \right\} \psi^{2} \left(t \right) \right] dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \psi^{2} \left(t \right) = 0, t \in I$$

and

(A₃)
$$g_{x^2}^i - Dg_{x^2}^i = 0$$
, $i = 1, 2, ..., p$ are linearly independent.

Let $\int_{I} f \, dt$ and $\int_{I} \lambda^{T} g \, dt$ satisfy the invexity and generalized invexity as stated in Theorem 6.1, then $(\bar{x}^{1}, \bar{x}^{2}, \bar{y}, \bar{y}^{2}, \bar{\lambda})$ and $(\bar{u}^{1}, \bar{u}^{2}, \bar{v}, \bar{v}^{2}, \bar{\lambda})$ are efficient solution of (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) respectively.

6.1.5 Self Duality

A problem is said to be self-dual if it is formally identical with its dual, in general, the problems (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) are not formally in the absence of an additional restrictions of the function f and g. Hence skew symmetry of f and g is assumed in order to validate the following self-duality theorem.

Theorem 6.4. (*Self Duality*): Let f^i and g^i , i=1,2,...,p, be skew symmetric. Then the problem (Mix SP) is self dual. If the problems (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) are dual problems and $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is a joint optimal solution of (Mix SP) and (Mix SD), then so is $(\bar{y}(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$, and the common functional value is zero, i.e.

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \{ f(x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g(x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \} dt = 0$$

Proof: By skew symmetric of f^i and g^i , we have

$$\begin{split} f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t),y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right) &= -f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t),x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t)\right) \\ g_{x^{2}}^{i}\left(t,x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t),y(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t)\right) &= -g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,y^{2}(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t),x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t)\right) \\ f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t),y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right) &= -f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t),x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t),y(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,y^{2}(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t),x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t)\right) \\ f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t),y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right) &= -f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t),x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t)\right) \\ g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t),y(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,y^{2}(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t),x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t)\right) \\ f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t),y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right) &= -f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t),x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t)\right) \\ g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t),y(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,y^{2}(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t),x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t)\right) \end{split}$$

Recasting the dual problem (Mix SD) as a minimization problem and using the above relations, we have

(**Mix SD1**): Minimize
$$-\int_{I} \{ f(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}) + g(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) \}$$

$$-x^{1}(t)^{T}(\lambda^{T}f_{x^{1}}(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1})$$
$$-D\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{x}^{1}}(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}))eddt$$

Subject to

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b) , \quad y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b)$$

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b) , \quad y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b)$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{x^{1}}(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}) \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\lambda^{T} g_{x^{2}}(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}}(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} x^{2}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{x^{2}}(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{1}}(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{1}}(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) \right) dt \geq 0$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

This shows that the problem (Mix SD₁) is just the primal problem (Mix SP). Therefore, $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is an optimal solution of (Mix SD) implies that $(\bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is an optimal solution for (Mix SP), and by symmetric duality also for (Mix SD).

Now from (6.55),

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \{ f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \} dt$$

Correspondingly with the solution $(\bar{y}(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$, we have,

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}) + g(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}) \right\} dt$$

By the skew symmetric of f^i and g^i , we have,

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= -\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

this yields,

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \{ f(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \} dt = 0$$

This accomplishes the proof of the theorem.

6.1.6 Natural Boundary Values

The pair of mixed symmetric multiobjective variational problem with natural boundary values rather than fixed points may be formulated as,

Primal (Mix SP_0):

Minimize
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T}\left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} \lambda^T f_{y^1} \Big(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1 \Big) - D \lambda^T f_{\dot{y}^1} \Big(t, x^1, \dot{x}^1, y^1, \dot{y}^1 \Big) &\leq 0 , \\ \lambda^T g_{y^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) - D \lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) &\leq 0 , \\ \int_I y^2 \Big(t \Big)^T \Big(\lambda^T g_{y^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) \\ - D \lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) \Big) &\geq 0 , \\ \lambda^T f_{y^1} \Big(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1 \Big) \Big|_{t=a} &= 0 , \lambda^T f_{\dot{y}^1} \Big(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1 \Big) \Big|_{t=b} &= 0 , \\ \lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) \Big|_{t=a} &= 0 , \lambda^T g_{\dot{y}^2} \Big(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \Big) \Big|_{t=b} &= 0 , \\ \lambda \in \Lambda^+ . \end{split}$$

Dual (Mix SD₀):

Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) + g\left(u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) - u^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}\left(u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}\left(u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$\lambda^T f_{u^1}(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1) - D\lambda^T f_{\dot{u}^1}(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1) \ge 0$$
,

$$\begin{split} \lambda^T g_{u^2} \left(t, u^2, \dot{u}^2, v^2, \dot{v}^2 \right) - D \lambda^T g_{\dot{u}^2} \left(t, u^2, \dot{u}^2, v^2, \dot{v}^2 \right) & \geq 0 \,, \\ \int_{I} u^2 \left(t \right)^T \left(\lambda^T g_{u^2} \left(t, u^2, \dot{u}^2, v^2, \dot{v}^2 \right) \right) \\ - D \lambda^T g_{\dot{u}^2} \left(t, u^2, \dot{u}^2, v^2, \dot{v}^2 \right) \right) dt & \leq 0, \\ \lambda^T f_{\dot{x}^1} \left(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1 \right) \Big|_{t=a} &= 0 \,, \, \lambda^T f_{\dot{x}^1} \left(t, u^1, \dot{u}^1, v^1, \dot{v}^1 \right) \Big|_{t=b} &= 0 \,, \\ \lambda^T g_{\dot{x}^2} \left(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \right) \Big|_{t=a} &= 0 \,, \, \lambda^T g_{\dot{x}^2} \left(t, x^2, \dot{x}^2, y^2, \dot{y}^2 \right) \Big|_{t=b} &= 0 \,, \\ \lambda \in \Lambda^+ \end{split}$$

For these problems, Theorem 6.1- 6.3 will remain true except that some slight modifications in the arguments for these theorems are to be indicated.

6.1.7 Nonlinear Programming

If the time dependency of (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) is removed and b-a=1, we obtain following pair of static mixed type multiobjective dual problems studied by Bector, Chandra and Abha [12].

Primal (Mix SP₁):

Minimize
$$f(x^1, y^1) + g(x^2, y^2) - (y^1)^T (\lambda^T f_{y^1}(x^1, y^1))$$

Subject to
$$\lambda^T f_{y^1}(x^1, y^1) \leq 0,$$

$$\lambda^T g_{y^2}(x^2, y^2) \leq 0,$$

$$y^{2}(t)^{T}(\lambda^{T}g_{y^{2}}(x^{2}, y^{2})) \ge 0,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
.

Dual (Mix SD1):

Maximize
$$f(u^{1}, v^{1}) + g(u^{2}, v^{2}) - u^{1}(t)^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}(u^{1}, v^{1}))$$

Subject to

$$\lambda^T f_{u^1} \left(u^1, v^1 \right) \geq 0 ,$$

$$\lambda^T g_{u^2}(u^2, v^2) \geq 0,$$

$$(u^2)^T (\lambda^T g_{u^2} (u^2, v^2) \leq 0,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+.$$



SYMMETRIC DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS CONTAINING SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

- 7.1 Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems
 - 7.1.1 Introductory Remarks
 - 7.1.2 Wolfe Type Symmetric Duality
 - 7.1.3 Mond-Weir Type Symmetric Duality
 - 7.1.4 Self Duality
 - 7.1.5 Natural Boundary Values
 - 7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming
- 7.2 Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Support Functions
 - 7.2.1 Statement of the Problems
 - 7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality
 - 7.2.3 Self Duality
 - 7.2.4 Special Cases
 - 7.2.5 Natural Boundary Values
 - 7.2.6 Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming

7.1 SYMMETRIC DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS

7.1.1 Introductory Remarks

This chapter is comprises of two main sections, 7.1 and 7.2. The L purpose of the section 7.1 is to present pairs of Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems containing support functions in order to extend the results of the chapter 6 to nondifferentiable cases and hence study symmetric and self duality for these pairs of nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problems. The problems with natural boundary values are formulated in the subsection 7.1.5 and it is also pointed out that our results can be considered as dynamic generalizations of corresponding (static) symmetric duality results of multiobjective nonlinear programming problems involving support functions. The section 7.2 of this chapter deals with the unification of the formulations of the pairs of Wolfe and Mond-Weir type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems involving support functions treated in section 7.1 and study symmetric and self duality for these pairs of nondifferentiable dual variational problems under appropriate convexity assumptions. Our duality results reported in this research extends the results of chapter 6 to nondifferentiable setting by introducing support functions.

7.1.2 Wolfe Type Symmetric Duality

In this section, we present the following pair of Wolfe type symmetric dual multiobjective variational problems containing support functions:

(SWP): Minimize:
$$\int_{I} (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p) dt$$

Subject to:

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b),$$
 (7.1)

$$y(a) = 0 = y(b),$$
 (7.2)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - z^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \leq 0, t \in I$$
(7.3)

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}, i = 1,..., p, t \in I$$
 (7.4)

$$x(t) \ge 0 , t \in I \tag{7.5}$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} = \left\{ \lambda \in R^{p} \mid \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^{T} \in R^{p} \right\}$$
 (7.6)

where,

1.
$$H^{i} = f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + s(x(t)|C^{i})$$
$$-y(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f^{i}_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + z^{i}(t) - Df^{i}_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) - y(t)^{T} z(t)$$

2. $f^i: I \times R^n \times R^n \to R, (i = 1, 2, ..., p)$, is continuously differentiable function.

(SWD): Maximize: $\int_{I} (G^1, G^2, ..., G^p) dt$

Subject to:

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b),$$
 (7.7)

$$v(a) = 0 = v(b), \tag{7.8}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) \geq 0, \ t \in I,$$
(7.9)

$$\omega^{i}(t) \in K^{i}, i = 1,...,p, t \in I,$$
 (7.10)

$$v(t) \ge 0 , \ t \in I , \tag{7.11}$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
 (7.12)

where,

$$G^{i} = f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + s(v(t)|K^{i})$$

$$-u(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v})) - x(t)^{T} \omega(t)$$

We shall prove various duality results under convexity-concavity assumptions.

Theorem 7.1 (*Weak Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for the (SWP) and $(u(t), v(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for the dual (SWD). Assume that for each i, $\int_I f^i(t, ..., y, \dot{y}) dt$ is convex in (x, \dot{x}) for fixed (y, \dot{y}) and $\int_I f^i(t, x, \dot{x}, ...) dt$ is concave in (y, \dot{y}) for fixed (x, \dot{x}) . Then,

$$\int_{I} H dt \not\leq \int_{I} G dt$$

where,

$$H = (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p)$$
 and $G = (G^1, G^2, ..., G^p)$.

Proof: Using the convexity of $\int_{I} f^{i}(t,...,y,\dot{y})dt$ in (x,\dot{x}) for fixed (y,\dot{y}) , we have

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, v, \dot{v}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) - u(t) \right)^{T} f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - \left(\dot{x}(t) - \dot{u}(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right] dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) - u(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \right] dt$$

$$+ \left(x(t) - u(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \Big|_{t=b}^{t=a}.$$

This on using (7.1) and (7.7) gives,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, v, \dot{v}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) - u(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \right] dt .$$
(7.13)

Also by concavity of $\int_{t}^{t} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, ...) dt$, we have

$$-\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, v, \dot{v}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) dt
\ge -\int_{I} \left[\left(v(t) - y(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - \left(\dot{v}(t) - \dot{y}(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right] dt
= -\int_{I} \left[\left(v(t) - y(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \right] dt
+ \left(v(t) - y(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=b}^{t=a}$$

which by using (7.2) and (7.8) we have,

$$-\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, v, \dot{v}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) dt$$

$$\geq -\int_{I} \left[\left(v(t) - y(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \right] dt \quad (7.14)$$

Adding (7.13) and (7.14) we have,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) - u(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} - \left(v(t) - y(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \right] dt.$$

$$\begin{split} &= \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right\} \\ &- \left(u(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right\} \\ &- \left(v(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right\} \\ &+ \left(y(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right\} \right] dt. \end{split}$$

Multiplying this by λ^i and summing over i, i = 1, 2, ..., p, we get,

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) dt - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) dt \\ & \geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - D f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \\ & - \left(u(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - D f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \\ & - \left(v(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \\ & + \left(y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} dt \\ & = \int_{I} \left[\left(x(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega_{i}(t) - D f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \right] \\ & - \left(u(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega_{i}(t) - D f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} \\ & - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} x(t) \omega_{i}(t) + \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} u(t) \omega_{i}(t) \\ & - \left(v(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \\ & + \left(y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \\ & - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} v(t) z_{i}(t) + \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} y(t) z_{i}(t) \right] dt. \end{split}$$

Using (7.3), (7.5), (7.9) and (7.11), we have,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i}^{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - (y(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f^{i}_{y}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f^{i}_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \right] \\
+ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(x(t) \omega_{i}(t) \right) - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(y(t) z_{i}(t) \right) \\
\geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - (u(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f^{i}_{u}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega_{i}(t) - D f^{i}_{\dot{u}}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right\} + u(t) \omega_{i}(t) - y(t) z_{i}(t) dt.$$

In view of $s(x(t)|C^i) \ge x(t)^T \omega^i(t)$, i = 1,..., p and $s(v(t)|K^i) \ge (v(t))^T z^i(t)$, i = 1,..., p, this yields,

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + s(x(t)|C_{i}) \right. \\ \left. - (y(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} - (y(t))^{T} z_{i}(t) \right] dt \\ &\geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - s(v(t)|K_{i}(t)) \right. \\ &\left. + (y(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left\{ f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right\} \right] \end{split}$$

That is,

$$\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda_i \int_I H^i dt \ge \sum_{i=1}^p \lambda_i \int_I G^i dt.$$

This yields,

$$\int_{I} H dt \not\leq \int_{I} G dt .$$

Theorem 7.2 (*Strong Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ be an efficient solution of (SWP) and $\lambda = \overline{\lambda}$ be fixed in (SWD). Furthermore, assume that

(C₁):
$$\left\{ \left(\phi(t) \right)^T \left(\lambda^T f_{yy} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D \lambda^T f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right.$$

$$\left. - D \left[\left(\phi(t) \right)^T \left(- D \lambda^T f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right]$$

$$\left. + D^2 \left[\left(\phi(t) \right)^T \left(- f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\phi(t) \right) = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \phi(t) = 0, t \in I$$

(C₂): $f_y^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^i(t) - Df_y^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}), i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$ are linearly independent.

Then $(x(t), y(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ is feasible for (SWD) and the objective functional values are equal. If, in addition, the hypotheses of Theorem 7.1 hold, then there exists $\omega_1(t), \omega_2(t), ..., \omega_p(t)$ such that $(u(t), v(t), \lambda, \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t))$ = $(x(t), y(t), \lambda, \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t))$ is an efficient solution of the dual (SWD).

Proof: Since $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ is efficient for the problem (SWP), it is weak minimum [35]. Hence there exists $\tau \in \mathbb{R}^p$, $\eta \in \mathbb{R}^m$, $\gamma \in \mathbb{R}$,

 $\theta(t): I \to R^n$ and $\alpha(t) \in R^n$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions, are satisfied

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + \omega^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right)
+ \left(\theta(t) - (\tau^{T} e) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{yx}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right)
+ D \left[\left(\theta(t) - (\tau^{T} e) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(f_{y\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D f_{\dot{y}\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right)
- f_{\dot{y}x}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right] + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta(t) - (\tau^{T} e) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(f_{\dot{y}\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) \right] = 0, t \in I,$$
(7.15)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda^{i} \right) \left(f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - z^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right)
+ \left(\theta \left(t \right) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{yy}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right)
- D \left[\left(\theta \left(t \right) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(- D f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right]
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta \left(t \right) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(- f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right] = 0, \ t \in I, \tag{7.16}$$

$$(\theta(t) - (\tau^{T}e)y(t))(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) - \eta = 0, \ t \in I,$$
(7.17)

$$x^{T}(t)z^{i}(t) = s(x(t)|C^{i}), t \in I$$

$$(7.18)$$

$$\theta(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} (f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) = 0, \ t \in I,$$
 (7.19)

$$\tau^{i} y(t) - \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e\right) \lambda^{i}\right) \in N_{c^{i}}\left(z^{i}(t)\right), \quad t \in I, \tag{7.20}$$

$$x^{T}(t)\alpha(t) = 0 , t \in I$$
 (7.21)

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{7.22}$$

$$(\tau, \theta(t), \alpha(t), \eta) > 0, t \in I, \tag{7.23}$$

$$(\tau, \theta(t), \alpha(t), \eta) \neq 0 , t \in I.$$
 (7.24)

Since $\lambda > 0$, (7.22) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently, (7.17) reduces to

$$(\theta(t) - (\tau^{T}e)y(t))(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) = 0, t \in I,$$
(7.25)

Post multiplying (7.16) by $(\theta(t) - (\tau^T e)y(t))$, we get,

$$\left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda^{i} \right) \left(f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - z^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right. \\
+ \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{yy}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \\
- D \left(\left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(-D f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right) \\
+ D^{2} \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(-f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right\} \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right) = 0,$$
(7.26)

Premultiplying (7.25) by $(\tau^i - (\tau^T e)\lambda^i)$ and summing over i, we have

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda^{i} \right) \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right) \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) = 0, t \in I$$
(7.27)

Using (7.27) in (7.26) we have,

$$\left\{ \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{yy} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right. \\
\left. + D \left(\left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(-D \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right. \\
\left. + D^{2} \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \right\} \left(\theta(t) - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) y(t) \right) = 0, t \in I$$

This in view of hypothesis (C_1) we have,

$$\phi(t) = (\theta(t) - (\tau^{T} e) y(t)) = 0, t \in I.$$
(7.28)

Hence from (7.15) we have,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) - \alpha \left(t \right) = 0 \quad , \quad t \in I . \quad (7.29)$$

Let $\tau = 0$. From (7.29) we have $\alpha(t) = 0$, $\theta(t) = 0$, $t \in I$.

Therefore, $(\tau, \theta(t), \alpha(t), \eta) = 0$, $t \in I$, but this contradicts (7.24). Hence $\tau > 0$.

From (7.16) we have,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda_{i} \right) \left(f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - z^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) = 0 , \quad t \in I.$$

From hypothesis (C₂), $\left(f_y^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{y}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})\right)$ is linearly independent, hence,

$$\tau^{i} = (\tau^{T} e) \lambda^{i}$$
 $i = 1, 2..., p$. (7.30)

From (7.29), we have,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} (\tau^{T} e) \lambda^{i} (f_{x}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + \omega^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) - \alpha(t) = 0, t \in I$$

yielding,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{x}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) - \alpha \left(t \right) = 0, \ t \in I$$
 (7.31)

This, in view of (7.23) implies,

$$x^{T}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i}(f_{x}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y})+\omega^{i}(t)-Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y})) \ge 0, t \in I$$
 (7.32)

Again (7.31) together with (7.21) gives

$$x^{T}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i}(f_{x}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y})+\omega^{i}(t)-Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}))=0, t \in I$$
 (7.33)

The relation (7.28) along with (7.19) yields,

$$y^{T}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i}(f_{y}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y})-z^{i}(t)-Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}))=0, t \in I$$
 (7.34)

Now from (7.20), with $\tau^i > 0$, we have,

$$y(t) \in N_{c^{i}}(z^{i}(t)), i = 1,...p, t \in I$$
 (7.35)

This implies,

$$y^{T}(t)z^{i}(t) = s(y(t)|K^{i}), t \in I$$

$$(7.36)$$

Also from (7.28) we have,

$$y(t) = \frac{\theta(t)}{(\tau^T e)} \ge 0, t \in I$$

$$(7.37)$$

The relations (7.33), (7.37) and $\omega^i \in K^i$ yield that $(\bar{x}(t), \bar{y}(t), \bar{\omega}_1(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is feasible for (SWD).

Consider,

$$H^{i} = f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) + s\left(\overline{x}\left(t\right)\middle|C^{i}\right)$$

$$-\overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i}\left(f_{y}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) - \overline{z}^{i}\left(t\right) - Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right)\right) - \overline{y}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{z}\left(t\right)$$

$$= f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) + \overline{x}^{T}\left(t\right) \overline{\omega}^{i}\left(t\right) - s\left(\overline{y}\left(t\right)\middle|K^{i}\right)$$

$$-\overline{x}\left(t\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i}\left(f_{x}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) + \overline{\omega}^{i}\left(t\right) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \dot{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right)\right)$$

or

or

$$H^{i} = G^{i}$$
, $i = 1, 2, ...p$, $t \in I$,

implying,

$$\int_{I} H^{i} dt = \int_{I} G^{i} dt , \quad i = 1, 2, ... p$$

$$\int_{I} H dt = \int_{I} G dt$$

This by Theorem 7.1 establishes the efficiency of $(\bar{x}(t), \bar{y}(t), \bar{\omega}_1(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p(t), \bar{\lambda})$ for the dual problem (SWD).

Now we state the converse duality theorem whose proof follows by symmetry of the formulations of the pair of problems.

Theorem 7.3 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ be an efficient solution for (SWP) and $\lambda = \overline{\lambda}$ be fixed in (SWD). Furthermore, assume that

 (A_1) :

$$\begin{cases}
\left(\psi(t)\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{xx}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}x}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right)\right) \\
-D\left[\left(\psi(t)\right)^{T} \left(-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}\dot{x}}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right)\right)\right] \\
+D^{2}\left[\left(\psi(t)\right)^{T} \left(-\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}\dot{x}}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right)\right)\right]\right\} \left(\psi(t)\right) = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \psi(t) = 0, t \in I
\end{cases}$$

(A₂): $f_x^i(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}) + \omega^i(t) - Df_x^i(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y})$, i = 1,...,p are linearly independent.

Then $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ is feasible for (SWD) and the objective functional values are equal. If, in addition, the hypothesis of Theorem 7.1 hold, then there exist $z_1(t), z_2(t), ..., z_p(t)$ such that $(u(t), v(t), \lambda, z_1(t), ..., z_p(t)) = (x(t), y(t), \lambda, z_1(t), ..., z_p(t))$ is an efficient solution of dual (SWD).

7.1.3 Mond-Weir Type Duality

In this section, we present the following pair of Mond-Weir dual problems, (SM-WP) and (SM-WD):

(**SM-WP**): Maximize:
$$\int_{I} (\Phi^{1}, \Phi^{2}, ..., \Phi^{p}) dt$$

Subject to:

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b)$$

$$y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) \leq 0, t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{T}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) dt \geq 0$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}, i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$x(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

(**SM-WD**): Minimize: $\int_{I} (\psi^{1}, \psi^{2}, ..., \psi^{p}) dt$ Subject to:

$$u(a) = 0 = u(b)$$
$$v(a) = 0 = v(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{T}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \right) dt \leq 0$$

$$\omega^{i}(t) \in K^{i}, i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$v(t) \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

where

1.
$$\Phi^{i} = f^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + s(x(t)|C^{i}) - y(t)^{T}z(t)$$
, $i = 1, ..., p$

2.
$$\psi^{i} = f^{i}(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) - s(v(t)|K^{i}) + u(t)^{T} \omega(t)$$
, $i = 1, ..., p$

The duality theorems for these problems will be merely stated below for completeness as their proofs follow on the lines of [98]:

Theorem 7.4 (*Weak Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for the (SM-WP) and $(u(t), v(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for the dual (SM-WD). Assume that, for each i, $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^i \int_I (f^i(t, ..., y, \dot{y}) dt + (.) z^i) dt$ is pseudoconvex in (x, \dot{x}) for fixed (y, \dot{y}) and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^i \int_I (f^i(t, x, \dot{x}, ...) - (.) z^i) dt$ is pseudoconcave in (y, \dot{y}) for fixed (x, \dot{x}) . Then,

$$\int_{I} \phi(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \lambda) dt \not\leq \int_{I} \psi(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}, \lambda) dt$$

Theorem 7.5 (*Strong Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ be an efficient solution for (SM-WP) and $\lambda = \overline{\lambda}$ be fixed in (SM-WD). Furthermore, assume that

$$(\mathbf{H_{1}}): -D\left[\left(\phi(t)\right)^{T}\left(-D\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}\left(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}\right)\right)\right]$$

$$\int_{I}\left\{\left(\phi(t)\right)^{T}\left(\lambda^{T}f_{yy}\left(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}\right)-D\lambda^{T}f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}\left(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}\right)\right)\right\}$$

$$+D^{2}\left[\left(\phi(t)\right)^{T}\left(-f_{\dot{y}\dot{y}}\left(t,x,\dot{x},y,\dot{y}\right)\right)\right]\right\}\left(\phi(t)\right)dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \phi(t) = 0, t \in I$$

(H₂): $f_y^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^i(t) - Df_y^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}), i = 1,..., p$ are linearly independent.

Then $(x(t), y(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ is feasible for (SM-WD) and the objective functional values are equal. If, in addition, the hypotheses of Theorem 7.4 hold, then there exist $\omega_1(t), \omega_2(t), ..., \omega_p(t)$ such that $(u(t), v(t), \lambda, \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t)) = (x(t), y(t), \lambda, \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t))$ is an efficient solution of dual (SM-WD).

Theorem 7.6 (*Converse Duality*): Let $(x(t), y(t), \omega_1(t), ..., \omega_p(t), \lambda)$ be an efficient solution for (SM-WP) and $\lambda = \overline{\lambda}$ be fixed in (SM-WD). Furthermore, assume that

$$(\mathbf{A_{1}}): \begin{cases} \int_{I} (\psi(t))^{T} (\lambda^{T} f_{xx}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}x}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) \\ -D \Big[(\psi(t))^{T} (-D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{x}\dot{x}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) \Big] \\ +D^{2} \Big[(\psi(t))^{T} (-f_{\dot{x}\dot{x}}) \Big] \Big\} (\psi(t)) dt = 0, t \in I \Rightarrow \psi(t) = 0, t \in I$$

(A₂): $f_x^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) + z^i(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^i(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})$, i = 1, ..., p, $t \in I$ are linearly independent.

Then $(x(t), y(t), z_1(t), ..., z_p(t), \lambda)$ is feasible for (SM-WD) and the objective functional values are equal. If, in addition, the hypotheses of Theorem 7.4 hold, then there exist $z_1(t), z_2(t), ..., z_p(t)$ such that $(u(t), v(t), \lambda, z_1(t), ..., z_p(t)) = (x(t), y(t), \lambda, z_1(t), ..., z_p(t))$ is an efficient solution of dual (SM-WD).

7.1.4 Self Duality

A problem is said to be self-dual if it is formally identical with its dual, in general, the problems (SP) and (SWD) are not formally identical if the kernel function does not possess any special characteristics. Hence, skew symmetry of each f^i is assumed in order to validate the following self-

duality theorems for the two pairs of problems treated in the preceding sections.

Theorem 7.7 (*Self Duality*): Let f^i , i = 1, 2, ..., p, be skew symmetric and $C^i = K^i$ and $\omega^i(t) = z^i(t)$. Then the problem (SP) is self dual. If the problems (SWP) and (SWD) are dual problems and $(\bar{x}(t), \bar{y}(t), z^1(t), ..., z^p(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is a joint optimal solution of (SWP) and (SWD), then so is $(\bar{y}(t), \bar{x}(t), z^1(t), ..., z^p(t), \bar{\lambda})$, i.e.

Minimum (**SWP**) =
$$\int_{I} (f^{1}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}), f^{2}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}), ..., f^{p}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y})) dt = 0$$
.

Proof: By skew symmetric of f^i , we have

$$f_{x}^{i}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) = -f_{y}^{i}(t,y(t),\dot{y}(t),x(t),\dot{x}(t))$$

$$f_{y}^{i}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) = -f_{x}^{i}(t,y(t),\dot{y}(t),x(t),\dot{x}(t))$$

$$f_{x}^{i}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) = -f_{y}^{i}(t,y(t),\dot{y}(t),x(t),\dot{x}(t))$$

$$f_{y}^{i}(t,x(t),\dot{x}(t),y(t),\dot{y}(t)) = -f_{x}^{i}(t,y(t),\dot{y}(t),x(t),\dot{x}(t))$$

Recasting the dual problem (SWD) as a minimization problem and using the above relations, we have

(SWD₁): Minimize
$$-\int_{I} (G^{1}, G^{2}, ..., G^{p}) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b) , \quad y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[-f_{x}^{i}(t, y, \dot{y}, x, \dot{x}) + \omega^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}(t, y, \dot{y}, x, \dot{x}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I,$$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - \omega^{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$v(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\omega^{i}(t) \in K^{i} , i = 1, ..., p, t \in I$$

$$\begin{split} \lambda &\in \Lambda^{+} \\ -G^{i} &= -f^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) - s\left(y(t) \middle| K_{i}\right) - x(t)\omega_{i}(t) \\ &- x(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{x}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) - \omega_{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) \right] \\ &= f^{i}\left(t, y, \dot{y}, x, \dot{x}\right) - s\left(y(t) \middle| K_{i}\right) - x(t)\omega_{i}(t) \\ &- x(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) - \omega_{i}(t) - Df_{\dot{y}}^{i}\left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}\right) \right] \\ &= H^{i}\left(t, y, \dot{y}, x, \dot{x}, \omega_{1}, ..., \omega_{p}, \lambda\right) \end{split}$$

Hence we have,

(SWP-1): Minimize
$$\int_I (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p) dt$$

Subject to

$$x(a) = 0 = x(b) , \quad y(a) = 0 = y(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, x, \dot{y}) - z_{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$y(t) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i} , \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1 \quad \text{where} \quad e^{T} = (1,, 1) ,$$

which is just the primal problem (SWP). Therefore $(\overline{x}(t), \overline{y}(t), \overline{z}^1(t), ..., \overline{z}^p(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of dual problem implies that $(\overline{y}(t), \overline{x}(t), \overline{z}^1(t), ..., \overline{z}^p(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of the primal. Similarly $(\overline{x}(t), \overline{y}(t), \overline{z}^1(t), ..., \overline{z}^p(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of (SP) implies $(\overline{y}(t), \overline{x}(t), \overline{z}^1(t), ..., \overline{z}^p(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of the dual problem (SWD). In view of (7.18), (7.33), (7.34) and (7.36), we get,

Minimum (SWP) =

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}\left(t\right), \dot{\overline{y}}\left(t\right), \overline{y}\left(t\right), \dot{\overline{y}}\left(t\right)\right), ..., f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}\left(t\right), \dot{\overline{x}}\left(t\right), \overline{y}\left(t\right), \dot{\overline{y}}\left(t\right)\right) \right\} dt$$

Corresponding, to the solution $(\bar{y}(t), \bar{x}(t), \bar{z}^1(t), ..., \bar{z}^p(t), \bar{\lambda})$, we have,

Minimum (**SWP**) =

$$\int_{t} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}(t), \dot{\overline{y}}(t), \overline{x}(t), \dot{\overline{x}}(t)\right), ..., f^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}(t), \dot{\overline{y}}(t), \overline{x}(t), \dot{\overline{x}}(t)\right) \right\} dt$$

By the skew-symmetry of each f^i

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right), \dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right), \dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= -\int_{I} f^{1}\left\{ \left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right), \dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}, \dot{\overline{x}}, \overline{y}, \dot{\overline{y}}\right) \right\} dt = 0$$

The following self duality theorem for the pair of Mond-Weir type self duality theorem will be merely stated for completeness and its proof runs parallel to that of Theorem 7.7.

Theorem 7.8 (*Self Duality*): Let f^i , i = 1, 2, ..., p, be skew symmetric and $C^i = K^i$ and $\omega^i = z^i$. Then the problem (SM-WP) is self dual. If the problems (SM-WP) and (SM-WD) are dual problems and $(\bar{x}(t), \bar{y}(t), z^1(t), ..., z^p(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is a joint optimal solution of (SM-WP) and (SM-WD), then so is $(\bar{y}(t), \bar{x}(t), z^1(t), ..., z^p(t), \bar{\lambda})$, i.e.

Minimum (**SM-WP**) =
$$\int_{t} f(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) dt = 0$$
.

7.1.5 Natural Boundary Values

The pairs of Wolfe type and Mond-Weir type symmetric multiobjective variational problem can be formulated with natural boundary values rather than fixed end points. The problems with natural boundary conditions are needed to establish well defined relationship between the pairs of continuous programming problems and nonlinear programming problems.

Following is the pair of Wolfe type symmetric dual problems with natural boundary values.

Primal (SWP₀): Maximize
$$\int_{I} (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} & \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \Big[f_{y}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i} (t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big] \leq 0, \\ & (x(t)) \geq 0, t \in I \\ & z^{i} (t) \in C^{i}, \qquad t \in I \\ & \lambda > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1, \quad e^{T} = (1, \dots, 1) \\ & f_{\dot{y}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=q} = 0, \quad f_{\dot{y}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=b} = 0 \end{split}$$

Dual (SWD₀): Maximize $\int_{I} (G^{1}, G^{2}, ..., G^{p}) dt$ Subject to:

$$\begin{split} & \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \Big[f_{u}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) + \omega_{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} (t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v}) \Big] \geq 0, \ t \in I, \\ & v(t) \geq 0, \ t \in I \\ & \omega^{i}(t) \in K^{i}, \ t \in I \\ & \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, \ e^{T} = (1, \dots, 1) \\ & f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=0} = 0, \ f_{\dot{x}}^{i} (t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=0} = 0 \end{split}$$

The duality results for each of the above pairs of dual problems can be proved easily on the lines of the proofs of the Theorems 7.1-7.8, with slight modifications in the arguments, as in Mond and Hanson [108].

Following is the pair of Mond-Weir type symmetric dual problems with natural boundary values.

Primal (SM-WP₀): Maximize
$$\int_{I} (\Phi^{1}, \Phi^{2}, ..., \Phi^{p}) dt$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) - z^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i} \left(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y} \right) \right) \leq 0$$

$$, t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} y^{T}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) - z^{i}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}}^{i}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \right) dt \ge 0$$

$$z^{i}(t) \in C^{i}, \quad i = 1, ..., p, \quad t \in I$$

$$x(t) \ge 0, \quad t \in I$$

$$\lambda > 0$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=0} = 0, \quad \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}}(t, x, \dot{x}, y, \dot{y}) \Big|_{t=0} = 0$$

Dual (SM-WD₀): Minimize: $\int_{I} (\psi^{1}, \psi^{2}, ..., \psi^{p}) dt$ Subject to:

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) \geq 0, \ t \in I \\ &y^{T} \left(t \right) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) + \omega^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}}^{i} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \right) \leq 0, \ t \in I \\ &\omega^{i} \left(t \right) \in K^{i}, \ i = 1, ..., p, \ t \in I \\ &v \left(t \right) \geq 0, \ t \in I \\ &\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} \\ &\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \Big|_{t=a} = 0, \ \lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}} \left(t, u, \dot{u}, v, \dot{v} \right) \Big|_{t=b} = 0 \end{split}$$

7.1.6 Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming

If the time dependency of Wolfe type symmetric pair of dual problems, (SWPo) and (SWDo) is removed and b-a=1, we obtain following pair of Wolfe type static nondifferentiable multiobjective dual problems with support functions which are not explicitly reported in literature.

(**Primal SWP-2**): Minimize
$$\hat{H} = (\hat{H}^1, \hat{H}^2, ..., \hat{H}^p)$$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y}^{i}(x, y) - z^{i} \right] \leq 0,$$

$$y \geq 0, t \in I$$

$$z^{i} \in K^{i}, i = 1, ..., p$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

where,

$$\hat{H}^{i} = f^{i}(x, y) + s(x|C^{i}) - y^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f_{y}^{i}(x, y) - z^{i}) - y^{T} z, \quad i = 1, ..., p$$

(**Dual SWD-2**): Maximize: $\hat{G} = (\hat{G}^1, \hat{G}^2, ..., \hat{G}^p)$

Subject to:

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u}^{i}(u, v) + \omega^{i} \right] \ge 0,$$

$$x \ge 0, t \in I$$

$$\omega^{i} \in C^{i}, i = 1, ..., p$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

where

$$\hat{G}^{i} = f^{i}(u,v) + s(v|K^{i}) - u^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} (f_{u}^{i}(u,v) + \omega^{i}) - x^{T} \omega$$

As in the case of pair of Wolfe type dual problems, the pair of Mond-Weir type dual problems (SM-WPo) and (SM-WDo) reduce to the following static counterparts in nonlinear programming.

Primal (SM-WP-2): Maximize $\hat{\Phi}^i = (\hat{\Phi}^1, \hat{\Phi}^2, ..., \hat{\Phi}^p)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y}^{i}(x, y) - z^{i} \right] \leq 0,$$

$$y^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{y}^{i}(x, y) - z^{i} \right) \geq 0,$$

$$z^{i} \in C^{i}, i = 1, ..., p,$$

$$x \geq 0, \quad \lambda > 0.$$

where

$$\hat{\Phi}^{i} = f^{i}(x, y) + s(x|C^{i}) - y^{T}z$$

Dual (SM-WD-2): Maximize $\hat{\psi}^i = (\hat{\psi}^1, \hat{\psi}^2, ..., \hat{\psi}^p)$

Subject to

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u}^{i} (u, v) + \omega^{i} \right] \ge 0,$$

$$y^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(f_{u}^{i} (u, v) + \omega^{i} \right) \le 0$$

$$\omega^{i} \in K^{i} \quad i = 1, ..., p$$

$$v \ge 0 \quad , \quad \lambda \in \Lambda^{+}$$

where,

$$\hat{\psi}^{i} = f^{i}(x, y) + s(y|K^{i}) - x^{T}w$$

7. 2 MIXED TYPE SYMMETRIC AND SELF DUALITY FOR MULTIOBJECTIVE VARIATIONAL PROBLEMS WITH SUPPORT FUNCTIONS

7.2.1 Statement of the Problem

In the subsection 7.2.1, we shall give notations and the formulations of the problems for studying duality subsequently.

For $N = \{1, 2, ..., n\}$ and $M = \{1, 2, ..., m\}$, let $J_1 \subset N$, $L_1 \subset M$, $J_2 = N \setminus J_1$ and $L_2 = M \setminus L_1$. Let $|J_1|$ denote the number of elements in the subset J_1 . The other symbol $|J_2|, |L_1|$ and $|L_2|$ are similarly defined. Let $x^1 : I \to R^{|J_1|}$ and $x^2 : I \to R^{|J_2|}$, then any $x : I \to R^n$ can be written as $x = (x^1, x^2)$. Similarly for $y^1 : I \to R^{|L_1|}$ and $y^2 : I \to R^{|L_2|}$ can be written as $y = (y^1, y^2)$. Let $f : I \times R^{|J_1|} \times R^{|L_1|} \to R^p$ and $g : I \times R^{|J_2|} \times R^{|L_2|} \to R^p$ be twice continuously differentiable functions.

We state the following pair of mixed type multiobjective symmetric dual variational problems with support functions involving vector functions f and g.

(**Mix SP**): Minimize:
$$\int_{I} \left(H^{1}\left(t, x^{1}, x^{2}, y^{1}, y^{2}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{2}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{2}, z^{1}, z^{2}, \lambda\right), \dots, H^{p}\left(t, x^{1}, x^{2}, y^{1}, y^{2}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{2}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{2}, z^{1}, z^{2}, \lambda\right) \right) dt$$

Subject to:

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b)$$
 , $y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b)$, (7.38)

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b)$$
, $y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b)$. (7.39)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right] \leq 0, \ t \in I, \quad (7.40)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right] \leq 0, \ t \in I, \quad (7.41)$$

$$\int_{I} y^{2}(t)^{T} \left[\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - z_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right) \right] \ge 0, \quad (7.42)$$

$$\left(x^{1}\left(t\right), x^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \geq 0, t \in I, \qquad (7.43)$$

$$z_i^1(t) \in K_i^1$$
 and $z_i^2(t) \in K_i^2$, (7.44)

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+$$
 (7.45)

where

$$H^{i} = f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) + s(x^{1}(t)|C_{i}^{1}) + s(x^{2}(t)|C_{i}^{2})$$

$$- y^{1}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - z_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right]$$

$$- z_{i}^{1}(t) y^{1}(t) - z_{i}^{2}(t) y^{2}(t)$$

(**Mix SD**): Maximize:
$$\int_{I} \left(G^{1}\left(t, u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}, \dot{u}^{1}, \dot{u}^{2}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{v}^{2}, w^{1}, w^{2}, \lambda\right), \dots, G^{p}\left(t, u^{1}, u^{2}, v^{1}, v^{2}, \dot{u}^{1}, \dot{u}^{2}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{v}^{2}, w^{1}, w^{2}, \lambda\right) \right) dt$$

Subject to:

$$u^{1}(a) = 0 = u^{1}(b)$$
 , $v^{1}(a) = 0 = v^{1}(b)$, (7.46)

$$u^{2}(a) = 0 = u^{2}(b)$$
, $v^{2}(a) = 0 = v^{2}(b)$. (7.47)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right] \ge 0, \ t \in I,$$
 (7.48)

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{2}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right] \ge 0, \ t \in I, \ (7.49)$$

$$\int_{I} u^{2}(t)^{T} \left[g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) + \omega_{i}^{2}(t) - Dg_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right] \leq 0, t \in I, (7.50)$$

$$\left(v^{1}(t), v^{2}(t) \right) > 0, t \in I, \tag{7.51}$$

$$\omega_i^1(t) \in C_i^1$$
 and $\omega_i^2(t) \in C_i^2$, (7.52)

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^+ \tag{7.53}$$

where,

$$G^{i} = f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2})$$

$$+ s(v^{1}(t)|K_{i}^{1}) + s(v^{2}(t)|K_{i}^{2}) + u^{1}(t)\omega_{i}^{1}(t) + u_{i}^{2}(t)\omega^{2}(t)$$

$$- u^{1}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) + \omega_{i}^{1}(t) - Df_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right]$$

7.2.2 Mixed Type Multiobjective Symmetric Duality

In this section, we present various duality results for a pair of mixed type multiobjective symmetric problems, (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) under pseudo-concavity-pseudo-concavity assumptions.

Theorem 7.9 (*Weak Duality*): Let $(x^1(t), x^2(t), y^1(t), y^2(t), z^1(t), z^2(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix SP) and $(u^1(t), u^2(t), v^1(t), v^2(t), \omega(t)^1, \omega^2(t), \lambda)$ be feasible for (Mix SD).

Assume that

(**H**₁): for each $i \int_{I} \{f^{i}(t,...,y^{1}(t),\dot{y}^{1}(t))dt \text{ be convex in } x^{1},\dot{x}^{1} \text{ for fixed } y^{1},\dot{y}^{1} \text{ and } \int_{I} \{f^{i}(t,x^{1}(t),\dot{x}^{1}(t),...)dt \text{ be concave in } y^{1},\dot{y}^{1} \text{ on } I \text{ for fixed } x^{1},\dot{x}^{1} .$

(H₂): $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t,...,y^{2}(t),\dot{y}^{2}(t)) + ()^{T} \omega_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$ pseudo-convex in x^{2},\dot{x}^{2} for fixed y^{2},\dot{y}^{2} and $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t,x^{2}(t),\dot{x}^{2}(t),...) - ()^{T} z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$ is pseudo-concave in y^{2},\dot{y}^{2} for fixed x^{2},\dot{x}^{2} .

Then,

$$\int_{t} Hdt \not\leq \int_{t} Gdt$$
.

where $H = (H^1, H^2, ..., H^i, ..., H^p)$ and $G = (G^1, G^2, ..., G^i, ..., G^p)$

Proof: Using the convexity of each $\int_I f^i(t, ..., y, \dot{y}) dt$ in (x, \dot{x}) for fixed (y, \dot{y}) , we have

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1}(t) - u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + \left(\dot{x}^{1}(t) - \dot{u}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) + \left(\dot{x}^{1}(t) - \dot{u}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right] dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1}(t) - u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt$$

$$+ \left(x^{1}(t) - u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \Big|_{t=b}^{t=a}$$

Using (7.38) and (7.46), this yields,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1}(t) - u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt \tag{7.54}$$

Also by concavity of $\int \{f^i(t,x^1(t),\dot{x}^1(t),...)dt$, we have,

$$\begin{split} &-\int_{I} f^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},v^{1},\dot{v}^{1}\right)dt - \int_{I} f^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right)dt \\ &\geq -\int_{I} \left[\left(v^{1}(t)-y^{1}(t)\right)^{T} f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right) + \left(\dot{v}^{1}(t)-\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right) + \left(\dot{v}^{1}(t)-\dot{y}^{1}(t)\right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right)\right]dt \\ &= -\int_{I} \left[\left(v^{1}(t)-y^{1}(t)\right)^{T} \left\{f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right) - Df_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right)\right\}\right]dt \\ &+ \left(v^{1}(t)-y^{1}(t)\right)^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,x^{1},\dot{x}^{1},y^{1},\dot{y}^{1}\right)\right|_{I=I}^{I=a}, \end{split}$$

which by using (7.39) and (7.47), gives,

$$-\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq -\int_{I} \left[\left(v^{1}(t) - y^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt$$
(7.55)

The addition of (7.54) and (7.55) implies,

$$\int_{I} f^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) dt - \int_{I} f^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) dt$$

$$\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1}(t) - u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt$$

$$- \left(v^{1}(t) - y^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1} \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\} \right]$$

$$- \left(u^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) \right\}$$

$$- \left(v^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\}$$

$$+ \left(y^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \right\} \right] dt$$

Multiplying this by λ^i and summing over i, i = 1, 2, ..., p, we get,

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} f^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) dt &- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} f^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) dt \\ &\geq \int_{I} \left[\left(x^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \left(u^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \left(v^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &+ \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &+ \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) + O f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \left(u^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + O f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &+ \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} \\ &- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i}^{i} \left\{ f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1$$

Using (7.40), (7.43), (7.48) and (7.51) we get,

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - \left(y^{1} \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f^{i}_{y^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right. \\ \left. - z^{1}_{i} \left(t \right) - D f^{i}_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} + \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(x^{1} \left(t \right) \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) \right) - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) z^{1}_{i} \left(t \right) \right) \\ & \geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - \left(u^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f^{i}_{u^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f^{i}_{\dot{u}^{1}} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} + u^{1} \left(t \right) \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - y^{1} \left(t \right) z^{1}_{i} \left(t \right) \right] dt \end{split}$$

In view of $s(x^{1}(t)|C_{i}^{1}) \ge (x^{1}(t))^{T} \omega_{i}^{1}$, i = 1,..., p and $s(v^{1}(t)|K_{i}^{1}) \ge (v^{1}(t))^{T} z_{i}^{1}$, i = 1,..., p yields,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) + s \left(x^{1} \left(t \right) \middle| C_{i}^{1} \right) - \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right\} - \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) \right] dt$$

$$\geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) - s \left(v^{1} \left(t \right) \middle| K_{i}^{1} \right) - \left(u^{1} \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left\{ f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right\} + u^{1} \left(t \right) \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) \right] dt \tag{7.56}$$

From (7.49) together with (7.43) and (7.50), we have

$$\int_{t} \left[\left(x^{2}(t) - u^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - \omega_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right) dt \ge 0$$

which, on by integration by parts implies,

$$\int_{I} \left[\left(x^{2}(t) - u^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - \omega_{i}^{2}(t) \right) + \left(\dot{x}^{2}(t) - \dot{u}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right] dt - \left(x^{2}(t) - u^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \bigg|_{t=q}^{t=b} \ge 0$$

which by using (7.39) and (7.47), we have,

$$\int_{I} \left[\left(x^{2}(t) - u^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - \omega_{i}^{2}(t) \right) + \left(\dot{x}^{2}(t) - \dot{u}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right] dt \ge 0$$

By pseudo-convexity of $\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_i \int_{I} \left(g_{u^2}^i \left(t, ..., y^2, \dot{y}^2 \right) + \left(. \right)^T \omega_i^2 \left(t \right) \right) dt$, this yields,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + x^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt$$

$$\geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + u^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt$$
(7.57)

From (7.41) together with (7.51) and (7.42), we have

$$\int_{I} \left[\left(v^{2}(t) - y^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) dt \leq 0$$

$$\Rightarrow \int_{I} \left[\left(v^{2}(t) - y^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) + \left(\dot{v}^{2}(t) - \dot{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right] dt$$

$$- \left(\dot{v}^{2}(t) - \dot{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right]_{t=1}^{t=b} \geq 0$$

Which by using (7.39) and (7.47), we have,

$$\int_{t} \left[\left(v^{2}(t) - y^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) + \left(\dot{v}^{2}(t) - \dot{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right] dt \leq 0$$

By pseudo concavity of $\int_{I} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, ... \right) - \left(. \right)^{T} z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt$, we have,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - v^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt
\leq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - y^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt
- \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - v^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt
\geq - \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - y^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right) dt \tag{7.58}$$

The relations (7.57) and (7.58) gives,

$$-\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(\left(x^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{2}(t) + v^{2}(t)^{T} z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$$

$$\geq -\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - y^{2}(t)^{T} z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$$

$$+ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - u^{2}(t)^{T} w_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) + s \left(x^{2}(t) | C_{i}^{2} \right) - y^{2}(t)^{T} z_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt$$

$$\geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(g_{u^{2}}^{i}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - s \left(v(t) | K_{i}^{2} \right) + u^{2}(t)^{T} w_{i}^{2}(t) \right) dt. \quad (7.59)$$

Combining (7.56) and (7.59), we get,

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) + g^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) + s \left(x^{1} \left(t \right) \middle| C_{i}^{1} \right) + s \left(x^{2} \left(t \right) \middle| C_{i}^{2} \right) \right. \\ & + \left(y^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(f_{y^{i}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & - y^{1} \left(t \right) z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - y^{2} \left(t \right) z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right] dt \\ & \geq \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left[f^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + g^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) - s \left(v^{1} \left(t \right) \middle| K_{i}^{1} \right) + s \left(v^{2} \left(t \right) \middle| K_{i}^{2} \right) \right. \\ & - \left(u^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \int_{I} \left(f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & + \left(u^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) + \left(u^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right] dt. \end{split}$$

That is,

$$\sum_{i=1}^p \lambda_i \int_I H^i dt \geq \sum_{i=1}^p \lambda_i \int_I G^i dt.$$

This yields,

$$\int_{I} H dt \not\leq \int_{I} G dt .$$

Theorem 7.10: (Strong Duality):

Let $(\overline{x}^1(t), \overline{x}^2(t), \overline{y}^1(t), \overline{y}^2(t), \overline{z}_1^1(t), \overline{z}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^1(t), \overline{z}_1^2(t), \overline{z}_2^2(t), ..., z_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix SP). Let $\lambda = \overline{\lambda}$ be fixed in (Mix SD). Furthermore assume that,

 (C_1) :

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left[\left\{ \left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}y^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & - D \left[\left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(- D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\ & + D^{2} \left[\left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} \left(- \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right) \right)^{T} dt \geq 0 \end{split}$$

and

$$\int_{I} \left[\left\{ \left(\phi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right. \\
\left. - D \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(- D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
\left. + D^{2} \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(- \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right\} \phi^{2}(t) \right] dt \geq 0,$$

 (C_2) :

$$\begin{split} &\int_{I} \left\{ \left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{y^{1}y^{1}}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - D\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}y^{1}}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right) \\ &- D\left[\left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \left(-D\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right)\right] \\ &+ D^{2}\left[\left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \left(-\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right)\right]\right\} \left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right)\right) dt = 0, t \in I \\ &\Rightarrow \left(\phi^{1}\left(t\right)\right) = 0, t \in I \end{split}$$

and

$$\iint_{I} \left[\left\{ \left(\phi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{y^{2}y^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{y^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right. \\
\left. - D \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(- D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
\left. + D^{2} \phi^{2}(t)^{T} \left(- \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right\} \phi^{2}(t) \right] dt = 0, t \in I$$

$$\Rightarrow \phi^{2}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

(C₃): $g_{y^2}^i(t, \overline{x}^2, \dot{\overline{x}}^2, \overline{y}^2, \dot{\overline{y}}^2) + \overline{\omega}_i^2(t) - Dg_{\dot{y}^2}^i(t, \overline{x}^2, \dot{\overline{x}}^2, \overline{y}^2, \dot{\overline{y}}^2), \ t \in I, i = 1, ..., p \text{ are linearly independent.}$

Then $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{\omega}_1^1(t), \bar{\omega}_2^1(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p^1(t); \bar{\omega}_1^2(t), \bar{\omega}_2^2(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ is feasible for (Mix SD) and the objective functional values

are equal. If, in addition, the hypotheses of Theorem 7.9 hold, then there exist $\overline{\omega}_1^1(t), \overline{\omega}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^1(t)$; $\overline{\omega}_1^2(t), \overline{\omega}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^2(t)$ such that $\left(u^1(t), u^2(t), v^1(t), v^2(t), \omega_1^1(t), \omega_2^1(t), ..., \omega_p^1(t); \omega_1^2(t), \omega_2^2(t), ..., \omega_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda}\right)$ = $\left(\overline{x}^1(t), \overline{x}^2(t), \overline{y}^1(t), \overline{w}_1^1(t), \overline{\omega}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^1(t); \overline{\omega}_1^2(t), \overline{\omega}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda}\right)$ is an efficient solution of dual (Mix SD).

Proof: Since $(\bar{z}^1(t), \bar{z}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{z}^1(t), \bar{z}^1(t), \bar{z}^1(t), \bar{z}^1(t), \bar{z}^2_1(t), \bar{z}^2_2(t), ..., z^2_p(t)\bar{\lambda})$ is efficient, it is weak minimum, there exist $\tau \in R^p$, $\eta \in R^p$, $\gamma \in R$, $\theta^1(t): I \to R^{|K_1|}$, $\theta^2(t): I \to R^{|K_2|}$ and $\alpha(t) \in R^m$, $\beta(t) \in R^m$ such that the following Fritz-John optimality conditions, are satisfied

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) + \overline{\omega}_{1}^{i} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\
+ \left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\
- f_{\dot{y}^{1}x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right] + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(- f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\
- \alpha \left(t \right) = 0, \ t \in I \tag{7.60}$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(g_{x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) + \overline{\omega}^{2} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}^{i}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
+ \left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \\
- D g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - g_{\dot{y}^{2}x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] - \beta \left(t \right) = 0, t \in I.$$

$$(7.61)$$

$$\begin{split} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \tau^{T} e \overline{\lambda}_{i} \right) & \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & + \left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & - D \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- D f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\ & + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] = 0, t \in I \quad (7.62) \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \overline{\lambda}_{i}\right) \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}\left(t\right) - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right)\right) \\ &\quad + \left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}y^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right)\right) \\ &\quad - D\left[\left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right)\right)\right] \\ &\quad + D^{2}\left[\left(\theta^{2}\left(t\right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right)\right)\right] = 0, \ t \in I \quad (7.63) \end{split}$$

$$\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e y^{1}(t)\right)^{T} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - z_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t)\right)^{T} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) - z_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right)\right) - \eta = 0, t \in I$$
(7.64)

$$\theta^{1}\left(t\right)^{T}\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda_{i}\left(f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\bar{x}^{1},\dot{\bar{x}}^{1},\bar{y}^{1},\dot{\bar{y}}^{1}\right)-z_{i}^{1}\left(t\right)-Df_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\bar{x}^{1},\dot{\bar{x}}^{1},\bar{y}^{1},\dot{\bar{y}}^{1}\right)\right)=0,\ t\in I \qquad (7.65)$$

$$\theta^{2}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda_{i}\left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\bar{x}^{2},\dot{\bar{x}}^{2},\bar{y}^{2},\dot{\bar{y}}^{2}\right)-z_{i}^{2}\left(t\right)-Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\bar{x}^{2},\dot{\bar{x}}^{2},\bar{y}^{2},\dot{\bar{y}}^{2}\right)\right)=0,\ t\in I\ (7.66)$$

$$\gamma y^{2}(t) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) = 0, t \in I \quad (7.67)$$

$$\eta^T \lambda = 0 \tag{7.68}$$

$$\alpha(t)^{T} \overline{x}^{1}(t) = 0, t \in I \tag{7.69}$$

$$\beta(t)^T \overline{x}^2(t) = 0, t \in I$$
(7.70)

$$\overline{y}^{1}(t) \in N_{\kappa^{1}}(\overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t)), t \in I$$

$$(7.71)$$

$$-\tau_i \overline{y}^2(t) - (\theta^2(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^2(t)) \in N_{\kappa^2}(\overline{z}_i^2(t)), t \in I$$

$$(7.72)$$

$$\overline{\omega}^1(t) \in C_1$$
, $(\overline{\omega}^1(t))^T \overline{x}^1(t) = s(\overline{x}^1(t)|C_1)$, $t \in I$ (7.73)

$$\overline{\omega}^2(t) \in C_2$$
, $(\overline{\omega}^2(t))^T \overline{x}^2(t) = s(\overline{x}^2(t)|C_2)$, $t \in I$ (7.74)

$$\left(\tau, \theta^{1}(t), \theta^{2}(t), \gamma, \alpha(t), \beta(t), \eta\right) \ge 0, t \in I \tag{7.75}$$

$$(\tau, \theta^{1}(t), \theta^{2}(t), \gamma, \alpha(t), \beta(t), \eta) \neq 0, t \in I$$
 (7.76)

Since $\lambda > 0$, (7.68) implies $\eta = 0$. Consequently, (7.64) reduces to

$$\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \left(\tau^{T}e\right)\overline{y}^{1}(t)\right)\left(f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - Df_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right) + \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma\overline{y}^{2}(t)\right)\left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) - Dg_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right)\right) = 0, \ t \in I$$

$$(7.77)$$

Postmultiplying (7.62) by $(\theta^1(t) - \tau^T e \overline{y}^1(t))$, (7.63) by $(\theta^2(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^2(t))$ and then adding, we have,

$$\left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \tau^{T} e \overline{\lambda}_{i} \right) \left(f_{y^{i}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \right. \\
+ \left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{i}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - D f_{y^{i}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- D f_{y^{i}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- f_{y^{i}y^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{1} \left(t \right) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1} \left(t \right) \right) \\
+ \left\{ \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \overline{\lambda}_{i} \right) \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) \\
+ \left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}^{2}}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}^{2}} \right) - D g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}^{2}}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}^{2}} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- D g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}^{2}}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}^{2}} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}^{2}}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}^{2}} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{2} \left(t \right) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2} \left(t \right) \right)$$

$$(7.78)$$

Multiplying (7.77) by λ^i and then using (7.66) and (7.67), we obtain,

$$(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1}(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) = 0, \ t \in I$$

$$(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1}(t))^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right) \tau^{T} e = 0, \ t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \tau^{T} e \right\} dt = 0$$

$$(7.79)$$

Multiplying (7.77) by τ^i and summing over i, we have

$$\int_{I} (\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1}(t)) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) \right)
+ (\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t)) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) dt = 0,$$
(7.80)

By subtraction of (7.79) and (7.80) and then using (7.66) and (7.67), we have,

$$\int_{I} (\theta^{1}(t) - \tau e \overline{y}^{1}(t)) \sum_{i=1}^{p} \tau^{i} \left(f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right)
- \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \left(\tau^{i} - \left(\tau^{T} e \right) \lambda_{i} \right)
+ \left(\theta^{2} - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \overline{\lambda}^{i} \gamma \right) \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right)
- \overline{z}_{i}^{2} - D g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) dt = 0$$
(7.81)

From (7.78) and (7.81) we obtain,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-D f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right) dt$$

$$+ \int_{I} \left\{ \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-D g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) \right] \right\} \\
\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right) dt = 0$$

In view of the hypothesis (C_1) , we have

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left\{ \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(f_{y^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\ & - D \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- D f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\ & + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(- f_{\dot{y}^{1}\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) \right) dt = 0, \end{split}$$

and

$$\begin{split} \int_{I} & \left\{ \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(g_{y^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\ & - D \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-D g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \\ & + D^{2} \left[\left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}_{i} \left(-g_{\dot{y}^{2}\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right) dt = 0 \end{split}$$

From this, in view of the hypothesis (C_2) , we have,

$$\phi^{1}(t) = \theta^{1}(t) - \tau^{T} e \overline{y}^{1}(t) = 0, \quad t \in I$$
 (7.82)

$$\phi^{2}(t) = \theta^{2}(t) - \gamma \overline{y}^{2}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(7.83)$$

From (7.83) and (7.63),

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \left(\tau^{i} - \gamma \overline{\lambda}_{i}^{i} \right)^{T} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) = 0$$

This in view of hypothesis (C_3) , we have

$$\tau^{i} = \gamma \overline{\lambda}_{i} \quad , \quad i = 1, ..., p \tag{7.84}$$

If possible, let, $\gamma = 0$. From (7.84), we have $\tau = 0$, and therefore, from (7.82)and (7.83), we have,

$$\phi^{1}(t) = 0, \ \phi^{2}(t) = 0, \ t \in I$$

Also from (7.60) and (7.61), we have $\alpha(t) = 0 = \beta(t)$, $t \in I$.

Hence $(\tau, \theta^1(t), \theta^2(t), \gamma, \alpha(t), \beta(t)) = 0$, contradicting Fritz John condition (7.76). Hence $\gamma > 0$ and consequently $\tau > 0$. From (7.60) and (7.61) along with (7.84), we obtain

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(f_{x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) - \alpha \left(t \right) = 0 , t \in I$$

$$(7.85)$$

and

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(g_{x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) - \beta \left(t \right) = 0, \ t \in I$$
(7.86)

This, in view of (7.75), yields,

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(f_{x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{x^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \ge 0, t \in I \quad (7.87)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(g_{x^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \ge 0, t \in I$$
 (7.88)

and, in view of (7.69) and (7.70) together with (7.43) gives,

$$\overline{x}^{1}(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(f_{x^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{x^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) \right) = 0, \ t \in I$$
(7.89)

$$\bar{x}^{2}(t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \bar{\lambda}^{i} \left(g_{x^{2}}^{i}(t, \bar{x}^{2}, \dot{\bar{x}}^{2}, \bar{y}^{2}, \dot{\bar{y}}^{2}) + \bar{\omega}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}(t, \bar{x}^{2}, \dot{\bar{x}}^{2}, \bar{y}^{2}, \dot{\bar{y}}^{2}) \right) = 0, t \in I$$

$$(7.90)$$

The relation (7.90) can be written as,

$$\int_{I} \overline{x}^{2} (t)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(g_{x^{2}}^{i} (t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) + \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2} (t) - D g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} (t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) dt = 0$$
(7.91)

From (7.82) and (7.83) we have

$$(\overline{y}^{1}(t), \overline{y}^{2}(t)) \ge 0 \quad t \in I$$

$$\overline{y}^{1}(t)^{T} \sum_{j=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) \right] = 0 \quad (7.92)$$

Also from (7.71) and (7.72), we have

$$\bar{y}^{1}(t)^{T} \bar{z}_{i}^{1}(t) = s(\bar{y}^{1}(t)|K_{i}^{1}), t \in I, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (7.93)

$$\bar{y}^{2}(t)^{T} \bar{z}_{i}^{2}(t) = s(\bar{y}^{2}(t)|K_{i}^{2}), \quad t \in I, i = 1, 2, ..., p$$
 (7.94)

Consequently, from (7.88), (7.91), (7.92) and (7.93), the feasibility of $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{z}_1^1(t), \bar{z}_2^1(t), ..., \bar{z}_p^1(t); \bar{z}_1^2(t), \bar{z}_2^2(t), ..., \bar{z}_p^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ for (Mix SD) follows.

Consider,

$$\begin{split} H^{i} &= f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) + g^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) + s\left(\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right)\middle|C_{i}^{1}\right) + s\left(\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\middle|C_{i}^{2}\right) \\ &- \overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - Df_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right)\right] \\ &- \overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{z}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - \overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{z}_{i}^{2}\left(t\right) \end{split}$$

Using (7.73), (7.74), (7.91), (7.92), (7.93) and (7.94) in proper sequence, we obtain,

$$H^{i} = f^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2})$$

$$-s(\overline{y}^{1}(t)|K_{i}^{1}) - s(\overline{y}^{2}(t)|K_{i}^{2}) + \overline{x}^{1}(t)^{T}\overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}(t) + \overline{x}^{2}(t)^{T}\overline{\omega}_{i}^{2}(t)$$

$$-\overline{x}^{1}(t)\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[f_{x^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) - \omega_{i}^{1}(t) - Df_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) \right]$$

$$= G^{i} \text{ for } i = 1, 2,, p$$

Therefore,

$$\int_{I} (H^{1}, H^{2}, ..., H^{i}, ..., H^{p}) dt = \int_{I} (G^{1}, G^{2}, ..., G^{i}, ..., G^{p}) dt$$

This proves the efficiency of

$$(\overline{x}^1(t), \overline{x}^2(t), \overline{y}^1(t), \overline{y}^2(t), \overline{\omega}_1^1(t), \overline{\omega}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^1(t); \overline{\omega}_1^2(t), \overline{\omega}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{\omega}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$$
 of the dual problem (Mix SD) by an application of Theorem 7.9.

The proof of the following converse duality theorem follows automatically by symmetry of the formulation:

Theorem 7.11(*Converse Duality*): Let $(\bar{x}^1, \bar{x}^2, \bar{y}^1, \bar{y}^2, \bar{\omega}_1^1(t), \bar{\omega}_2^1(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p^1(t);$ $\bar{\omega}_1^2(t), \bar{\omega}_2^2(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_p^2(t), \bar{\lambda})$ be an efficient solution of (Mix SP). Let $\lambda = \bar{\lambda}$ be fixed in (Mix SD). Furthermore assume that

$$\begin{array}{ll}
(\mathbf{A_{1}}): & \int_{I} \left\{ \left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x^{1}x^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}x^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\
& - D \left[\left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\
& + D^{2} \left[\left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} dt \geq 0
\end{array}$$

and

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{x^{2} x^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2} x^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2} \dot{x}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2} \dot{x}^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} dt \ge 0$$

$$(\mathbf{A_{2}}): \int_{I} \left\{ \left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{x^{1}x^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}x^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \\ - D \left[\left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- D \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \\ + D^{2} \left[\left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} \left(- \overline{\lambda}^{T} f_{\dot{x}^{1}\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\psi^{1}(t) \right)^{T} dt = 0, t \in I \\ \Rightarrow \psi^{1}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

and

$$\int_{I} \left\{ \left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{x^{2}x^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) - D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}x^{2}} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \\
- D \left[\left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-D \overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \\
+ D^{2} \left[\left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} \left(-\overline{\lambda}^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}\dot{x}^{2}}^{i} \left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2} \right) \right) \right] \right\} \left(\psi^{2}(t) \right)^{T} dt = 0, t \in I \\
\Rightarrow \psi^{2}(t) = 0, t \in I$$

and

(A₃): $g_{x^2}^i(t, \bar{x}^2, \dot{\bar{x}}^2, \bar{y}^2, \dot{\bar{y}}^2) + \bar{\omega}_i^2(t) - Dg_{\dot{x}^2}^i(t, \bar{x}^2, \dot{\bar{x}}^2, \bar{y}^2, \dot{\bar{y}}^2)$, i = 1, ..., p are linearly independent.

Then $(\bar{x}^1(t), \bar{x}^2(t), \bar{y}^1(t), \bar{y}^2(t), \bar{z}_1^1(t), \bar{z}_2^1(t), ..., \bar{z}_p^1(t), \bar{z}_1^2(t), \bar{z}_2^2(t), ..., z_p^2(t), \lambda)$ is feasible for (Mix SD) and the objective functional values are equal. If, in addition, the hypotheses of Theorem 7.9 hold, then there exist $\bar{z}_1^1(t), \bar{z}_2^1(t), ..., \bar{z}_p^1(t); \bar{z}_1^2(t), \bar{z}_2^2(t), ..., \bar{z}_p^2(t)$ such that

$$\begin{aligned} & \left(u^{1}(t), u^{2}(t), v^{1}(t), v^{2}(t), z_{1}^{1}(t), z_{2}^{1}(t), ..., z_{p}^{1}(t); z_{1}^{2}(t), z_{2}^{2}(t), ..., z_{p}^{2}(t), \lambda\right) \\ & = \left(\overline{x}^{1}(t), \overline{x}^{2}(t), \overline{y}^{1}(t), \overline{y}^{2}(t), \overline{z}_{1}^{1}(t), \overline{z}_{2}^{1}(t), ..., \overline{z}_{p}^{1}(t); \overline{z}_{1}^{2}(t), \overline{z}_{2}^{2}(t), ..., z_{p}^{2}(t), \overline{\lambda}\right) \end{aligned}$$

is an efficient solution of dual (Mix SD).

7.2.3 Self Duality

A mathematical problem is said to be self-dual if it is formally identical with its dual. In general, the problems (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) cannot be formally identical if the kernel function does not owe any special characteristics. Hence skew symmetric of f^i and g^i is assumed in order to validate the following self-duality theorem for the pair of problems treated in the preceding section.

Theorem 7.12 (Self Duality): Let f^i and $g^i, i=1,2,...,p$, be skew symmetric and $C_i^1 = K_i^1$ and $C_i^2 = K_i^2$ with $\omega_i^1(t) = z_i^1(t)$, $\omega_i^2(t) = z_i^2(t)$, $t \in I$. Then the problem (Mix SP) is self dual. If the problems dual (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) problems are and $\left(\overline{x}^{1}(t),\overline{x}^{2}(t),\overline{y}^{1}(t),\overline{y}^{2}(t),\overline{z}_{1}^{1}(t),\overline{z}_{2}^{1}(t),...,\overline{z}_{p}^{1}(t);\overline{z}_{1}^{2}(t),\overline{z}_{2}^{2}(t),...,\overline{z}_{p}^{2}(t),\overline{\lambda}\right)$ joint optimal solution of (MixSP) and (MixSD), then so $(\bar{y}^{1}(t), \bar{y}^{2}(t), \bar{x}^{1}(t), \bar{x}^{2}(t), \bar{\omega}_{1}^{1}(t), \bar{\omega}_{2}^{1}(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_{n}^{1}(t); \bar{\omega}_{1}^{2}(t), \bar{\omega}_{2}^{2}(t), ..., \bar{\omega}_{n}^{2}(t), \bar{\lambda}),$ and the common functional value is zero, i.e.

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{t} \{ f^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) + g^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \} dt = 0$$

Proof: By skew symmetric of f^i and g^i , we have

$$f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{\overline{x}}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\left(t\right)\right) = -f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{\overline{x}}^{1}\left(t\right)\right)$$

$$\begin{split} g_{x^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right)\right) &= -f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right)\right) &= -f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right)\right) &= -f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{1}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{x}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) &= -g_{\dot{x}^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left(t,\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right),\dot{y}^{2}\left(t\right)\right) \\ g_{y^{2}}^{i}\left($$

Recasting the dual problem (Mix SD) as a minimization problem and using the above relations, we have,

Mix (SD1): Minimize
$$-\int_{T} (G^1, G^2, ..., G^p) dt$$

Subject to

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b) , \quad y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b)$$

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b) , \quad y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[f_{y^{i}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}) - \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{i}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$= \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}) - \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\int_{I} \overline{u}^{2}(t)^{T} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}) - \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}) \right] dt \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\left(\overline{v}^{1}(t), \overline{v}^{2}(t) \right) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}(t) \in C_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2}(t) \in C_{i}^{2}$$

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1 , \quad e^{T} = (1, \dots, 1)$$

also,

$$\begin{split} -G^{i} &= -f^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - g^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) \\ &- s\left(\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right) \middle| K_{i}^{1}\right) - s\left(\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \middle| K_{i}^{2}\right) - \overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - \overline{x}_{i}^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{\omega}^{2}\left(t\right) \\ &+ \overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[f_{x^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) - \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - D f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) \right] \end{split}$$

$$\begin{split} &= f^{i}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) + g^{i}\left(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}\right) \\ &\quad - s\left(\overline{y}^{1}\left(t\right) \middle| K_{i}^{1}\right) - s\left(\overline{y}^{2}\left(t\right) \middle| K_{i}^{2}\right) - \overline{x}^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - x^{2}\left(t\right)^{T} \omega_{i}^{2}\left(t\right) \\ &\quad - x^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) - \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}\left(t\right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}\right) \right] \\ &= H^{i}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{1}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{\omega}_{i}^{1}, \overline{\omega}_{i}^{2}, \overline{\lambda}\right) \end{split}$$

Hence, by using various hypotheses of this theorem, we have

(MIX SP-1): Maximum
$$\int_I (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p) dt$$

Subject to

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b) , \quad y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b)$$

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b) , \quad y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b)$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right] \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_{I} \overline{y}^{2}(t)^{T} \left[\sum_{i=1}^{p} \overline{\lambda}^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) - \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) - D g_{\dot{y}^{2}}^{i}(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}) \right) \right] \geq 0 ,$$

$$\left(\overline{y}^{1}(t), \overline{y}^{2}(t) \right) \geq 0 , t \in I$$

$$\overline{z}_{i}^{1}(t) \in C_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad \overline{z}_{i}^{2}(t) \in C_{i}^{2} , \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p$$

$$\overline{\lambda} > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1 , \quad e^{T} = (1,, 1)$$

which is just the primal problem (Mix SP). Therefore $(\overline{x}^1(t), \overline{x}^2(t), \overline{y}^1(t), \overline{y}^2(t), \overline{z}_1^1(t), \overline{z}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^1(t); \overline{z}_1^2(t), \overline{z}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of dual problem implies that $(\overline{y}^1(t), \overline{y}^2(t), \overline{x}^1(t), \overline{z}^2(t), \overline{z}_1^1(t), \overline{z}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^1(t); \overline{z}_1^2(t), \overline{z}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of the primal.

Similarly $(\overline{z}^1(t), \overline{z}^2(t), \overline{y}^1(t), \overline{y}^2(t), \overline{z}_1^1(t), \overline{z}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^1(t); \overline{z}_1^2(t), \overline{z}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$ is an efficient solution of (MixSP) implies

$$(\overline{y}^{1}(t), \overline{y}^{2}(t), \overline{x}^{1}(t), \overline{x}^{2}(t), \overline{z}_{1}^{1}(t), \overline{z}_{2}^{1}(t), ..., \overline{z}_{n}^{1}(t); \overline{z}_{1}^{2}(t), \overline{z}_{2}^{2}(t), ..., z_{n}^{2}(t), \overline{\lambda})$$

is an efficient solution of the dual problem (MixSD).

In view of (7.73), (7.74), (7.91), (7.93) and (7.94), we have,

Minimum (**MixSP**) =
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) + g^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) + \dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}\right) + g^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

Corresponding, to the solution

$$(\overline{y}(t), \overline{x}(t), \overline{z}_1^1(t), \overline{z}_2^1(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^1(t); \overline{z}_1^2(t), \overline{z}_2^2(t), ..., \overline{z}_p^2(t), \overline{\lambda})$$
, we have,

Minimum (**Mix SP**) =
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}\right) + g^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}\right) \right.$$
$$,..., f^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{1}\right) + g^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

By the skew-symmetry of each f^i , we have,

$$\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) + g^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$\dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) + g^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= \int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}\right) + g^{1}\left(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$\dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{1}, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}\right) + g^{p}\left(t, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$= -\int_{I} \left\{ f^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{1}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) + g^{1}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) \right\} dt$$

$$\dots, f^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{1}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) + g^{p}\left(t, \overline{x}^{2}, \dot{\overline{x}}^{2}, \overline{y}^{2}, \dot{\overline{y}}^{2}\right) \right\} dt = 0$$

7.2.4 Special Cases

If $J_2 = 0$, $L_2 = 0$, the pair of mixed type nondifferentiable symmetric dual problems (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) reduce to the Wolfe type nondifferentiable symmetric dual variational problem (WP) and (WD) studied by in Section 7.1.

If $J_1 = 0$, $L_1 = 0$, the pair of mixed type symmetric dual problem (Mix SP) and (Mix SD) reduce to the following Mond-Weir type symmetric dual variational problem (M-WP) and (M-WD) recently studied Section 7.1

If $C_i^1 = C_i^2 = \{0\}$ and $K_i^1 = K_i^2 = \{0\}$, i = 1, 2..., p, i.e., support functions are suppressed from the formulation of the dual models (Mix SP) and (Mix SD), we have the following pair of reduced dual models, studied in Chapter 6.

(Mix SP*): Minimize
$$\int_{t} \left\{ f\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}\right) - y^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$x^{1}(a) = 0 = x^{1}(b) , \quad y^{1}(a) = 0 = y^{1}(b) ,$$

$$x^{2}(a) = 0 = x^{2}(b) , \quad y^{2}(a) = 0 = y^{2}(b) ,$$

$$\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1}) \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \leq 0 , t \in I ,$$

$$\int_{I} y^{2}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{y^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}),$$

$$-D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{2}}(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}) \right) \geq 0 ,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} .$$

(Mix SD*): Maximize
$$\int_{I} \left\{ f\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) + g\left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}\right) - u^{1}\left(t\right)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} f_{y^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{y}^{1}}\left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}\right)\right) e \right\} dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} u^{1}(a) &= 0 = u^{1}(b) \ , \quad v^{1}(a) = 0 = v^{1}(b) \, , \\ u^{2}(a) &= 0 = u^{2}(b) \ , \quad v^{2}(a) = 0 = v^{2}(b) \, , \\ \lambda^{T} f_{u^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) - D\lambda^{T} f_{\dot{u}^{1}}(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1}) &\geq 0 \ , \ t \in I \ , \\ \lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) &\geq 0 \ , \ t \in I \ , \\ \int_{I} u^{2}(t)^{T} \left(\lambda^{T} g_{u^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) \right) &= 0 \\ - D\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{u}^{2}}(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2}) &\geq 0 \ , \\ \lambda \in \Lambda^{+} \ . \end{split}$$

where $\Lambda^{+} = \{ \lambda \in \mathbb{R}^{p} | \lambda > 0, \ \lambda^{T} e = 1, e = (1, 1, ..., 1)^{T} \in \mathbb{R}^{p} \}$

7.2.5 Natural Boundary Values

The pairs of mixed type symmetric nondifferentiable multiobjective variational problem can be formulated with natural boundary values rather than fixed end points. The problems with natural boundary conditions are needed to establish well-defined relationship between the pairs of dual continuous programming problems and nonlinear programming problems.

Following is the pair of mixed type symmetric dual problems with natural boundary values:

Primal (Mix SP₀):

Maximize
$$\int_{I} (H^1, H^2, ..., H^p) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right] \leq 0, \ t \in I, \\ &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right] \leq 0, \ t \in I, \\ &\int_{I} y^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) \\ &- z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right) dt \geq 0, \\ &\left(x^{1} \left(t \right), x^{2} \left(t \right) \right) \geq 0, \ t \in I, \\ &z_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) \in K_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad z_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \in K_{i}^{2}, \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p, \\ &\lambda > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1, \quad e^{T} = \left(1, \dots, 1 \right) \\ &f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \Big|_{t=a} = 0, \quad f_{\dot{y}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \Big|_{t=b} = 0, i = 1, 2, \dots, p, \\ &\lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \Big|_{t=a} = 0, \quad \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{y}^{1}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \Big|_{t=b} = 0 \end{split}$$

Dual (Mix SD_0):

Maximize
$$\int_{I} (G^{1}, G^{2}, ..., G^{p}) dt$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) - D f_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{1}, \dot{u}^{1}, v^{1}, \dot{v}^{1} \right) \right] \geq 0 , t \in I, \\ &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) - D g_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right] \geq 0 , t \in I, \\ &\int_{I} u^{2} \left(t \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) + \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \right. \\ &\left. - D g_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, u^{2}, \dot{u}^{2}, v^{2}, \dot{v}^{2} \right) \right] dt \leq 0, t \in I \\ &\left. \left(v^{1} \left(t \right), v^{2} \left(t \right) \right) \geq 0 , t \in I \right. \\ &\left. \left(v^{1} \left(t \right), v^{2} \left(t \right) \right) \geq 0 , t \in I \right. \\ &\left. \omega_{i}^{1} \left(t \right) \in C_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad \omega_{i}^{2} \left(t \right) \in C_{i}^{2}, \quad i = 1, 2, \dots, p \right. \\ &\left. \lambda > 0, \quad \lambda^{T} e = 1 , \quad e^{T} = \left(1, \dots, 1 \right) \right. \\ &\left. f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right|_{t=a} = 0 , \quad f_{\dot{x}^{1}}^{i} \left(t, x^{1}, \dot{x}^{1}, y^{1}, \dot{y}^{1} \right) \right|_{t=b} = 0 , \\ &\left. i = 1, 2, \dots, p \right. \\ &\left. \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right|_{t=a} = 0 \right. \\ &\left. \lambda^{T} g_{\dot{x}^{2}} \left(t, x^{2}, \dot{x}^{2}, y^{2}, \dot{y}^{2}, \dot{y}^{2} \right) \right|_{t=b} = 0 \end{split}$$

The duality results for each of the above pairs of dual variational problems can be proved easily on the lines of the proofs of the Theorems 7.9-7.12, with slight modifications in the arguments, as in Mond and Hanson [108].

7.2.6 Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming

If the time dependency is removed from the variational problems (Mix SPo) and (Mix SDo) with natural boundary values and b-a=1, we obtain the following pair of static mixed type multiobjective dual problems involving support functions, which are not explicitly reported in the literature with their correct formulations..

Primal (Mix SP₁):

Minimize
$$\hat{H} = (\hat{H}^1, \hat{H}^2, ..., \hat{H}^p)$$

Subject to

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(x^{1}, y^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} \right] \leq 0, \\ &\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(x^{2}, y^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2} \right] \leq 0, \\ &\left(y^{2} \right)^{T} \left[\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left(g_{y^{2}}^{i} \left(x^{2}, y^{2} \right) - z_{i}^{2} \right) \right] \geq 0, \\ &z_{i}^{1} \in K_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad z_{i}^{2} \in K_{i}^{2}, i = 1, ..., p, \\ &\lambda \in \Lambda^{+}, \\ &\hat{H}^{i} = f^{i} \left(x^{1}, y^{1} \right) + g^{i} \left(x^{2}, y^{2} \right) + s \left(x^{1} \middle| C_{i}^{1} \right) + s \left(x^{2} \middle| C_{i}^{2} \right) \\ &- y^{1} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(x^{1}, y^{1} \right) - z_{i}^{1} - D f_{y^{1}}^{i} \left(x^{1}, y^{1} \right) \right] - z_{i}^{1} y^{1} - z_{i}^{2} y^{2} \end{split}$$

Dual (Mix SD1):

Maximize
$$\hat{G} = (\hat{G}^1, \hat{G}^2, ..., \hat{G}^p)$$

Subject to:

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(u^{1}, v^{1} \right) + \omega_{i}^{1} \right] \geq 0 ,$$

$$\sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(u^{2}, v^{2} \right) + \omega_{i}^{2} \right] \geq 0 ,$$

$$\left(u^{2} \right)^{T} \sum_{i=1}^{p} \lambda^{i} \left[g_{u^{1}}^{i} \left(u^{2}, v^{2} \right) + \omega_{i}^{2} \right] \leq 0 ,$$

$$\omega_{i}^{1} \in C_{i}^{1} \quad \text{and} \quad \omega_{i}^{2} \in C_{i}^{2} \quad i = 1, 2, ..., p ,$$

$$\lambda \in \Lambda^{+} .$$

where,

$$\begin{split} \hat{G}^{i} &= f^{i}\left(x^{1}, y^{1}\right) + g^{i}\left(x^{2}, y^{2}\right) + s\left(v^{1} \middle| K_{i}^{1}\right) + s\left(v^{2} \middle| K_{i}^{2}\right) \\ &+ u^{1}\omega_{i}^{1} + u_{i}^{2}\omega^{2} - u^{1}\sum_{i=1}^{p}\lambda^{i} \left[f_{u^{1}}^{i}\left(x^{1}, y^{1}\right) + \omega_{i}^{1} - Df_{\dot{u}^{1}}^{i}\left(x^{1}, y^{1}\right) \right] \end{split}$$

- 1. Abadie, J., "Nonlinear Programming", North Holland Publishing Company, Amsterdam, (1967).
- 2. Arrow, K. J, Hurwicz, L and Uzawa, H., "Studies in Linear and Nonlinear Programming" Stanford, California, (1958).
- 3. Aubin, J. P., "Mathematical Methods of Game and Economic Theory", North-Holland Publ., Amsterdam, (1979).
- 4. Avriel, M., "Nonlinear Programming", Analysis and Methods, Printice Hall, Englewood Ciffs, New Jersey, (1979).
- 5. Balas, E., "Minimax and Duality for Linear and Nonlinear Mixed Integer Programming in J.Abadie (Ed.) *Integer and Nonlinear Programming*, North Holland Amsterdam, 384-417. M.S (1970).
- 6. Bazaraa, M. S. and Goode, J. J., "On Symmetric Duality in Nonlinear Programming", *Operations Research* Vol. 21 (1) 1-9 (1973).
- 7. Bazara, M. S. and Shetty, C. M., *Nonlinear Programming: Theory and Algorithms*, John Wiley and Sons, C.M., (1979).
- 8. Bazara, M. S., Sherali, H. D and Shetty, C. M., "Nonlinear programming: Theory and Methods, John Wiley and Sons, Inc., New York (USA).
- 9. Bector, C. R., "Duality in Nonlinear Fractional Programming", *Zeit. Fur. Oper. Res.*, Vol. 17, 183-193, (1973)
- 10. Bector, C. R., "Wolfe Type Duality Involving (B,η)-Invex Functions for a Minmax Programming Problem", *J. Math Anal.*. *Appl.*, Vol. 201, 114-127 (1996).

- 11. Bector, C. R, Bector, M. K and Husain, I., "Static Minimax Problems with Generalized Invexity", *Congressus Nuerantium*, Vol. 92, 111-127 (1993).
- 12. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Abha., "On Mixed Type Symmetric Duality in Multiobjective Programming", *Opsearch*, Vol. 36 (4), 399-407 (1999).
- 13. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Bector, M. K., "Generalized Fractional Programming Duality: A Parametric Approach, *J. Opt. Theory and Applications*, Vol. 60, 243-260 (1989).
- 14. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Durgaprasad, M. V., "Duality in Pseudo-Linear Multiobjective Programming", *Asia-Pacific Journal of Operational Research* Vol. 5, 150-159(1988).
- 15. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Husain, I., "Generalized Concavity and Duality in Continuous Programming", *Utilitas, Mathematica* Vol.25, 171-190 (1984).
- 16. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S. and Husain, I., "Generalized Concavity and Nondifferentiable Continuous Programming Duality", Research Report # 85-7, *Faculty of administrative studies*, The University of Manitoba, Winnipeg, Canada R3T 2N2, (1985).
- 17. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Husain, I., "Optimality Conditions and Duality in Subdifferentiable Multiobjective Fractional Programming, *J. Opt. Th. Appl.*, Vol. 79 (1), 105-125(1993).
- 18. Bector, C. R, Chandra, S and Kumar, V., "Duality for a Class of Minmax and Inexact Programming Programming Problem", *J.Math.Anal.Appl.*, Vol.186 (3), 735-746 (1994).
- 19. Bector, C. R and Husain, I., "Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems", *Journal of Math. Anal and Appl.* Vol. 166 (1), 214-224(1992).

- 20. Ben-Israel, A and Mond, B., "What is Invexity?", *J. Austral. Math. Soc.* Ser. B, Vol. 28, 1-9 (1986).
- 21. Bhatia, D., "A Note on Duality Theorem for a Nonlinear Programming Problem", *Management Sciences*, Vol16 (9), 604-606 (1970).
- 22. Bhatia, D and Kumar, P., "Duality for Variational Problems with B.Ver. Functions", *Optimization*, Vol. 36, 346-360 (1995).
- 23. Birtan, G. R., "Duality for Nonlinear Multiple Criteria Optimization Problems", *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications*, Vol. 35 367-401(1981).
- 24. Borwein, J. M., "Optimization With Respect to Partial Ordering", D.Phil. Thesis, Oxford University, (1974).
- 25. Borwein, J. M and Lewis, A. S., "Convex Analysis and Nonlinear Optimization", Springer Verlag, New York (2000).
- 26. Cambini, A., "An Algorithm for Special Cases of Fractional Programs", in: *Generalized Concavity in Optimization and Economics*, S. Schaible, W.T. Ziemba (Eds.).
- 27. Chandra, S and Husain, I., "Symmetric Dual Continuous Fractional Programming", *J. Inf. Opt. Sc*, Vol.10, 241-255 (1989).
- 28. Chandra, S and Husain, I., "Symmetric Dual Nondifferentiable Programs", *Bull. Austral .Math. Soc.* Vol. 24, 295-307 (1981).
- 29. Chandra, S, Craven, B. D. and Husain, I., "Continuous Programming Containing Arbitrary Norms", *Journal of Australian Mathematical Society* (Series A) Vol. 39, 28-38 (1985).

- 30. Chandra, S, Craven, B. D and Husain, I., "A Class of Nondifferentiable Continuous Programming Problem", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 107 122-131 (1985).
- 31. Chandra, S, Craven, B. D and Husain, I., "A Class of Nondifferentiable Control Problems", *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications* Vol. 56, 227-243 (1988).
- 32. Chandra, S, Craven, B. D and Mond, B., "Symmetric Dual Fractional Programming", Zietschrift für *Operations Research*, Vol. 29, 59-64 (1985).
- 33. Chandra, S, Craven, B. D and Mond, B., "Generalized Concavity and Duality with a Square Root Term", *Optimization* Vol.16, 653-662 (1975).
- 34. Chandra, S and Durga Prasad, M. V., "Symmetric Duality in Multiobjective Programming", *Journal of Australian Mathematical Society*, Series B, Vol. 35, 198-206 (1993).
- 35. Chankong, V and Haimes, Y. Y., "Multiobjective Decision Making: Theory and Methodology", North-Holland, New York, (1983).
- 36. Chen, X-h., "Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems with Invexity", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 203, 236-253 (1996).
- 37. Craven, B. D., "Lagrangian Conditions and Quasi-Duality", *Bulletin of Australian Mathematical Society* Vol. 16, 325-339 (1977).
- 38. Craven, B. D., "Mathematical Programming and Control Theory", Chapman and Hall, London, England, (1978).
- 39. Craven. B. D., "Strong Vector Minimization and Duality", ZAMM Vol. 60, 1-5 (1980).

- 40. Craven, B. D and Glover, B. M., "Invex Functions and Duality", *Journal of the Australian Mathematical Society* (Ser. B) Vol. 39, 1-20 (1985).
- 41. Craven. B. D., "Lagrangian Conditions and Quasiduality", *Bulletin of Australian Mathematical Society*, Vol. 16, 325-339 (1977).
- 42. Clarke, F. H., "Optimization and Non-Smooth Analysis", *Wiley*, New York, (1983).
- 43. Courant, C. R and Hilbert, D., "Methods of Mathematical Physics", Vol 1, *Wiley (Interscience)*, New York, (1943).
- 44. Corley, H. W., "Duality for Maximization With Respect to Cones", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 84, 560-568 (1981).
- 45. Da-Cunha, O. NN and Polak, E., "Constrained Minimization under Vector-Valued Criteria in Finite Dimensional Spaces", *J.Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 19,103-124 (1967).
- 46. Dannis, J. B., "Mathematical Programming and Electrical Networks", Wiley, New Jersy, 1963, New York (1959).
- 47. Dantzig, G. B., "Linear Programming and Extensions", Princeton University Press.
- 48. Dantzig, G. B, Eisenberg and Cottle, R. W., "Symmetric Dual Nonlinear Programs", *Pacific Journal of Mathematics* Vol. 15, 809-812 (1965).
- 49. Demyanov, V. F and Dixon L. C. W., "Quasidifferential Calculus", *Mathematical Programming Study* Vol. 29, North Holland, Amsterdam (1989).
- 50. Dennis, J. B., *Mathematical Programming and Electrical Network*, Wiley New York (1959).

- 51. Dorn, W. S., "A Symmetric Dual Theorem for Quadratic Programs", Journal of Operations Society of Japan, Vol. 2, 93-97 (1960).
- 52. Dorn, W. S., "Duality in Quadratic Programming", *Quarterly Applied Mathematics* Vol.18, 15-162 (1960).
- 53. Dorn, W. S., "A Duality Theorem for Convex Program", IBM *J. Res. Development*, Vol. 4(4), 407-413 (1960).
- 54. Egudo, R. R., "Multiobjective Fractional Duality", *Bull. Austral. Math. Soc.*, Vol. 37, 367-378 (1988).
- 55. Egudo, R. R and Hanson, M. A., "Multiobjective Duality with Invexity", J. Math. Anal. Appl. Vol. 126, 469-477 (1987).
- 56. Friedrichs, K. O., "Ein Verfrahren der Variations-Rechung das Minimum eines Integrals Maximum eines Anderen Ausdruckes Dazustellan, Gottingen Nachrichten, (1929).
- 57. Gale, D, Kuhn, H. W and Tucker, A. W., "Linear Programming and the Theory of Games", Activity Analysis of Production Allocation, Edited by T. C. Koopman (John Wiley and Sons, New York), 317-328 (1951).
- 58. Geofferion, A. M., "Proper Efficiency and the Theory of Vector Maximization", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, Vol. 22, 618-730 (1968).
- 59. Gulati, T. R, Husain, I and Ahmed, A., "Multiobjective Symmetric Duality with Invexity", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society* Vol. 56, 25-36 (1997).
- 60. Hanson, M. A., "Bonds for Functionally Convex Optimal Control Problems", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 8, 84-89(1964).

- 61. Hanson, M. A., "Sufficiency of the Kuhn Tucker Conditions", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications* Vol. 80, 545-550 (1981).
- 62. Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Symmetric Duality in Static and Continuous Fractional Programming", *Optimization*, Vol. 39, 41-56 (1997).
- 63. Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Symmetric Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, Vol. 210, 22-38 (1997).
- 64. Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Symmetric Dual Multiobjective Fractional Variational Problems", Refereed Proceedings of IV International Conference on Optimization and Applications (ICOTA), Dec. 15-17, (2001) Hong Kong.
- 65. Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Symmetric Duality With Invexity for Multiobjective Variational Problems", proceedings of International Conference on Mathematical Modelling, University of Roorkee, Roorkee., 29-31, Jan, (1997), India.
- Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Optimality and Duality for Multiobjective Control Problems", *Journal of Applied Analysis*, Vol. 11, 223-243 (2005).
- 67. Husain, I, Gulati, T. R and Ahmed, A., "Symmetric Dual Fractional Programs with Generalized Convexity", *Aligarh Bulletin of Mathematics*, Vol. 24 (1-2), 35-43 (2005).
- 68. Husain, I and Ahmed, A., "Mixed Type Duality for a Variational Problems with Strong Pseudo-Invex Constraints", *Sochow Journal of Mathematics*, Vol. 32 (4), 589-603 (2006).

- 69. Husain, I and Ahmed, A., "Multiobjective Symmetric Duality with Invexity", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society* Vol. 56, 25-36 (1997).
- 70. Husain, I and Jabeen, Z., "Continuous Programming Containing Support Function", *Journal of Applied Mathematics and Informatics*, Vol. 26(1-2), 433-455 (2008).
- 71. Husain, I and Jabeen, Z., "Mixed Type Duality for a Programming Problem Containing Support Function", *Journal of Applied Mathematics and Computing*, Vol. 15 (1-2), 211-225 (2004).
- 72. Husain, I and Jabeen, Z., "Mixed Type Symmetric and Self Duality for Variational Problems", *Congressus Numerantum*, Vol.171, 77-103(2004).
- 73. Husain, I and Jabeen, Z., "On Variational Problems Involving Higher Order Derivatives", *J.Math. and Computing*, Vol. 27 (1-2), 433-455 (2005).
- 74. Husain, I, Abha and Jabeen, Z., "In Nonlinear Programming with Support Function", *J. Appl. Math and Computing*, Vol. 10 (1-2), 83-99 (2002).
- 75. Iserman, H., "Proper Efficiency and the Linear Vector Maxmin Problems", *Operations Research* Vol. 22, 189-191(1974).
- 76. Iserman, H., "The Relevance of Duality in Multiple Objective Linear Programming", TIMS Studies in *Management Sciences* Vol. 6, 241-262 (1977).
- 77. Iserman, H., "On Some Relations between Dual Pair of Multiple Objective Linear Programs", *Zeitschrift for Operations Research* Vol. 22, 33-41(1978).

- 78. Isermann, H., "Duality in Multiple Objective Linear Programming", in: Lecture Notes in Economics and Mathematical Systems, 155, Springer Verlag, Berlin, 274-285 (1978).
- 79. Ivanov, E. H and Nehshe, R., "Some Results on Dual Vector Optimization Problems", M. Math. Operationsforschung Statistik, Ser. Optimization, Vol. 16, 505-517.
- 80. Jeyakumar, V and Mond, B., "On Generalized Convex Mathematical Programming", *Journal of the Australian Mathematical Society* (Ser. B) 34, 45-53 (1992).
- 81. John, Fritz., "Extremum Problems with Inequaities as Subsidiary Conditions", in Studies and Essays, Courant Anniversary Volumes, K.O.Friedrichs, O.E Neugebaur and J.J Stoker (eds). Wiley-Interscience, New York, 167-174(1948).
- 82. Kanniappan, P., "Necessary Conditions for Optimality of Nondifferentiable Convex Multiobjective Programming", *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications*, Vol.40, 167-174 (1983).
- 83. Karush, W., Minima of Functions of Several Variables with Inequalities as Side Conditions", M.S. Dissertation, Department of Mathematics, University of Chicago, (1939).
- 84. Kawasaki H., "A Duality Theorem in Multiobjective Nonlinear Programming", *Mathematics of Operations Research*, Vol. 7 (1), 95-110 (1982).
- 85. Kim, D. S and Kim, A. L., "Optimality and Duality for Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Variational Problems", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 274, 255-278 (2002).

- 86. Kim, D. S, Yun, Y. B and Lee, W. J., "Multiobjective Symmetric Duality with Cone Constraints", *European Journal of Operational Research*, Vol. 107, 686-691(1998).
- 87. Koopmans, T. C., "Analysis of Production as an Efficient Combinations of Activities", Activity of Analysis of Production Allocation, Edited by T.C.Koopman (John Wiley and sons), 33-97 (1951).
- 88. Kuhn, H. W and Tucker, A. W., "Nonlinear Programming", in proceeding of *Second Berkley Symposium on Mathematical Statistics and Probability* (J.Newman, Ed.), University of California Press, Berkley, California, 481-493 (1951).
- 89. Kumar, V, Husain, I and Chandra, S., "Symmetric Duality for Minmax Nonlinear Mixed Integer Programming", *European Journal of Oper. Res* Vol.80, 425-430 (1995).
- 90. Lai, H. C and Ho, C. P., "Duality Theorem of Nondifferentiable Convex Multiobjective Programming", *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications*, Vol. 58, 407-420 (1986).
- 91. Liu, J. C., "Duality for Nondifferentiable Static Multiobjective Variational Problems Involving Generalized (*F*, *ρ*)-Convex Functions", *Comput. Math. Appl.* Vol. 31 (12), 77-89 (1996).
- 92. Mangasarian, O. L., *Nonlinear Programming*, Mcgraw Hill, New York, (1969).
- 93. Mangasarian, O. L and Fromovitz, S., "Fritz John Optimality Conditions in Presence of Equality and Inequality Constraints", *J.Math. Anal.Appl*, Vol. 17, 37-47(1967).
- 94. Martin, D. H., "The Essence of Invexity," *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications*, Vol 47, (1), 65-76 (1985).

- 95. Martos, B., "Hyperbolic Programming", *Nav. Res. Log. Quart.*, Vol. 11, 135-155 (1964).
- 96. Mazzolini, P., "Duality and Reciprocity for Vector Programming", European J.Oper. Res. Vol. 10, 42-50 (1980).
- 97. Mishra, S. K, Mukerjee, R. N., "On Efficiency and Duality for Multiobjective Variational Problems", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 187, 40-54(1994).
- 98. Mishra, S. K, Wang, S. Y and Lai, K. K., "Symmetric Duality for a Class of Nondifferentiable Multiobjective Fractional Variational Problems", *Journal of Math. Anal and Appl.* Vol. 333 (2), 1093-1110 (2007).
- 99. Mond, B., "A Symmetric Dual Theorem for Nonlinear Programs", *Quarterly Journal of applied Mathematics* Vol. 23, 265-269 (1965).
- 100. Mond, B., "A Class of Nondifferentiable Fractional Programming Problems", ZAMM, Vol. 58, 337-341(1978).
- 101. Mond, B and Craven, B. D., "A Duality Theorem for a Nondifferentiable Nonlinear Fractional Programming Problem", *Bull. Austral.Math. Soc.*, Vol. 20, 397-406 (1979).
- 102. Mond, B, Chandra, S and Durga Prasad, M. V., "Symmetric Dual Nondifferentiable Fractional Programming", *Indian Journal of Management and Systems*, Vol. 3 (1), 1-10 (1987).
- 103. Mond, B and Chandra, S and Husain, I., "Duality of Variational Problems with Invexity", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 134, 322-328 (1988).
- 104. Mond, B and Cottle, R. W., "Self Duality in Mathematical Programming", SIAM, J. Appl. Math, Vol. 14, 420-423 (1966).

- 105. Mond, B and Hanson, M. A., "Duality for Variational Problems", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 18, 355-364 (1967).
- 106. Mond, B and Hanson, M. A., "Duality for Control Problems", *SIAM Journal of Control* Vol. 6, 114-120 (1968).
- 107. Mond, B and Hanson, M. A., "On Duality with Generalized Convexity", *Math. Operationsforsch: u.Statist., Ser. Optimization*, Vol. 16 (2), 313-317 (1984).
- 108. Mond, B and Hanson, M. A., "Symmetric Duality for Variational Problems", *J.Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 18, 161-172 (1967).
- 109. Mond, B, Husain, I and Durga Prasad, M. V., "Duality for a Class of Nondifferentiable Multiple Objective Programming Problems", *Journal of Information and Optimization Sciences*, Vol. 9, 331-341(1988).
- 110. Mond, B and Husain, I., "Sufficient Optimality Criteria and Duality for Variational Problems with Generalized Invexity", *Journal of the Australian Mathematical Society* (Ser. B), Vol. 31, 108-121 (1989).
- 111. Mond, B and Schechter, M., "Nondifferentiable Symmetric Duality", *Bull. Autral. Math. Soc.* Vol. 53, 177-188 (1996).
- 112. Mond, B and Schechter, M., "On a Constraint Qualification in a Nondifferentiable Programming Problem", *Navel Research Logistics*, *Quarterly*, Vol. 23, 611-613 (1976).
- 113. Mond, B and Schechter, M., "A Programming Problem with an Lp Norm in the Objective Function", *J.Austral. Math. Soc.* Ser. B. Vol. 19, 333-342 (1975/1976).

- 114. Mond, B and Smart, I., "Duality with Invexity for a Class of Nondifferentiable Static and Continuous Programming Problems", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 141, 373-388 (1989).
- 115. Mond, B and Smart, I., "Duality and Sufficiency in Control Problems with Invexity", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Application* Vol.136, 325-333 (1988).
- 116. Mond, B and Weir, T., "Generalized Concavity and Duality" in Generalized Concavity in Optimization and Economics: S. Schiable, W.T.Ziemba (Eds.), *Academic Press*, New York, 263-277 (1981).
- 117. Mond, B and Weir, T., "Generalized Convexity and Higher Order Duality", J. Math. Sci. Vol. (16-18), 74-94 (1981-1983),.
- 118. Mond, B and Weir, T., "Symmetric Duality for Nonlinear Programming, Recent Developments in Mathematical Programming" (Eds.), Santosh Kumar, on the behalf of the *Australian Society of Operations Research*, Gorden and Breach Science Publisher, 137-153(1991).
- 119. Nakayama, H., "Geometric Consideration in Vector Optimization", J. Optim. Theory Appl., Vol. 44, 625-655 (1984).
- 120. Neumann, J. Von., "On a Maximization Problem", Institute of Advance Study Princeton, New Jersey (1947).
- 121. Neumann, J. Von., "On the Theory of Games of Strategy, Contribution of the Theory of Games", Vol. IV, *Anals of Mathematic Studies*, No. 40, Printiceton University Press, Princeton, 13-42(1959).
- 122. Neustadt, L. W., "Optimization", Princeton Univ. Press, New Jersey, (1976).

- 123. Oettli, W., "Symmetric Duality and a Convergent Subgradient Method for Discrete, Linear, Constrained Approximation Problems with Arbitrary Norm Appearing in the Objective Function and Constraints", *Jour. Approx. Theory*, Vol. 14, 43-50 (1975).
- 124. Preda, V., "On Efficiency and Duality for Multiobjective Programs" Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, Vol. 166, 365-377(1992).
- 125. Riesz, F, and Sz-Nagy, B., *Functional Analysis*, Ungar, New York, (1995).
- 126. Ritter, K., "Optimization Theory in Linear Spaces I", *Math. Ann.* Vol. 183, 169-180 (1969).
- 127. Ritter, K., "Optimization Theory in Linear Spaces I", *Math. Ann.* Vol. 184, 133-154 (1970).
- 128. Ritter, K., "Optimization Theory in Linear Spaces I, *Math. Ann.* Vol. 182, 189-206 (1969).
- 129. Rockafellar, R. T., *Convex Analysis*, Princeton University Press, New Jersey (1970).
- 130. Rueda, N. G and Hanson, M. A., "Optimality Criteria in Mathematical Programming Involving Generalized Invexity", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, 130 Vol 2, 375-385 (1988).
- 131. Schaible, S., "Fractional Programming I, Duality", *Management Science*, Vol. 22, 856-867(1976).
- 132. Schechter, M., "A Subgradient Duality Theorem", *J. Math. Anal and Appl.*, Vol. 61, 850-855(1977).

- 133. Schechter, M., "More on Subgradient Duality", *J. Math. Anal and Appl.* Vol. 71, 251-262 (1979).
- 134. Schonfeld, P., "Some Duality Theorem for Nonlinear Vector Maximum Problem", *Unternechmensforschug*, Vol. 14, 51-63(1970).
- 135. Singh, C., "Duality Theory in Multiobjective Differentiable Programming", Research Report, Department of Mathematics, St. Lawrence Univ., Canton New York. (1987).
- 136. Singh, C., "Optimality Conditions in Multiobjective Differentiable Programming", *Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications*, Vol. 53, 115-123 (1987).
- 137. Sinha, S. M., "An Extension of a Theorem of Supports of a Convex Functions", *Management Science*, Vol. 12, 380-384 (1966).
- 138. Sinha, S. M., "A Duality Theorem for Nonlinear Programming", Management Sciences, Vol. 12, 385-390 (1966).
- 139. Smale, S., Global Analysis and Economics I: "Pareto Optima and a Generalization of Morse Theory, in Dynamical Systems", M. Peixoto, (Ed.), Acedemic Press, New York, (1973).
- 140. Smart, I. O., "Invex Functions and their Applications to Mathematical Programming", Ph.D. thesis, Department of Mathematics, La Trobe University, Australia. (1990).
- 141. Smart, I and Mond, B., "Symmetric Duality with Invexity in Variational Problems", *Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications*, Vol. 152 536-545 (1990).
- 142. Tanaka, Y, Fukushima, M and Ibraki, T., "On Generalized Pseudoconvex Functions, *J.Math. Anal. Appl.* Vol. 144, 342-355 (1989).

- 143. Tanimoto, S., "Duality for a Class of Nondifferentiable Mathematical Programming Problems", *J.Math.Anal Appl.* Vol. 79, 286-294 (1981).
- 144. Tanino, T and Sawaragi, Y., "Duality in Multiobjective Programming" Journal of Optimization Theory and Applications Vol. 27, 509-529 (1979).
- 145. Valentine, F. A., The Problem of Lagrange with Differential Inequalities as Added Side Conditions, "Contributions to Calculus of Variations", (1933-37), Univ. of Chicago Press, 407-448(1937).
- 146. Warga, J., "Optimal Control of Differential and Functional Equations", Academic Press, New York, (1972).
- 147. Watson, G. A., "A Class of Programming Problems whose Objective Function Contain a Norm", *J. Math. Anal. Appl.*, Vol. 23, 404-411(1978).
- 148. Weir, T., "Proper Efficiency and Duality for Vector Valued Optimization Problems", *The Journal of the Australian Mathematical Society* (Series A), Vol. 43, 21-34(1987).
- 149. Weir, T., "A Dual for a Multiobjective Fractional Programming Problem", *Journal of Information and Optimization Sciences*, Vol. 7, 261-269 (1986).
- 150. Weir, T., "A Converse Duality Theorem in Multiple Objective Programming", *Operations Research Letters*, 21-34(1987).
- 151. Weir, T and Mond, B., "Symmetric and Self Duality in Multiple Objective Programming", *Asian Pacific Journal of Operations Research*, Vol. 5, 129-133(1988).

- 152. Weir, T., "Symmetric Dual Multiobjective Fractional Programming," Journal of the Australian Mathematical Society (Ser.A), Vol. 50, 67-74(1991).
- 153. Weir, T and Mond, B., "Sufficient Fritz John Optimality Conditions and Duality for Nonlinear Programming Problems", *Opsearch*, Vol. 23 (3), 129-141(1986).
- 154. Weir, T and Mond, B., "Generalized Convexity and Duality in Multiple Objective Programming", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society*, Vol. 39, 287-299(1989).
- 155. Weir, T and Jeyakumar, V., "A Class of Nonconvex Functions and Mathematical Programming", *Bulletin of the Australian Mathematical Society*, Vol. 39, 177-189 (1988).
- 156. Wolfe, P., "A Duality Theorem for Nonlinear Programming", *Quart. Appl. Math.*, Vol. 19, 239-133 (1961).
- 157. Xu, Z., "Mixed Type Duality in Multiobjective Programming Problems", Journal of Mathematical Analysis and Applications, Vol. 198, 621-635(1996).
- 158. Zalmai, G. J., "Optimality Criteria and Duality for Fractional Minimax Programming", *J. Austral Mathe Soc.* (Series B), Vol. 31, 484-492(1990).
- 159. Zandwill, W. I., *Nonlinear Programming*, A Unified Approach, Printice Hall, Englewood Cliffs, New Jersey, (1965).
- 160. Zhang, J and Mond, B., "Duality for a Non-differentiable Programming Problem", *Bull. Austral. Math. Soc.*, Vol. 55, 29-44(1997).
- 161. Zowe, J., "The Slater Condition in Infinite-Dimensional Vector Spaces", *Amer, Math.* Monthly, Vol. 87, 475-476 (1980)